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Chairman's Statement

Dear Shareholders,

The global business environment encountered enormous uncertainties
and challenges in 2019. Amid the volatilities, Wanda Hotel Development
Company Limited (the “Company”) remained focused on implementing
strategic initiatives under our business plan and was able to deliver
stable results. The Company, as always, seeks to develop its business
by adhering to the strategic goal of achieving long-term development
and sustainable growth of shareholders’ value in the long run.

Despite the slowdown in China’s hotel market in tandem with the
prolonged Sino-US trade war in the second half of 2019, our hotel
management business still delivered steady revenue and achieved
market leadership in China hospitality and tourism industry. On
monetization of prior investments, the Company disposed of its
remaining 53% interest in the Hengli City project during 2019. The
disposal enabled the Group to focus its resources on the development
of its fee-based hotel management business which we believe would
further enhance shareholders’ value.

Our operating environment is set to be unprecedentedly challenging in
2020 with the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19)
(the “Pandemic”), which has led to substantial travel restrictions and
lockdowns across China. However, with support from our parent
company, Dalian Wanda Commercial Management Group Co., Ltd.
(“DWCM”, together with its subsidiaries, “DWCM Group”), the Group will
stay vigilant in our cost discipline, and continue to explore investment
opportunities with the objective of expanding our revenue sources as
well as improving our profitability, thus laying a solid foundation for its
long-term growth.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, directors, management team,
staff, business partners and all others who have rendered their unfailing
support and contribution to the Group.

Ding Benxi
Chairman

31 March 2020
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Wanda Hotel Management (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (“Wanda Hotel Management Group")

Wanda Hotel Management Group is a leading hotel services provider

in China with comprehensive capabilities in hotel operations and

management. It is also principally engaged in hotel design and

construction management services and other related consultancy

and ancillary businesses. Wanda Hotel Management Group currently

manages hotels under the following brands (“Wanda Hotel Brands”): —

Hotel Brand

Wanda Reign

Wanda Vista

Wanda Realm

Wanda Jin

Brand Positioning

An ultra-luxury hotel brand
for luminaries and the social
elites that delivers supremely
personalized services and
transcends every expectation.

A luxury hotel brand for
distinguished guests who
relish extraordinary services
in an oriental elegance that
seamlessly blends with local
culture.

A premium hotel brand built
upon quality service in line with
superb international standards
for business and leisure
travelers.

A premium and select service
hotel brand built upon
boutique design and quality
service offering a balanced life
experience for business and
leisure travelers.

Business Review
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Business Review
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Wanda Moments o A high-end midscale hotel brand
dedicated to quality design and
select services for the ultimate
comfort of business travelers.

As at 31 December 2019, Wanda Hotel Management Group managed a
total of 82 hotels in operation as set out in below table: —

+
t

i

[
it

. BN RBERK
BREXLE - BXK
R B2 B B0 P R B8
- TR HBIE IR
8 P o R A HOE JE &
f o

BE-_T-AF+-A=+-R BEOE%
EEEAs2MEMRAEE I TR -

Hotels In Operation Under Management

EREEDEE
Number of Hotel
BIEHE
Third Party Number of
DWCM Group Clients Total Rooms
REBEREEEEER E=REF #st EE#HE
('000)
Wanda Reign BERE 3 0 3 0.8
Wanda Vista BiENE 1 23 24 6.5
Wanda Realm BiERE 1 47 48 13.9
Wanda Jin BiEmE 0 2 2 0.4
Wanda Moments EiERE o ik 3 0.7
Others Hith 1 1 2 0.3
Grand Total By 8 74 82 22.6
* Representing hotels leased from third party landlords which Wanda * EBRE=FEFTHEMHSERESE

Hotel Management Group manages and operates and Wanda
Hotel Management Group bear all of the costs associated with
renovation of these hotels.

* Representing franchised-and-managed hotel for which the
franchisee is responsible for the costs of renovation in accordance
with the standards set by Wanda Hotel Management Group.

Besides the above operating hotels, as at 31 December 2019, Wanda
Hotel Management Group also contracted to manage 69 hotels which
had not yet commenced operation and were under construction.
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Joint Venture Platform in the Americas and Chicago Project,
the United States of America

In July 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda
Commercial Properties (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd. (“Wanda HK”) to establish
a joint venture platform in the Americas with a total capital commitment
of HK$10 billion, in which the Company holds 60% and Wanda HK holds
40%, for the joint acquisition and development of suitable real property
projects in the Americas.

On the same day, through Wanda Chicago Real Estate LLC (“Wanda
Chicago”), a wholly owned subsidiary of this joint venture platform, the
Company and Wanda HK entered into (i) the formation and contribution
agreement with Magellan Parcel C/D LLC (“Magellan”) and Lakeshore
East LLC; and (ii) the operating agreement with Magellan to jointly
develop a project in Chicago (“Chicago Project”) in which Wanda
Chicago holds 90% and Magellan holds 10% of such joint venture.

The planned total gross floor area of the Chicago Project is
approximately 176,000 sg.m.. It is located in the heart of Chicago,
adjacent to Millennium Park and the Chicago CBD. Many of the well-
known destinations are within walking distance of the project, such
as the Theatre District, Museum Campus and Michigan Avenue, and
hence in excellent geographic location. The project is expected to be
developed into a 361-meter, 101-storey five-star hotel (with estimated
over 200 rooms) and high-end condominiums, which will be Chicago’s
third highest building upon completion and a new landmark in Chicago.
Pre-sale of high-end condominiums portion commenced in September
2015. The Chicago Project obtained planning approvals and completed
settlement in April 2016. Construction work commenced in August 2016
and is progressed as planned. The development of the Chicago Project
is expected to be completed by the end of 2020.

Business Review
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Guilin Project, the People's Republic of China ("PRC")

In February 2014, the Company acquired a piece of state-owned land
in Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC with Wanda
HK in the form of a joint venture, in which the Company holds 51% and
Wanda HK holds 49%. The project (“Guilin Project”) is located in the
central area of Guilin High-tech Zone, with planned total gross floor area
of approximately 330,000 sg.m., including 153,000 sg.m. of shopping
mall and 177,000 sg.m. of retail, residential and other properties for sale.

The construction work of the Guilin Project has completed and the
shopping mall opened in September 2015. With satisfactory commercial
leases and operating conditions, the shopping mall has become a
supreme landmark business centre in Guilin.

Hengli City, Fuzhou, the PRC

The total gross floor area of Hengli City is approximately 242,000
sg.m.. The project is a residential, office and retail complex located in
Fuzhou, the PRC. On 13 December 2019, the Company as vendor and
Zhizun Holdings Limited as purchaser entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in respect of the disposal of the 53% of the issued share
capital of Amazing Wise Limited (“Amazing Wise”), the holding company
of Hengli City, for a total consideration of HK$2,000,000. The disposal
was completed on 27 December 2019 and as from the completion date,
the Company no longer has any interest in the Hengli City project.

8 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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OUTLOOK

Following the injection of Wanda Hotel Management Group, the Group’s
strategies under the business transformation are to focus on fee-based
businesses, to improve cash flow, and to reduce leverage with the
following initiatives:

1. To continue to monetize prior property investments. The Group
views that potential disposal of the Chicago Project at current
market level can help realize value of the investments and reduce
current and future indebtedness (for project construction loans
purpose). Hence the Group has been in active discussions with
potential buyers for the disposal of the Chicago Project;

2. To capitalize on the hotel management expertise of the Group (e.g.
hotel design, construction and operation management, etc.) where
the Group can potentially develop into an industry leader in China;
and

3. To improve the operating efficiency of the Guilin Project through
cost control and targeted marketing, while at the same time
evaluate future plans regarding the asset.

During the year, the Company has executed the above strategy including
disposing of the Group’s remaining 53% equity interest in Amazing
Wise and focusing on the fee-based businesses. The Group expects
to continue adopting the same strategies in the coming years and the
Group will continue to prudently seek profitable investment opportunities,
further expand the Group’s sources of revenue, enhance the Group’s
profitability and maximize return for its shareholders.

The Group’s fee-based businesses operates mainly in the PRC. Since
the beginning of 2020 and up to the date of this report, the PRC has
been affected by the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia
(COVID-19) (the “Pandemic”). The Board has been monitoring the
development of the Pandemic and is continuously assessing its impact
to the Group’s operations. As at the date of this report, the degree of the
impact and duration of the Pandemic remains uncertain to the Board
but the Board will continue to pay close attention to its development and
evaluate its impact on the Company’s operations, and respond or make
announcement(s) as appropriate if necessary.

Business Review
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Financial Review

Br %51 RR

Since June 2019, the Company has been in active discussions with
potential buyers for the disposal of the Company’s interest in Parcel
C LLC (“Parcel C”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
holding Chicago Project. As at 31 December 2019, the negotiations
for the sale were in progress and Parcel C was hence classified as a
disposal company held for sale and as a discontinued operation.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has decided
to cease its business of development and sale of properties in the PRC.
Therefore, the segment of development and sale of properties was also
classified as discontinued operation and the comparative figures for the
year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reflect the above
change.

The Group has identified three business segments to better reflect its
current operating businesses as below: —

1. Leasing and management of commercial properties held by the
Group for long-term investment;

2. Hotel operations and management services; and

3. Hotel design and construction management services.
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Revenue

The Group reported revenue (from continuing operations) of
approximately HK$812.9 million in 2019 (2018 restated: HK$812.3
million) and can be analyzed as below: —

Financial Review
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2019 2018 Changes
—E-hEFE ZZTN\F oy
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FHET FAT FAT %
(restated)
(geE5)
Investment properties leasing HEMERERER
and management 149,118 168,736 (19,618) (11.6)
Hotel operations )G & B M EER
and management services 471,229 429,181 42,048 9.8
Hotel design and construction BIES AT R ER
management services BRI 192,601 214,403 (21,802) (10.2)
Total 5t 812,948 812,320 628 0.1

Investment properties leasing and management segment revenue
decreased by approximately 11.6% to HK$149.1 million mainly because
the rental income received from Hengli City during the year ended 31
December 2019 dropped.

Revenue from hotel operations and management services for the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$471.2
million, representing an increase of approximately 9.8% as compared to
approximately HK$429.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Such increase was mainly driven by an increase in the number of hotels
under management and newly opened hotels during 2019.

Revenue from hotel design and construction management services
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$192.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately 10.2%
as compared to approximately HK$214.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such decrease was mainly due to having several
projects that progressed faster than expected or completed in 2018,
resulting in less fee income received in 2019 than originally planned.
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Financial Review

Br %51 RR

Segment results

The following table illustrates the segment results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 (restated) respectively: —

PaEiE 3

TREAAEEDFHINBE-_S-NFER-F
—NFt+=-A=+— Etifﬂﬁ”*ﬂ%i‘t(i‘“
853 —

2019 2018 Changes
—E-hE —ZT—N\F b
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
FER THET TET %
(restated)
(&&&75)
Investment properties leasing WEWFHERER
and management (666,196) (293,873) (372,323) 126.7
Hotel operations BE &8 & B RS
and management services 176,162 236,810 (60,648) (25.6)
Hotel design and construction G R AT SRR
management services BER 57,037 116,680 (59,643) (51.1)
Total @5t (432,997) 59,617 (492,614) (826.3)

The measure used for reporting segment results is profit/(loss) before
tax.

Investment properties leasing and management segment loss increased
by about 126.7% to approximately HK$666.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, as compared to HK$293.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Such significant increase in loss was
principally attributable to a net valuation loss of investment properties in
Hengli City of approximately HK$788.6 million provided during the year
ended 31 December 2019, as compared to approximately HK$430.8
million provided during 2018.
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Hotel operations and management services segment profit decreased by
about 25.6% to approximately HK$176.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, as compared to HK$236.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such decrease in profit was due to higher staff
costs resulting from increase in headcount for development of midscale
business during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Hotel design and construction management services segment
profit halved to approximately HK$57 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, as compared to HK$116.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such decrease in profit was due to higher staff
costs resulting from increase in headcount during the year ended 31
December 2019.

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
During the year, the Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders of the

Company amounted to approximately HK$150.4 million (2018 restated:
profit of HK$766.7 million) with the breakdown set out as below: —

Financial Review
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2019 2018 Changes
=t WY —E-N\F )
$’°000 $'000 $’000
Frx T T
(Restated)
(g&ES))
(Loss)/profit attributable to BRI B AN
the equity holders of the parent: (E518) wF)
— From continuing operations — REFELEER (248,092) 15,818 (263,910)
— From discontinued operations — REKRIEEEET 97,705 750,898 (653,193)
Total et (150,387) 766,716 (917,103)
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Financial Review

Br %51 RR

The increase in loss attributable to the equity holders of the parent was
mainly driven by: i) significant decrease of disposal gain of approximately
HK$778.9 million, due to approximately HK$136.8 million disposal gain
from Hengli City for the year ended 31 December 2019, as compared
to approximately HK$915.7 million gain from disposal of the Australia
and London projects for the year ended 31 December 2018 (for details
of the disposal of the London and Australia projects, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 16 January 2018 and 29
January 2018 and circulars of the Company dated 15 March 2018 and
22 February 2018 respectively); ii) significant increase in net valuation
loss of investment properties in Hengli City by approximately HK$357.8
million as abovementioned; offset by iii) an increase in other net gains of
approximately HK$40.8 million, primarily resulting from compensation
of HK$33.2 million for early lease termination received from the tenant
in Hengli City; and iv) reversal of deferred tax previously provided for
the revaluation of properties in Hengli City of approximately HK$153.6
million.

Deposits and other receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had deposits and other receivables
of approximately HK$25.9 million (2018: approximately HK$1,767.9
million). The decrease in deposits and other receivables was mainly
due to (i) receipts of the proceeds receivables from the disposal of
the London and Australia Projects during the year, amounting to
GBP60,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$590,382,000) and
AUD25,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$159,098,000); (ii)
assignment of receivables, amounting to a total of approximately
HK$798.2 million, from the disposal of London and Australia Projects
to Wanda HK, as announced by the Company on 18 October 2019
and was completed on 17 December 2019; and (iii) the refund of a
deposit made in 2018 to the Australian Taxation Office in relation to the
disposal of interest in Wanda Australia Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd.,
amounting to approximately HK$187.2 million during the year.

14 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

HAREERFAAZEEEEIENEZERAH
RDBERBEE-Z—hF+-A=+—AHL
FIE R EE N & Kz 49 136,800,000 74
T MEBE—E—N\F+_A=1+—HLEHF
JE RN R BB B M IE £Y 915,700,000
BT BB W E R E T %4 778,900,0008
T(EEHERBALSLBMBEENFE  F2
ARG AN AZZE—N\F—A+<AH
EZE-N\F-—AZ+NLEHNRE  EEAARQ
AHEBSNAEZZE—N\F=-A+RAAR=Z
—NFZRAZTZH®BE) i) 0 X
i B R E MG EEEFREARY
hN#9357,800,000 8 LTS : B T 5 A XK
Sl ) i W 2 5 BB 3 N4 40,800,000 7 T
TEHRAEBEARBES RRAKEREMmMEL
B% 133,200,000 7% 7T AT 2 ¢ Kiv) # B 5% A
EHEMENBYEMNEENETHIERELD
153,600,000 87T °

Be REBRKRIR

N_Z—h&E+-_A=+—8 AE£EHE
& RE M EUFRIE 49 25,900,0008 L (=%
—\4E : #91,767,900,00087T) ° &4 K E A
FEMCRIER A E ZHR () WEIFAKE B E R
BN IE B 2 & U FT 15 3018 60,000,000 &
# (FEH#47590,382,00078 7T) & 25,000,000
SR IT (FRE A #) 159,098,000 7T ) + (i) a0 A&
RANZZE—NF+ATNBHIRE  AEE
HAERNRE D EmIUORIMNIEB B EKGIE
& #£49798,200,000/8 7T * WERZT—NF
+=A+tEBZEK R\ FRERR =Z—/\
FriHEBERMOEREBRA R 2
RN RIS R S 4N 2 12 & %9 187,200,000 7
T e



Investment properties

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had investment properties of
approximately HK$1,509.2 million (2018: approximately HK$3,345.2
million). The decrease in the amount of investment properties was mainly
due to (i) a net valuation loss of investment properties in Hengli City
of approximately HK$788.6 million; and (i) the disposal of investment
properties of approximately HK$980.9 million from Hengli City during the
year.

Net assets and equity attributable to equity holders

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded total assets and total
liabilities of approximately HK$9,593 million and HK$6,949.7 million
respectively. The Group had net assets of approximately HK$2,643.3
million as at 31 December 2019 as compared to approximately
HK$3,207.4 million as at 31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2019,
the equity attributable to equity holders of the parent was approximately
HK$1,921.5 million as compared to HK$2,220.1 million as at 31
December 2018.

Liquidity, borrowing and financial resources

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$2,453.9 million as at 31 December 2019 as compared with
HK$2,746.3 million as at 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly
due to repayment of other payables and loans from an intermediate
holding company. About 86%, 11%, 2% and 1% of the cash and bank
balances were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), Australia Dollar
(*AUD”), United States Dollar (“USD”) and Hong Kong Dollar. As at 31
December 2019, the current ratio, which is the quotient arrived at by
dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 1.19 as compared with
1.26 as at 31 December 2018.
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The following table sets out the debt and borrowings of the Group with

its maturity profile:

TREFINEE 2 EHRERZBIHER -

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=B=+—-H +ZA=+—H
$°000 $000
F T
Debts and borrowings BERER
Interest bearing: FTE
— Loans from financial institutions — SRIEEE R - 1,192,857
— Loan from a financial institution — DHEARBIELREZ
classified as held for sale — IS REIEER 973,475 —
— Other borrowings — HAER - 385,592
— Loans from an intermediate — —FAIREER AR E R
holding company 3,513,166 1,380,150
Non-interest bearing: TR
— Loans from an intermediate — —FAIREER AR E R
holding company 674,416 743,660
Total debts and borrowings B R iE 4B 5,161,057 3,702,259
Repayable: B
— Within one year — —FR 4,187,582 1,504,398
— After one year but within two years — —FIREMFR - 1,146,484
— After two years but within five years — WFRETFA 973,475 1,051,377
5,161,057 3,702,259
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31 December 31 December

2019 2018
—E-hE  —TNF
+=A=+-8 +z=ZA=+—H
$°000 $'000
F Tt
Cash and bank balances RERBITEER
— Cash and cash equivalents —RENREEEY 2,421,957 2,741,296
— Restricted bank deposits — ZRHIIRITER - 5,002
— Cash and bank balances classified — P HEABIEREZRER
as held for sale ReSEY 28,489 —
— Restricted bank deposits classified — DEAFBEHE 2 X R
as held for sale RITER 3,434 -
Total cash and bank balances We RIRTTHEER R 2,453,880 2,746,298
Net debts (debts and borrowings minus &5 588 (/4 L EFURIE & &
cash and bank balances) RITEEER) 2,707,177 955,961
Total equity ks 2,643,310 3,207,391
Gearing ratio (net debts over aggregate of AANE (& & ({ERFEER A
net debts and total equity) R F R A 2 M) 50.6% 23%

The gearing ratio, which is the quotient arrived at by dividing net
debts by the aggregate of net debts and total equity, was 50.6% as at
31 December 2019 as compared with 23% as at 31 December 2018.
The rise in gearing ratio is mainly due to increase of loans from an
intermediate holding company.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s contracted commitment for
capital expenditure is approximately HK$2,735.8 million (As at 31
December 2018: HK$3,855.1 million).

R-Z—h&+-_A=+—8  BXREEL
K(ANEB FEMRUEL FREEBER 2
Fr3RE) £50.6%  MR=_ZZE—N\F+=A
=+—HBIA23% - BEABLHELANEE
F RS I — R AR R AR A 7] 2 ERETER o

RZB-NF+-A=1+—H AEFEELX
2 BT #7349 & 2,735,800,0005% 7T (A
—E—-NF+-A=+—H :3855,100,000
BIT) °
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Foreign currency and interest rate exposure

The Group’s business is principally conducted in RMB and USD. The
functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC and the
United States of America (the “USA”), are RMB and USD respectively
and these subsidiaries do not have significant monetary assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than their respective functional
currencies. The functional currency of the Group’s other subsidiaries
is Hong Kong Dollar. The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through loans that are denominated in USD. The Group maintains a
conservative approach on foreign exchange exposure management.
During the year, the Group did not use any financial instruments to
hedge against foreign currency exposure and the Group did not have
any hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2019.

During the year, the Group had interest-bearing loans from a financial
institution and an intermediate holding company. As at 31 December
2019, interest-bearing borrowings of HK$3,613.6 million, being
approximately 80.5% of the total interest-bearing borrowings, were on a
floating rate basis. The remaining interest-bearing borrowings of HK$873
million were on fixed interest rate basis. Accordingly, the Group’s cost of
borrowing was affected by fluctuations in interest rates. During the year,
the Group had monitored the suitability and cost efficiency of hedging
instruments and had considered a mix of fixed and floating rate loans in
order to manage interest rate risks. The Group will prudently consider
entering into currency and interest rate hedging arrangements to
minimise such exposures if and when appropriate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group pledged certain of its assets to
a financial institution in the PRC to secure the loan of approximately
HK$973.5 million granted by that financial institution. The aggregate
carrying value of these construction in progress, freehold land and
properties under development as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$864.1 million, HK$158.2 million and HK$3,878.8
million respectively.
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CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

There are no changes in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had provided guarantees in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$25.8 million (2018: HK$413.7
million) to banks in favour of its customers in respect of mortgaged loans
provided by the banks to these customers for their purchase of the
Group’s properties. Each of these guarantees would be released upon
the execution of individual purchasers’ collateral agreements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANY

On 27 December 2019, the Group completed the disposal of its
remaining 53% equity interest in Amazing Wise for a cash consideration
of HK$2,000,000 (“the Disposal”). Further details of the Disposal have
been set out in the Company’s announcements dated 13 December
2019, 27 December 2019 and 25 March 2020.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No Director has the right to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had around 534 full time
employees, who are located in the PRC, Hong Kong and the USA.

During the year, the Group remunerated its employees based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing market salaries. Performance
bonuses were granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
included insurance and medical cover, and subsidized educational and
training programs.
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DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is having significant
impact on the business operations of the Group, in particular on the
leasing of commercial properties as well as the hotel management
operations. The exact extent of the impact depends on the situation and
the duration of the pandemic and the impact on the macroeconomy.

Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group could not be
reasonably estimated at this stage and will be reflected in the Group’s
2020 interim and annual financial statements.
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Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ding Benxi, aged 65, has been a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board since July 2013. He was also an executive
director of DWCM and served in various positions of DWCM Group
from December 2009 to February 2020. He is also a director of Dalian
Wanda Group Co., Ltd. (“Dalian Wanda Group”). Before joining DWCM
in December 2009, Mr. Ding served in various positions of Dalian Wanda
Group, including president, chief executive officer and vice president.

Mr. Ding completed the correspondence course of Renmin University
of China (FEIARAE) in July 1998. He became a senior engineer of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation (FF B3 5& T2 42/Q 7))
in August 1997.

Mr. Zhang Lin, aged 48, has been a Non-executive Director since
November 2017. He has also been serving as the director of Dalian
Wanda Group since February 2011. Mr. Zhang has concurrently been
acting as the chairman and a director of Wanda Film Holding Co. Ltd
(BEBEZRMEBERAT]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code : 002739.S2) since November 2006; the chairman
and a director of AMC Entertainment Holdings, Inc. (a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange, stock code: AMC) from August 2012 to
12 March 2018 and from December 2019 onward; the chief executive
officer of Wanda Culture since December 2012; the president of Wanda
Culture since January 2014; the chairman of the board of Infront Holding
AG since July 2015; the chairman of World Triathlon Corporation since
November 2015; and the chairman of Wanda Sport Group Company
Limited (a company listed on the NASDAQ in the form of American
Depositary Receipts) since November 2018. In addition, Mr. Zhang had
also been a non-executive director of DWCM since December 2009 to
29 January 2016. He joined Dalian Wanda Group in March 2000 and
formerly held various positions, including but not limited to the vice
president of Dalian Wanda Group and the finance director of Dalian
Wanda Group and general manager of project companies in Chengdu,
Shenyang and Nanjing respectively. Mr. Zhang has extensive experience
in financial management and operation management of large property
development, property management, and entertainment corporations,
especially in corporate strategy and investment.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREER

Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
(LB RE) in July 1994 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting. In January 2012, Mr. Zhang received an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from Beijing University (1t XA E2). Mr.
Zhang is a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a non-practicing member of the China Certified
Tax Agents Association.

Mr. Han Xu, aged 49, has been a Non-executive Director since March
2019, has extensive experience in finance and general management.
From February 2020, Mr. Han has been serving as the Senior Vice
President of Dalian Wanda Group, a joint stock company incorporated
in the PRC with limited liability, and a controlling shareholder of the
Company and is responsible for overseeing all financial operations
of Dalian Wanda Group. Prior to that, since his joining of the Dalian
Wanda Group in 2002, Mr. Han served in various roles including General
Manager of Finance Department of DWCM (formerly known as Dalian
Wanda Commercial Properties Co. Ltd.), General Manager of the Group
Financial Management Center, President Assistant, Senior President
Assistant, and Vice President within the Dalian Wanda Group. He holds
a Master degree in Business Administration in Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ning Qifeng, aged 54, has been an Executive Director since
November 2017. Mr. Ning is also a first vice president of DWCM and
the president of Wanda Hotel Management (Shanghai) Co. Limited (&
EREEE(EE)BRAR). Mr. Ning had been a vice president of
DWCM from December 2009 to June 2015 and had been a senior vice
president of DWCM from June 2015 to July 2017. Mr. Ning formerly
also served as a first vice president of DWCM,; a vice president and an
assistant to the president of Dalian Wanda Group; the general manager
of Wanda Hotel Construction Ltd. (& )8 /5 £ :% 5 R A 7)) and the dean
of Wanda Commercial Planning and Research Institute (& EE %2
ft2eht ). Mr. Ning has extensive experience in property development
and property management (including hotel development and hotel
construction management).

Mr. Ning obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering from Northwest
Architecture Engineering Institute (FaibiZE TI22E7) in July 1986,
a master’s degree in engineering from Northwest Metallurgical
Construction Institute (FA3k/a8 & EEEET) in July 1992 and a Ph.D in
engineering from Tongiji University (B A2 in May 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Zhiping, aged 56, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since March 2018. He studied at the China Textile University
(currently known as Donghua University) in Mechanical Engineering
in 1979 and graduated with a master degree in engineering in 1986.
Since 1987, Mr. He has previously served as the assistant to the general
manager of the United Rail Ltd, Shenzhen Branch of China Nonferrous
Metals Company (FEIE 2B RIS AR NEERAT), the
assistant to the general manager and vice general manager of Hainan
Sanya Huaya Enterprise Group Corporation (/8F =arfEan ¥ EE
A7) and a director of China Great Wall Securities, LLC (R#EH A
[RE LA R]). He was a non-executive director of AviChina Industry &
Technology Company Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2357) from August 2016 to May 2019.
He is currently the chairman of the board of directors of China Wall King
Holding Co., Ltd (FEIZEZK EZEKER 2 =l). From December 2019
onward, Mr. He has also been serving as a director and a vice chairman
of JA Solar Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002459). Mr. He also serves social
positions such as executive vice president of Gan General Chamber
of Commerce, executive president of Shenzhen Jiangxi Chamber of
Commerce and the Council of Donghua University.

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng, aged 49, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director since March 2019. He is experienced in mergers and
acquisitions and strategic management. From January 2017, Dr. Teng
has been serving as an independent non-executive director in Haisco
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (8B RIEZEEBERHERAT), a
company whose shares are listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002653). He has been an independent non-executive
director of Aoshikang Technology Co. Ltd. (B+ERIERMDARA
7)), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002913) since November 2018. He has been an independent non-
executive director in Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited
Company, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 6869) since January 2020. Prior to
that, he was an independent non-executive director of (i) Shandong Gold
Mining Co., Ltd. (1R E ST E % B R A 7)), a company whose shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:
1787) in 2018 and The Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600547)
in 2003, from 2014 to 2017; and (i) ZTE Corporation (7 # Bz 1D A
fR/AF]), a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:763) and The Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000063), from 2015 to 2018. Dr. Teng served
as an assistant professor and then associate professor of strategic
management at The George Washington University from August 1998
to December 2006. He then joined Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business (KT ZPx) in January 2007 as an associate professor
and was promoted as a professor in February 2017 and has been the
associate dean there since April 2009. Dr. Teng holds a doctorate of
strategic management degree from City University of New York.
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Dr. Chen Yan, aged 58, has been an independent Non-executive
Director since March 2019. She has extensive experience in accounting.
From July 2005, Dr. Chen has been a professor in accounting at the
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (R1t814E A E3), She is
also an evaluation expert in financial accounting of the China Scholarship
Council (BAREBEHEEZEEE) since 2015, and an internal control
specialist and financial advisor at Dalian Fang Yuan CPA Co., Ltd (X
#EHEgFHANEB AR A R]) since 2017. From 2014 to 2017, she
was involved in the risk assessment and review of the internal control
systems of various research institutes and organizations for and on
behalf of the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics. She was a
deputy director of the Accounting Department from 2003 to 2007 of the
same university. From March 2018, Dr. Chen has been serving as the
independent director of Liaoning SC Technology Co., Limited (% &
SEHERE D AR A A), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. Dr. Chen holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree in
Accounting from the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (3
1B A K E) and is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (PRI & &A% E) and a senior
member of the Accounting Society of China (Bl €:t£:%). She was
also a former member of the American Accounting Association and the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley, aged 52, joined the Group in December
2000. She is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is responsible
for the company secretarial affairs of the Group. Ms. Hui has over 20
years of professional experience in public accounting and corporate
finance. She is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She is also a member of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the Hong Kong
Securities Institute.

Mr. Chan Wan Woon, aged 35, joined the Group in June 2016.
He is the Deputy Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Chan
holds a Master of Corporate Governance degree from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He has more than 10 years of
professional experience in accounting and auditing.
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The Directors are pleased to submit the annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and the Group are property
development, property investment and management, hotel operation
and management, hotel design and construction management services.
The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 1 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2019
is presented in Chairman’s Statement, Business Review and Financial
Review on page 4, pages 5 to 9 and pages 10 to 20 respectively. The
Financial Review also includes an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 in terms of financial
key performance indicators on page 15. Likely future developments
in the Group’s business are disclosed in Chairman’s Statement and
Outlook section of Business Review which forms part of this Directors’
Report on page 4 and page 9 respectively. The geographical analysis
of the Group’s revenue and operating profit is set out in note 4 to the
financial statements. The particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since 31 December 2019 (including but not
limited to transactions in relation to subsidiaries) are set out in Financial
Review on page 20.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in
Business Review and note 40 to the financial statements on pages 5
to 9 and pages 254 to 263 respectively, with financial risk management
policies and practices of the Group covered under the aforesaid note 40
to the financial statements.

The Group is committed to the sound performance of its corporate
social responsibilities and believes that a high standard of performance
is very helpful for maintaining sound relationships between corporate
and society as well as promoting staff confidence. The Group is a
keen supporter of environmental protection and takes the protection
of ecological environment and promotion of sustainable development
as its goal. We have introduced eco-friendly measures in our business
of property development, leasing and management. For instance, we
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have reduced our carbon emission by implementing green building and
energy-saving measures. We have also reduced the potential impact
of our business on the ecological environment through proper waste
disposal. Further discussion of environmental, social and governance
matters, covering the Group’s environmental policies and performance
is set out in Corporate Governance Report and Environmental, Social
and Governance Report on pages 53 to 75 and pages 76 to 102
respectively.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such rules and
regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating system and
staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators through
effective communications. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with all relevant
rules and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.

The Company strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
providing quality services for our customers and collaborating with our
suppliers. To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-
oriented culture within the Company, we take ‘Customer First’ as one
of our core values. We value feedback from customers and have also
established the mechanism in handling customer service, support and
complaints. We also proactively collaborate with our suppliers and
contractors to deliver quality and sustainable products and services. We
have developed certain requirements in our standard tender documents.
These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour practices,
anti-corruption and other business ethics.

The Group values its employees and encourages its staff to achieve
a good work-life balance. The Group continued to devote resources
to improve staff benefits with a view to improving staff morale as well
as attracting and retaining talents. We have established fair, open and
comprehensive employment policies to attract talent.

The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Directors’ Report.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 110 to 113 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable, stable and continuing dividend policy. The Company’s
dividend policy aims to strike a balance between allowing Shareholders
to participate in the Company’s profit and allowing the Company to retain
adequate reserves for business operations and future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider in
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company and applicable laws
and regulations, with various factors including (i) the earnings per share
of the Company; (i) the reasonable return in investment of investors and
Shareholders in order to provide incentive to them to continue to support
the Company in its long-term development; (iii) the financial conditions
and business plan of the Company; and (iv) the market sentiment and
circumstances. Compliant with the conditions under the dividend policy,
the Board may propose final dividends, interim dividends or special
dividends distribution as the Board considers appropriate based on the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company. The Company
shall review and reassess the dividend policy and its effectiveness on a
regular basis or when necessary.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has made donations of approximately
HK$160,000 in total.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 74.0% of the Group’s total sales in
2019 while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 37.5% of the Group’s total sales in 2019.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers comprised approximately 90.5% of the Group’s
total purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately 57.2% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any interest in the five largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements,
is set out on pages 266 to 267. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group
are shown on page 268 of the annual report.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme in Hong Kong
and certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to pension schemes operated
by the respective governments. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension schemes is to pay the required ongoing
contributions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Lin
Mr. Han Xu
(appointed with effect from 14 March 2019)
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris
(resigned with effect from 13 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"):
Mr. He Zhiping
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng
(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019)
Dr. Chen Yan
(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019)
Mr. Liu Jipeng
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019)
Dr. Xue Yunkui
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019)
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In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or, if their number is not three or a multiple by three, then the number
nearest one-third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire
in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors on the
same day shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
The Company at any general meeting at which any Directors retire may
fill the vacated offices.

In accordance with code provision A.4.2 in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All of the directors of the Company have entered into services contracts
with the Company. The term of appointment of Mr. Ding Benxi is 3 years
from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016; the term of appointment of Mr. Ning
Qifeng and Mr. Zhang Lin is 3 years from 17 November 2017 to 16
November 2020; the term of appointment of Mr. He Zhiping is 3 years
from 29 March 2018 to 28 March 2021; the term of appointment of
Mr. Han Xu is 3 years from 14 March 2019 to 13 March 2022; the term
of appointment of Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan is 3 years
from 21 March 2019 to 20 March 2022; each of which is renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party. None of the above service contracts is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordnance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

Interests in shares of DWCM (Note 1)
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Approximate

Long percentage of

position/ the issued

Short Capacity/Nature Interest in share capital

Name of Director position of interest Shares of DWCM of DWCM
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Mr. Ding Benxi Long Beneficial owner 50,000,000 1.10%
TRBFESE HE BEHEEAA

Mr. Ning Qifeng Long Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.13%
EHEEE TR Ema A

Mr. Zhang Lin Long Beneficial owner 10,000,000 0.22%
SRR ST "R BEmEAA

Mr. Han Xu Long Beneficial owner 1,600,000 0.035%
BIBEA oY) BHEAA

Mr. He Zhiping Long Beneficial owner 25,000,000 0.55%
G "R EmEAA

Notes: Ff5E

(1) DWCM, being an indirect holding company of the Company, is an
associated company of the Company under Part XV of the SFO. The
calculation is based on the total number of 4,527,347,600 shares in issue
as at 31 December 2019.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief executive
of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which have been entered in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or which have been
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company did not have any effective share option scheme during the
year ended and as at 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors nor chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group were as follows:
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Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RAATF RAEAT
B3 B 468 S2EITREZ
e/ EB HRe/ KE 51 fEmHEE Rz s BAEDL
Wanda Commercial Long Beneficial owner 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Properties Overseas
Limited
(“Wanda Overseas”)
BENEMEGINGRAR A EREAA
(I&EEIN)
Wanda Real Estate Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Investments Limited corporation (Note 1)
EEMWERERRAT e MNRIEHER 2 s
(MHE1)
Wanda HK Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 2)
BERE e NEIEHER 2 s
(Mt3E2)
DWCM Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 3)
NEEEMFEEE A REIEHER 2 s
(M:E3)
Dalian Wanda Group Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 4)
RNEBEEE A REEHER 2 s
(M 4)
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Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RARAF EARAF
IR0 K 1888 ERITRAZ
rE, EH ) 1, WiEE Rt b 2 BREA
Dalian Hexing Investment Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Co., Ltd. corporation (Note 5)
(“Dalian Hexing”)
RNERERERR AT HE MREPEGDER 2 #Es
(TREAHE]) (M4 5)
Mr. Wang Jianlin Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 6)
FRMmELE HE MEEGLERE 2 #ES
(Kizx6)
Mr. Chen Chang Wei Long Beneficial owner 278,098,230 5.92%
(“Mr. Chen”) and held by controlled
corporation (Note 7)
BRRESRE e BamEa AR
(MBR5E&D) B IEHEE
A (fE7)
Long Interest of spouse 23,600,000 0.50%
(Notes 7 and 8)
"R [iRREE
(FFE7 % 8)
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni Long Beneficial owner 23,600,000 0.50%
FRXR e 22+ TR BEmEa A
Long Interest of spouse 278,098,230 5.92%
(Note 9)
HE fo B s (FiEE9)
Ever Good Luck Limited Long Beneficial owner 73,860,230 1.57%
(Note 10)
Ever Good Luck Limited IS~ EmlEA
(KzE10)
Long Trustee 204,237,800 4.35%
e HFEA



Notes:

Wanda Real Estate Investments Limited holds more than one-third of
the issued shares of Wanda Overseas and is therefore deemed to have
an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which
Wanda Overseas is interested.

Wanda HK holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited and is therefore deemed to have an interest in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi,
being a non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board, was a director
of Wanda HK until 17 February 2020.

DWCM holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda HK and
is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company in which Wanda HK is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding
Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, was
an executive director and the chairman of the board of directors of DWCM
until 10 February 2020. Mr. Ning Qifeng, being an Executive Director, is a
chief vice president of DWCM.

Dalian Wanda Group holds more than one-third of the issued shares
of DWCM and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which DWCM is deemed to
be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board, is a director of Dalian Wanda Group. Mr. Zhang Lin,
being a Non-executive Director, is a director of Dalian Wanda Group.

Dalian Hexing holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Wanda Group and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Wanda Group is
deemed to be interested.

Mr. Wang Jianlin holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Hexing and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Hexing is deemed to be
interested.

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Chen was deemed to have a long position of
301,698,230 Shares, of which (i) 200 Shares were beneficially and legally
owned by him, (i) 204,237,800 Shares were held on trust for him by Ever
Good Luck Limited (“Ever Good”), (iii) 73,860,230 Shares were beneficially
owned by Ever Good, and (iv) 23,600,000 Shares were held by his spouse,
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni, as beneficial owner.
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8) Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen.

9 Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen. Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company in
which Mr. Chen is interested.

(10) The entire issued share capital of Ever Good Luck Limited is ultimately
owned by Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen is the sole director of Ever Good Luck
Limited. See note (7) in the section headed “Discloseable interest and short
positions of shareholders under the SFO” in this Directors’ Report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Group has conducted the following connected transactions during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Assignment of the London Project Receivables and Australia
Projects Receivables

On 18 October 2019, the Company and Wanda HK entered into a
deed of assignment pursuant to which the Company agreed to assign
to Wanda HK and Wanda HK has agreed to accept the rights, title and
benefits in and to and arising from the receivables in the aggregate
amount of £24,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$241,392,000)
due to the Company owing to the Group’s disposal of the London
property project, details of which are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 January 2018 (“London Project Receivables”).

On the same date, Wanda Australia Real Estate Investment Co., Limited
(“Wanda Australia RE”) entered into a deed of assignment with Wanda
HK pursuant to which Wanda Australia RE agreed to assign to Wanda
HK and Wanda HK has agreed to accept the rights, title and benefits
in and to and arising from the receivables in the aggregate amount of
AU$105,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$556,773,000) due
to Wanda Australia RE owing to the Group’s disposal of the Australia
property projects, details of which are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 January 2018 (“Australia Projects Receivables”).

The assignments of the London Project Receivables and the Australia
Projects Receivables (“Assignments”) were approved in the special
general meeting convened on 17 December 2019 and completed on the
same date.

Wanda Australia RE is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Since Wanda HK is directly and wholly-owned by DWCM, an indirect
holding company and a controlling shareholder and therefore a
connected person of the Company, Wanda HK is an associate of DWCM
and therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Assignments are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 18 October 2019.

Disposal of 53% interest in Amazing Wise

On 18 December 2019, the Company as vendor and Zhizun Holdings
Limited (“Zhizun”) as purchaser entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell, and Zhizun
agreed to acquire the sale shares representing approximately 53% of
the issued share capital of Amazing Wise for a total consideration of
HK$2,000,000. Mr. Chen Chang Wei (“Mr. Chen”), beneficial owner of
the entire issued share capital of Zhizun, is a guarantor of the Zhizun’s
obligations under the sale and purchase agreement (“Disposal”).
Amazing Wise was a subsidiary of the Company which indirectly held
100% interest in the Hengli City project. The Disposal was completed on
27 December 2019.

Immediately prior to completion of the Disposal, Amazing Wise was a
53% owned subsidiary of the Company and the remaining 47% equity
interest in Amazing Wise was held by Zhizun. Therefore, Zhizun was a
substantial shareholder of Amazing Wise and a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level. Mr. Chen was a director of Amazing
Wise and is therefore also a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level.

Further details of the Disposal are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 13 December 2019.

Directors’ Report
EEEHRES

BREERBHANR 2 BRERA R RER
BRANEEEZHXEEERE2ERBLAILS
RRAPZBBEANL MBETER/KNERER
EEEZBMEALFNARE EHRSBARE
ZREAL -

REWETE—SHERRAATAMA=T
—hE+AHNBZRE -

H &7 Amazing Wise 2 53% &

RZZE—NF+ZA+=8" ' ARF(ERE
75 ) B2 Zhizun Holdings Limited ([ Zhizun ) ({E
REAFFVEERZ Bt AAFRAE
& T Zhizun [B) & Uk B8 15 & A% 19 (1 Amazing
Wise B B1TIRARK953%) - #8KE /2,000,000
BT e RERELRE(RESE] Zhizun2FE
BITIRAZ BREA AN) RZhizun TN B & %
BETEAZERATHEFIE]) - Amazing
Wise BA R F ZH B AT - il Amazing Wise
MERFEEAIMIER 2 100% #ax - HEEE
R-ZE—NE+-A-++tH=K-

SR HEF AR © Amazing Wise &8 A &)
A 53% < MB AR - i Amazing Wise 2
T 47% BERERI B Zhizun A AL » Zhizun
A Amazing Wise 2 T ZRE W B QA E
A EBARAREEAT o &% 4 BAmazing
Wise2EE - IEMBARER LTBAR
RIEEAT -

HEFEL S HERRAATAMAT
—hETZAT=AZAL -

BEBERRERAA 37
ZE-NFEFR



Directors' Report
EEEHRES

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted the following continuing connected
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground
and related business (“Kidsland Tenancy Agreement”)

Pursuant to the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement dated 8 June 2015
entered into between Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza Co., Ltd. (“Guilin
Project Company”) as landlord and Wanda Kidsplace Group Co. Limited,
formerly known as Wanda Kidsland Co. Limited (“Wanda Kidsland”) as
tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC,
was leased for a term of five years commencing from 12 September
2015 to 11 September 2020 for the operation of children entertainment
and playground business and other related business, including the sale
of kids clothing and food and beverage. A supplemental deed dated 2
August 2019 was entered into by the same parties to amend the size of
the area leased under the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Wanda Kidsland is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wang
Jianlin who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Wanda Kidsland
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2019 was RMB1,519,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB1,341,000.

Leasing of premises for operation of cinema and related
business (“Cinema Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Cinema Tenancy Agreement dated 8 September 2015
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Wanda
Film Holding Co., Ltd* (formerly known as Wanda Cinema Line Holding
Co., Ltd) and Nanning Wanda International Movie Mall Company
Limited* as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin
City, the PRC, was leased for a term of 20 years commencing from 12
September 2015 to 11 September 2035 for the operation of cinema
business and related business, including sale of food and beverages.

38 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

HEBEEXS

FEETATRERERERS -

HEMRUEE REREY  BERER
HHEIR ([ R EREEE = )

BREEMNEFTEERSERAA ([ HEMRIER
RNEl - ER¥X)HEBEBETEEBRA
Al (AIEEEREREGRAR) ((BERER
| ERHEP )R -_E—RESNANBE LY
FRERLEAE W - (AP BEERTENS T
B & TEn TIHERNEERERER
RIS EBA R A MR - BEEEEE
IERBEMESRE - HHR =T —RAFHLA+=
ARE-_ZT_ZTFNA+—HI BEAF -
ZEINANMENASA—TE-—NAFENAZ
B2 ZIEMER] R EREA EH#E
B2 EERE -

HMIEERARRARBIZEZIFEZENBR
A - IR B EREREHANF 2 ERBIRE
HEEMEEERA  #SRBELTRAY B
ERBRBEB/ARNBZBEAL -

i

ETE-AF+-_A=+—RHILFE RE
RETAEHZHB NEMEMER AR He85
ZEEFRAARE 1,519,000t 0 MEAZ
ERSEAHARYE1,341,0007T °

=

HEYMREEETRRREERS
(TERaEE )

REBEMAR AR ((EAFT) BEEEXRND
BRAF (A BEEZRGRMNBERLIF D)
LEBEEEEREZRARRA(ERER)
R-Z-AFNANRBFLZEZ R GEER
& PEEMTENSHES A THOER
HERNREEXRREBMEEEYR - 8255
HERMERY - AR —F—AFNLA+=
FEE—FT=-AFNA+—BL  "H20F -



Pursuant to a deed of novation between Wanda Cinema, Nanning
Wanda International Movie Mall Company Limited (“Nanning Wanda
Cinema”) and Guilin Project Company dated 2 August 2019, Wanda
Cinema agreed to transfer and Nanning Wanda Cinema agreed to
assume all of Wanda Cinema’s rights and obligations in and under
the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the remaining term of the Cinema
Tenancy Agreement as from 2 August 2019 and Guilin Project Company
agreed to such novation.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Cinema and Nanning Wanda Cinema are
indirectly wholly-owned by Dalian Wanda Group which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Wanda Cinema and Nanning Wanda
Cinema are connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2019 was RMB3,954,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB1,034,000 and RMB1,104,000, respectively.

Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground
and other related business under the brand of “"Wanda
Kidsplace * (B2 B £ )" ("Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement dated 29 June 2018
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin
Gaoxin Wanda Kids Entertainment Co., Ltd (“Guilin Wanda Kids”) as
tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC,
was leased for a term of ten years commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30
June 2028 for the operation of children entertainment and playground
business and other related business, including the sale of kids clothing
and food and beverage, under the brand of “Wanda Kidsplace * (& %
Z B T)". Supplemental deed dated 2 August 2019 was entered into
by the same parties to amend the size of the area leased under the
Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Guilin Wanda Kids is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wang Jianlin who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Guilin
Wanda Kids is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB150,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB112,000.

Leasing of premises for kids experience business under the
brand of "Wanda Kidsplace International Early Education Club*
(BEEE R ITEBEZHELER)" (“Early Education Tenancy

Agreement")

Pursuant to the Early Education Tenancy Agreement dated 29 June
2018 entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and
Horgos Wanda Education Technology Co., Ltd Guilin Branch (“Horgos
Wanda Education”) as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza
in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of five years commencing
from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2022 for the operation of kids experience
business under the brand of “Wanda Kidsplace International Early
Education Club * (£ E B TEIFR F 2B L4 50)”. A supplemental deed
dated 2 August 2019 was entered into by the same parties to amend the
size of the area leased under the Early Education Tenancy Agreement.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Horgos Wanda Education is indirectly wholly-owned by
Dalian Wanda Group who is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
Horgos Wanda Education is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Early Education Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB747,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB686,000.

Leasing of premises for carpark business (“Carpark Tenancy
Agreement")

Pursuant to the Carpark Tenancy Agreement dated 28 June 2019
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin
Wanda Shopping Plaza Business Management Co., Ltd (“Wanda Plaza
Business Management”) as tenant, certain carpark premises of the Guilin
Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of three years
commencing from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022 for the operation of
carpark business.
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Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Wanda Plaza Business Management is indirectly wholly-
owned by DWCM who is an indirect holding company and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Wanda Plaza Business Management is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total amount payable to the Guilin Project
Company under the Carpark Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB2,780,000, and the actual amount incurred
was approximately RMB2,484,000.

Provision of hotel management services to DWCM

Pursuant to the hotel management framework agreement (the “Hotel
Management Framework Agreement”) dated 13 November 2018 entered
into between the Company and DWCM, DWCM may from time to time
engage the Group (including Wanda Hotel Management Group) to
provide hotel management services (the “Hotel Management Services”)
which may include, among others:

—  pre-opening support and technical advisory services regarding
specification standards required for hotels being managed
and other coordination services to facilitate the pre-opening
preparation;

—  procurement of services and products for operation of hotels;

— carrying out marketing and business development activities and
providing accounting, finance, human resources and information
technology functions;

—  setting the prices of guest rooms and other services; and

—  other relevant functions and services for the operation of hotels
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for the property projects of DWCM for a term from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2038. Members of the Group and DWCM Group shall enter
into separate agreements (“Individual Hotel Management Agreement(s)”)
in relation to the provision of Hotel Management Services for relevant
projects, which shall be subject to the terms and conditions under the
Hotel Management Framework Agreement and the applicable annual
caps. The duration of each Individual Hotel Management Agreement shall
not exceed the term of the Hotel Management Framework Agreement
and the terms of the Individual Hotel Management Agreements shall be
made on normal commercial terms. DWCM is a controlling shareholder
of the Company, and DWCM Group is a connected person of the
Company and the Hotel Management Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The service fees payable by the DWCM Group to the Group for the Hotel
Management Services for each hotel shall be fair and reasonable and
shall be charged on the following basis:

(i) management fees comprising a base management fee at a rate of
2.5% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel and an
incentive management fee at a rate between 6% and 8% (inclusive)
of the gross operating profit of the relevant hotel;

(i) group service fees for the relevant financial, human resources and/
or information technology services provided by the Group charged
at a rate of 2% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel;

(i)  pre-opening fees, comprising a hotel pre-opening support fee
of RMB500,000 (or other currency equivalent) for each hotel
and a technical services fee of RMB2 million (or other currency
equivalent) for each hotel; and

(iv) 6% of the room income for each room booking made via the
official reservation systems of hotels under Wanda Hotel Brands;
5.6% of the of aggregate revenue contributed by each customer
introduced by the regional sale department of hotels of Wanda
Hotel Brands; and 5% of certain spending of any member of
Wanda Club, a club for customers of the hotels of Wanda Hotel
Brands.
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The annual caps of the total amount payable by DWCM Group for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of Hotel
Management Services by the Group are approximately RMB81,118,000,
RMB80,804,000 and RMB81,988,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the DWCM Group to the Group
for the Hotel Management Services under the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to approximately RMB59,767,000.

Leasing of property (including office, storage and parking
space) in the PRC for daily operation needs and provide
property management services for the leased properties (the
“Management Services") by DWCM Group to the Group

Pursuant to property leasing framework agreement (the “Property
Leasing Framework Agreement”) dated 13 November 2018 entered
into between the Company as lessee and the DWCM Group as lessor,
DWCM Group may from time to time (i) lease property (including office,
storage and parking space) in the PRC to Wanda Hotel Management
Group for its daily operation needs and (i) provide Management Services
in accordance with the terms and conditions thereto.

Management Services to be provided by the DWCM Group will be
specific to the leased property, and may include but are not limited
to the management and maintenance of shared and public facilities
(such as rooftops, corridors, flowerbeds, trees, outdoor pipes, drains,
ponds, car parks, etc.) and traffic and parking management at the
leased property. Members of the Group and DWCM Group shall enter
into separate agreements (“Individual Lease Agreement(s)”) in relation
to the lease of property by DWCM Group to Wanda Hotel Management
Group (depending on the particular property being leased, this may
include Management Services), which shall be subject to the terms
and conditions under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement
and the annual caps thereunder. The duration of each Individual Lease
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement and the terms of the Individual Lease Agreements shall be
made on normal commercial terms.
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The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Property Leasing Framework Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2021 are approximately RMB15,438,000,
RMB16,114,000 and RMB16,824,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Group to the DWCM Group
for the Management Services under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately RMB13,876,000.

Provision of hotel design services to Dalian Wanda Group

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into the hotel design
framework agreement (the “Hotel Design Framework Agreement”) with
Dalian Wanda Group, pursuant to which Dalian Wanda Group and/or its
subsidiaries may from time to time engage the Group including Wanda
Hotel Management Group to provide hotel design services (the “Hotel
Design Services”) which may include, among others:

- interior, furniture, fixtures and equipment design and consulting
services;

- back-of-house area design review services;

- outdoor direction signage and indoor lighting design consulting
services; and

- kitchen and launderette area design services

for the hotel projects of Dalian Wanda Group for a term until
31 December 2021. Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries and the
Group shall enter into separate agreements (the “Individual Hotel Design
Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of Hotel Design Services for
relevant projects, which shall be subject to the terms and conditions
under the Hotel Design Framework Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder. The duration of each Individual Hotel Design Agreement shall
not exceed the term of the Hotel Design Framework Agreement and
the terms of the Individual Hotel Design Agreements shall be made on
normal commercial terms.
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The service fees payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the Group for the
Hotel Design Services under each Individual Hotel Design Agreement
shall be fair and reasonable and shall be determined with reference
to the prevailing market prices by taking into account the quotations
obtained by Dalian Wanda Group from at least two independent third
party suppliers for the provision of equivalent or similar services in their
ordinary course of business and which shall not, from the Group’s
perspective, be less favourable than the rates charged and terms for
equivalent or similar services provided by the Group to independent third
party in hotels of equivalent or similar grading.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by Dalian Wanda Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of
hotel design services by the Group are approximately RMB52,340,000,
RMB92,450,000 and RMB70,920,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Dalian WWanda Group to the Group
in respect of the provision of Hotel Design Services under the Hotel
Design Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately RMB19,556,000.

Dalian Wanda Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 October 2019 and circular dated 28
Novemeber 2019.
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Provision of hotel construction management services to Dalian
Wanda Group

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into the hotel construction
management framework agreement (the “Hotel Construction
Management Framework Agreement”) with Dalian Wanda Group,
pursuant to which Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries may from
time to time engage the Group including Wanda Hotel Management
Group to provide hotel construction management services (the “Hotel
Construction Management Services”). For the avoidance of doubt, such
services do not include project design, construction and supervision
work, in respect of which Dalian Wanda Group should hire relevant
professional advisory body(ies) and be responsible for such expenses.
Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries and the Group shall
enter into separate agreements (the “Individual Hotel Construction
Management Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of hotel
construction management services for relevant projects, which shall
be subject to the terms and conditions under the Hotel Construction
Management Framework Agreement and the annual caps thereunder.
The duration of each Individual Hotel Construction Management
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Hotel Construction
Management Framework Agreement and the terms of the Individual
Hotel Construction Management Agreements shall be made on normal
commercial terms.

The service fees payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the pricing policy:
Group for the hotel construction management services for each hotel
shall be fair and reasonable and the consultation and hotel construction
management service fees for each project shall be charged according
to the project area and such fee shall not exceed RMB136 per square
meter.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by Dalian Wanda Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of
hotel construction management services by the Group are approximately
RMB10,870,000, RMB31,690,000 and RMB25,120,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Dalian Wanda Group to the Group
in respect of the provision of Hotel Construction Management Services
under the Hotel Construction Management Framework agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB472,000.
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Dalian Wanda Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 October 2019 and circular dated 28 November
2019.

*

English translation is directly translated from Chinese and is for illustrative
purpose only.

Review by and Confirmation of INEDs

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
conducted during the year ended 31 December 2019, and confirmed
that such transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better to the Group; and

(8) according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements,
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation by the Auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain work on continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors of
the Company have confirmed by way of a letter to the Board that, for the
year ended 31 December 2019:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;
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(8)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in this annual report, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that such
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
set and disclosed by the Company.

During the year, the Group has not entered into any other significant
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which should
be disclosed pursuant to the requirement under the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
related party transactions set out in note 37 to the financial statements
which were also connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or any entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES

Details of emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
Directors/employees of the company are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2019, the interest of Directors and their respective
associates in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with business of the Group:
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Name of Director/

Nature of interest in

Business of

associate Name of company the company the company
BEE MBRANE NGRS REZATRPER2MHE EANCIPA
Mr. Han Xu DWCM Being a shareholder Engaging in property
with 0.035% interest development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding
BERAE RNEBEBFER EAERR - H0.035% m IEWERE - W%
HE  MEEER
REER
Mr. He Zhiping DWCM Being a shareholder Engaging in property
with 0.55% interest development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding
AL E RNEBEEXEETE EERR - HHEO055% R  WEWMERE W%

As at 31 December 2019, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors or their respective associates was interested in any business
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with
business of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all the INEDs to be independent.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, subject to the relevant statutes,
every Director of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless by the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they incur in the execution of their
duty or supposed duty. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and remained in force as
of the date of this report.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained insurance for
the Directors against liabilities to third parties that may be incurred in the
course of performing their duties as at the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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AUDITORS

During the year, Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors for the year ended 31 December 2019 at the Company’s
Annual General Meeting held on 29 May 2019 and to hold office until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ning Qifeng
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is
essential for the effective management, a healthy corporate culture
and balancing of business risk. Furthermore, it is also essential to the
success of the Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) during the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Except for deviation
from CG Code provision A.6.7 as explained in the relevant paragraphs
on page 57 in this report, the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2019.

J/J:\‘ 'kk/l:l%‘-ﬁm

ARBBOERRKF 2 BEER BB
BRE  MEUEMBIMEARRA - RRRIES
2([EFS DHEEERZEEEARZEANE
B REZ R RE 2 SRR 2
82 THARBZAIN MEFBRRZBEZH
L

>
e
il
oK
\/ }

—T-NF
+— Eﬁ;ﬁfﬂm%tmfﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁﬂ-@ﬁﬁ
XERTA(TRERERTA L - BRA
TEZRBEBREMAREECEE AT
LABT RN ARRIRBE-—T—NEF
T-RALBEFEDETEERELT
:J‘—:

!

# P o2
9 M

@+ B
OfF N L

[l (o

=

|l

A

|

=

*T

m

]]]

Jm

=
X

+
A
i
N||\>

m
i

EEeBMEER LN AQNT D
MR ETZEEM -

EECHEERS

ARRERA LR A A PrEl 2 15257 Rl
ERBBEFETERR S ZITRTA - KX
NEMEFEFEERER  2RESFOHIARER
E-T-NFT_A=1T—BLFECET
SAESTRIFTELZ AREZER -

XERE

BEBERRERLA 53
ZE-NFEFR



Corporate Governance Report
SREARE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including one Executive
Director, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company has maintained three Independent
Non-executive Directors which represent over one-third of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2019. The Board’s composition
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report is set out as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Lin
Mr. Han Xu
(appointed with effect from 14 March 2019)
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris
(resigned with effect from 13 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors ("INED"):
Mr. He Zhiping
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng
(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019)
Dr. Chen Yan
(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019)
Mr. Liu Jipeng
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019)
Dr. Xue Yunkui
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019)

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their respective fields of
expertise and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional
ethics and integrity. The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 21 to
24. There are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
amongst the Directors.
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BOARD PRACTICE

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for how the Company
is managed, its strategic direction and performance. There is a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved to and delegated by the Board.
The Board has given clear directions to the management team that
certain matters (including the following) must be reserved to the Board:

—  Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
—  Dividend distribution or other distributions;

—  Treasury, accounting and remuneration policies;

— Review on internal control system and risk management;

—  Changes to major group corporate structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcement;

— Notifiable transactions and non-exempted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions;

—  Proposed transactions requiring shareholders’ approval;
—  Capital re-structuring and issue of new securities;

— Joint-ventures with outside party involving capital commitment
from the Group of over 5% of the relevant size test of the
Company; and

—  Financial assistance to Directors.

Day-to-day operations of the Group and implementation of the Board’s
decisions and strategy are delegated to the Company’s management
team.

The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, has ensured that the
Board adheres strictly to all rules and requirements for its meetings and
the maintenance of full and proper records. Procedures are established
for every Director to have access to Board papers and related
information, to have the services of the Company Secretary, and to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense upon
reasonable request.
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The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensures that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publications of such
financial statements.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2019,
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s
annual and interim results. At least 14 days’ notice is given for all regular
Board meetings together with the meeting agenda such that all Directors
are given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
In addition, two general meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2019 and attendance of each Director at these meetings is
set out as follows:

E=ERRARAEREARAZMBEHRE - X
FEREN QAT BRIER 2 5T ERRmEM
X - EFENHRRLFROZFVHRE -

HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—BHLFERN " &
$§E§‘§TT£/K§E§ CARITERANEE AR
AR EERMBRE - WERRIEREE
ZEERPEESE c MEESGYRREREY
R B AT HE R g R R IEA @A - DA
HEESHERENERAMAFHEE -
AN RBE_Z-NFTA=T—HILF
ERNERITRARERE  SEFHFEZES
BZIBEREIT

Number of Number of
Board meetings general meetings
attended/held attended/held
EESERLH BRERAERE
HE BT HE BT
Executive Director: BITES
Mr. Ning Qifeng BHIESE 5/5 0/2
Non-executive Directors: FHITES
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBERE(EHE) 5/5 0/2
Mr. Zhang Lin SRFRSTAE 5/5 0/2
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris (resigned with effect from HBEEE(BZE—NF N/A N/A
13 February 2019) ZRAT=HBET) TNER TNER
Mr. Han Xu (appointed with effect FEEE(BZZ—NEF 5/5 0/2
from 14 March 2019) =At+MAREZRT)
Independent Non-executive Directors: NHEHTES !
Mr. He Zhiping fAIEFE LA 5/5 0/2
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng ponEEL (BT —NF 4/4 0/2
(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019) =A=+—H 5%%&)
Dr. Chen Yan PR&pIELT (B =T — N 4/4 0/2
(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019) —AZ+—REZE®)
Mr. Liu Jipeng Bt (BT —NF 1/1 N/A
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019) —AZ+—RAREETE) N3 B
Dr. Xue Yunkui EEEEL (BT —NF 1/1 N/A
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019) =R+ —HEEHE) EA
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CG Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings. Due to other business engagements, certain Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors did not attend the
annual general meeting and special general meeting. Please refer to the
preceding table for details of attendance of the Non-executive Directors
and the Independent Non-executive Directors.

CG Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. Due to other business
engagements, the Chairman did not attend the Company’s annual
general meeting on 29 May 2019. Please refer to the preceding table for
details of attendance of the Chairman.

General meeting is one of the channels for communication between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. The Company’s auditors,
were available to answer questions at the annual general meeting held
on 29 May 2019. Other than the general meetings, the shareholders
may also communicate with the Company through the contact
information listed on the Company’s website. Measures for effective
communication between the Board and the shareholders are described
in the paragraphs under “Communication with Shareholders” and
“Shareholders’ Rights” in this report.

Mr. Ding Benxi was appointed as Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Company on 3 July 2013, and Mr. Ning Qifeng was appointed
as Executive Director on 17 November 2017. Whilst the Company has
not appointed a chief executive officer, the duties of the chief executive
officer have been performed by Mr. Ning Qifeng, the Executive Director
of the Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement is
adequate in view of the size and complexity of the Group’s operations.
The Board will consider appointing chief executive officer at an
appropriate stage when the Group has increased the size of operation.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in Board and committee meetings brings
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests
of all shareholders.
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The Company has three Non-executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors representing over one-third of the Board. One
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate accounting
or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the Non-
executive Directors are three years, from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016 for
Mr. Ding Benxi, from 17 November 2017 to 16 November 2020 for Mr.
Zhang Lin, and from 14 March 2019 to 13 March 2022 for Mr. Han Xu.
The terms of appointment for all Non-executive Directors are renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the Non-
executive Director or the Company.

According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are three years, from 29 March
2018 to 28 March 2021 for Mr. He Zhiping and from 12 March 2019 to
20 March 2022 for Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan. The terms of
appointment for all Independent Non-executive Directors Mr. He Zhiping,
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan, are renewable automatically for
successive terms of one year each commencing from the date next after
the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either the Independent Non-
executive Director or the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established and adopted a written nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.
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Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee shall, based on those criteria as set out in
the Nomination Policy (such as reputation for integrity, qualifications and
experience, time commitment and contribution to diversity of the Board
according to the Board Diversity Policy, etc.), identify and recommend
the proposed candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment. In
the case of re-appointment of Director, the Nomination Committee would
take into account factors such as contribution, attendance in meetings
and level of participation from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate
is appointed for the position of independent non-executive Director,
the Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence with
reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Nomination procedures

In appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members for its consideration
prior to the meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall then make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval. The information, including biography,
independence (for nomination of non-executive or independent non-
executive directors only), proposed remuneration and other information
as required under the applicable laws and regulations will be included in
the circular to shareholders. A shareholder may also serve to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong a notice in writing
for its intention to propose a resolution to elect a certain candidate as
Director and a notice by the nominated person of his/her willingness to
be elected according to the Articles of Association, without the Board’s
recommendation or nomination of the Nomination Committee other than
those candidates as set out in the circular. The Board shall then consider
and have the final decision on all matters relating to whether to have the
recommended candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.
The Nomination Committee shall ensure the transparency and fairness
of the selection procedure.
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New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the new
Directors more detailed information on the Group’s operations, business
and activities.

According to Clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became Directors on the same day shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at any
general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated offices.
Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next general meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.

According to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules,
all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to
the Directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agree to
waive any remuneration during the year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and a Nomination
Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of reference,
which are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions
of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where
appropriate. The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as
mentioned on pages 55 to 57 in the section headed “Board Practice”
above, have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2019 to, among other things, assess the
performance of Executive Director, review and discuss the existing policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors, and the remuneration
packages of the Directors. The members of the Remuneration
Committee and the attendance of each member at the committee
meeting are set out as follows:

TEERRE

EEZEE

EFetRUEEZEe  AEFHEZEe -
ERZEERIRREES  SEESHUER
BRSSP H B E (RN AW AT R AR
ML) c FEG B SR IRREH
NEMERT  WRHEBAT2EEEFEKE
B MEZESFNEFTSERLATRE
HE(WER) EFggR s BFREH(LEX
FEObEEFESTA [EFERH | —E&Fm)
ErTIER TEREZESSHEM -

FMEES
FMEzEeBFE AR REF R _F
—NFERIT-REZEEEHE  N(EBEHE)

AHERTEF2RE - M RemESREZ
FENR R 2R - A RE R ZHBFE o b
ZBEZRBUREXRBHFERZE®ER 2B
SEHIE

Number of

Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEGEEAH

Committee member ZEGRE HIE BT

Mr. Liu Jipeng (Chairman) 2B s (/) 11
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019) (BZZE—NF=A=+—HRFI)

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng (Chairman) BOREEE L (F/E) N/A

(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019) (BEZE—NF=-A=-+—HEZME) N3 R

Mr. He Zhiping A E 11

Mr. Hui Yung, Chris FFESE N/A

(resigned with effect from 13 February 2019) (BZZE—NF A +=AHE#HT) i

Dr. Chen Yan PREEIE L+ N/A

(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019) (BZZE—NF=-A=+—HEZME) N3 R

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.
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The Remuneration Committee of the Company has been established
since June 2005 to comply with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three members, all of
them are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties
and has access to independent professional advice in accordance with
the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(i)  to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

@iy  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of individual executive directors and senior management;

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

(v)  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the group of which the Company is a member company;

(vi) to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

(vil)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(viii) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management who are not Directors are within the
following band:

TEERRE

E-R-NFT-AS+—AILEE Wk
FF 2 BRETENE ZHUNFIATRE

Number of individuals

Total remuneration band (HK$) FrNzazEEE (Bx) AE
HK$1 million or below 1,000,000 %8708 A T~ 2
Audit Committee BENETER

The Audit Committee meet at least twice each year. In 2019, the Audit
Committee met two times to, among other things, consider the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2018
and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 June
2019, discuss with the auditors of the Company on internal control,
risk management, compliance with rules and regulations, auditors’
independence, auditors’ remuneration and the scope of work in relation
to the annual audit. The members of the Audit Committee and the
attendance records of each member at the committee meetings in 2019
are set out as follows:

ERREEBFELOHMAEH - BKEE8
EN_T-NFOLETRMAERE  N(EFE
B ERAEEBZE T \GF+_A=1—
AUEMBREFEZFEXRERASEEE—F
—NERNA=ZTREANBEAZPRHEE - 82X
RAVZHEENF RAREE - BRERE - 8RR
AIRAROIEIER - ZBEDBILIE - A2 2RE Hr B
NEERBTIEERE - R -_F—NF  BEZ
BERBEUREKNELFEZEGSHZIENE
Fan

Number of

Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEGEEAH

Committee member EEERE HIE BT

Dr. Xue Yunkui (Chairman) BEERHLT(FE) 11
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019) (BZZE—NF=A=+—HBEE)

Dr. Chen Yan (Chairwoman) PREETE L (F/%) 1/
(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019) (BEZZE—NF=A=+—HEZME)

Mr. He Zhiping AIEFELEE 2/2

Mr. Hui Yung, Chris FESAE N/A

(resigned with effect from 13 February 2019) (BEZZE—NF A +=HEFHT) NiEMA

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng R EE B 11

(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019)

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference, which was amended and re-adopted by the Board with effect
from 1 January 2019, in accordance with the requirements of the CG
Code for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee is comprised of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Chen Yan, Mr. He Zhiping and Dr.
Teng Bing Sheng.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

M

(i)

)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

()
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to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to approve the engagement of the external auditors to perform
non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication quarterly reports and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

to liaise with the Board and senior management and must meet
with the Company’s auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control system with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty
to have effective internal control and risk management systems;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to ensure coordination between the internal and external auditors;

to review the external auditors’ management letter;

to ensure the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letter; and

to review reports on the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in this report.
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The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any matter
under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent
professional advice. It is given full access to and assistance from
management and reasonable resources to discharge its duties properly.
The Audit Committee meets with the external auditors at least twice
every year.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2019 to, among other things, review
the composition of the Board, consider the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the retirement and re-election
of directors. The members of the Nomination Committee and the
attendance of each member at the committee meeting are set out as
follows:

TEERRE

ERZESHTAEBEREAN  FEEHE
ZHENETRE  YARABIEREALSH
B ERZESN A HEKBEEREE L ERE
BEZHE - WA ABMESMEELERAZS
BITERER - EXZ B ek BFHEIEZY
ROFIRR &5 -

REZES
REZAGEFAZLBMA—NEH - N=F

WY

A
—NEFERIT-RZESEE - U(EFEHE)
WA EFE AN BEEELIFATER 2
VNHENREFZRENEE - REZEGKE
UREKBHFERZBEERZBAMINMT -

Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held
ZEESEAH
Committee member ZEERE HE BT
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBGILE(FE) 1/1
Mr. Liu Jipeng 24 e A& 11
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019) (B=ZE—NF=A=1+—HBET)
Dr. Xue Yunkui ISR L 1/1
(resigned with effect from 21 March 2019) (BEZE—NF=A=+—HRFI)
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng R EEE N/A
(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019) (BZZE-—NF=A=+—RHEZF) TE A
Dr. Chen Yan PR U iE =+ N/A
(appointed with effect from 21 March 2019) (BEZE—NF=-A=+—HEZME) NEMA

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in June 2005, which was amended and re-adopted by the
Board with effect from 1 January 2019. It currently consists of three
members, including a Non-executive Director and two Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice in accordance with the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

M

(i)

(i)

66

to review the performance of the Board and ensure that the Board
and its committees consist of directors with the appropriate
balance of skills, diversity and knowledge of the Company to
enable it to discharge its duties effectively;

to assist the Board in succession planning for the Board and
senior management;

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy. When reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall take into consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience in accordance with the
Board diversity policy adopted by the Company from time to time
to achieve Board diversity;

to draw up, review and update, as appropriate, the diversity policy
for the Board's approval having due regard to the requirements
of the Listing Rules in place from time to time, review and update
the objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy,
and disclose the policy on diversity or a summary of the policy in
the Company's corporate governance report;

to develop, review and implement, as appropriate, the policy for the
nomination of Board members, which includes the criteria, process
and procedures for the identification, selection and nomination
of candidates for Directors for the Board's approval. Such
criteria include but are not limited to the potential contributions a
candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills,
experience, independence and gender diversity in accordance
with the Company's diversity policy. The Nomination Committee
should disclose in the Company's corporate governance report
the nomination policy and the progress made towards achieving
the objectives set in the policy;
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to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors having regard to relevant guidelines or requirements of
the Listing Rules in place from time to time and, if a proposed
director will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, his/her ability to devote sufficient time to Board
matters;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors
and senior management, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive, taking into account all factors which the Nomination
Committee considers appropriate including objective criteria and
potential contributions a candidate can bring with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board, the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and skills and expertise required
in the future and ensure that senior management succession
planning is discussed at the Board at least once annually;

to keep under review the leadership needs and leadership training
and development programmes of the Group, with a view to
ensuring the continued ability of the Group to function effectively
and compete in the market;

to evaluate the needs for, and monitor the training and
development of, directors;

to develop the procedures for the performance evaluation of the
Board committees:

(@ review and assess the skills, knowledge and experience
required to serve on various Board committees, and make
recommendations on the appointment of members of the
Board committees and the chairman of each committee;

(vii)

(viil)

()

(x)
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(b) recommend candidates to the Board to fill vacancies or
new positions on the Board committees as necessary or
desirable;

(c) review the feedback in respect of the role and effectiveness
of the Board committees arising from the evaluation
of the Board and/or any Board committees and make
recommendations for any changes;

(xi) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
and

(xiii)y to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board.

Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length service.
All Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. According to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the above
Board diversity policy of the Company has been approved by the Board
and adopted by the Nomination Committee on 23 August 2013 and
amended with effect from 1 January 2019 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.
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The Nomination Committee holds meeting at least once a year to
review the diversity of the Board and discuss the measurable objectives,
including knowledge, appropriate professional qualifications, relevant
business background and experience, skills, relevant management
expertise and independence of Directors, and give recommendation
to the Board. During the year, the Nomination Committee takes the
view that the measurable objectives were achieved to a large extent. It
paid particular attention on the cultural and educational background,
professional and technical experience, and skills of the members of
Board and also reviewed the composition between Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so as to ensure appropriate
independence within the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Group’s finance department, the financial statements
of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements
of the Group. The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as going concern.

The report of the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, and their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from pages 103 to 109.
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External Auditors’' Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the
external auditors to ensure the objectivity in the financial statements.
Members of the Committee are of the view that the Company’s external
auditors are independent. During the year, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors are set out as follows:

SN BET 2 B M R

BN EGRREERINEREEN 2B -
IR SRR TN - TEENERA/AR
RAZINEZBED BB - RER - BFR
e AR BISMNEZEED 2 Bl 2 EFI T

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered for the Group mAE RS2 RE B EAER

HK$’000

FAET

Annual audit services FEZHR® 1,061
Non-audit services: FERZBARTS -

Review of interim report EHR P EmRE 332

Special projects KR8 B 568

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Group’s system of risk management and internal control includes
a defined management structure with limited authority, and is designed
to achieve business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provisions of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. The system is put in place to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives. The Board has conducted review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during the
year ended 31 December 2019 including financial, operational controls
and risk management functions and ensured the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget for
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions at least annually.
The Board has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and considered them to be effective and
adequate.
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In relation to the Board’s risk management and internal control
functions, the Board fulfils its duties by determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company by reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, developing and monitoring the codes of
conduct applicable to employees and the Directors of the Company,
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report, and receiving and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management of the Company. Where any significant risks are
identified, the Board will evaluate and manage such risks by considering
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial results,
the probability that the risk will occur and the imminence of the risk.

The Group does not have an internal audit function, but instead shares
and benefits from the internal audit function of its parent, DWCM,
which operates an internal audit function for all of its subsidiaries,
including the Group. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function within the Group in light of the efficiency and effectiveness
of the current internal audit arrangement. The situation will be reviewed
from time to time.

The Group has adopted procedures for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner and in compliance with the SFO.
The procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review on a regular
basis. Unless the inside information falls within any of the safe harbors
as permitted under the SFO, the Group is required to disseminate such
information through the electronic publication system operated by the
Stock Exchange to the public in a timely manner. All Directors, officers
and relevant employees are required to take reasonable precautions
for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication. If the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained, the
Group will immediately disclose the information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable.

Directors' Training

Pursuant to CG Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
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materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their awareness of
best corporate governance practices.

The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary. Individual Directors also
participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or
reading relevant materials.

All the Directors (namely, Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Zhang Lin, Mr. Han Xu, Mr.
Ning Qifeng, Mr. He Zhiping, Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan have
participated in relevant trainings and have provided the relevant records
to the Company. The Directors developed and updated their knowledge
and skills through participation in the training programmes, which in turn
ensures that they could make suitable contribution to the Board.

Company Secretary's Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary
must take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided her training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good and effective
communication with its shareholders. Information in relation to the Group
is disseminated to shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim reports, annual reports,
announcements, notices and circulars, which are published to the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s own website.

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a valuable forum
for the Board to communicate directly with the Company’s shareholders.
The Chairman actively seeks to participate at the AGM and personally
chair the AGM to answer any questions from the Company’s
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An AGM circular is
distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the AGM, setting
out details of each propose resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. The Chairman explains the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll again at the beginning of the AGM, and (except where
a poll is demanded) reveals how many proxies for and against have been
received in respect of each resolution.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Company’s
shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and Procedures
for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders at General
Meeting

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Companies Act of Bermuda. A copy of the Company’s Bye-Laws is
available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting
rights of the Company, or not less than 100 shareholders, can put
forward a proposal at a general meeting of the Company pursuant to
and in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda. The requisition
specifying the proposal, duly signed by the requisitionists, together with

hY I P2 /\-h-\\ =
ERERME
BRR2BE

EEEHMEHRRRERIMNERBE S
2% BRAREZEREBRZRIEARKE
R EE - BN R A AT
AHWMFEREATIE Z PRS- F8R - 2F
B SR o

ARBBERAFAE ((RRAFAR ) VES
SERARANFBRPBE EERE - TFEF
KBS EWHRE TRHBBEFAE - LR
RBFAE LOEARARBRR 2EMHR - X
FREESNBRBFAG LERZZERES
BRI 2 RFER - BRRBFAE 2B KNERE
FAGRITARI -+ REXTE2REER
BRI GEIHER2REBRZFIE KERERF
(BREFRUARETANETRRZERF) RE
AEEER - TENRFBFASHIGR - &
BREBRESUARESALETRRZEF &
(BB ARRERIN EMRTRRE
RORBEZAERRZERERHRH -

MR R

AT RARBBRRRBEEEEATAIATRE
ZETHENZBE -

ARRREFIAERBRRARRAE
LRIBZEZREF

BRAIBRARBRBEARA 2 AR KL E
RERAEMBZEXARBERERARE - ARF
Z REMRIBIAE N AR B4 -

REMMZREREAREL  HAARRALD
RZTDZ— 6% BEREIBR - ST
R100BER - ARARARAE LIR2RZ
@ BRBERARENEREATRRZZE
& BAENZEIANMAEE - XREMAE

BEBERRERAA 73
ZE-NFEFR



Corporate Governance Report
SREARE

a statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal, must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's relevant expenses.

The procedure for Shareholders to nominate a person for election as a
Director is also available on the Company’s website. Subject to the Bye-
Laws of the Company, any shareholder wishing to nominate an individual
for election as a Director of the Company at the AGM shall, no later
than 7 days prior to the relevant general meeting, submit a completed
form of nomination to the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong, and in default the form of nomination submitted shall be
treated as invalid. Any such form of nomination shall be accompanied
by a biographical profile of each proposed nominee and a written
statement from the proposed nominee consenting to be nominated
and, if nominated and elected, consenting to serve as a Director of the
Company. The biographical profile of each proposed nominee shall
include at least the following information: () full name, age and address
of the proposed nominee; (ii) past and present directorships (if any) and
employment of the proposed nomineeg; (i) the information as required to
be include in the announcement of the Company under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Enquiries from shareholders to the Board

In order to ensure effective communication between the Company’s
shareholders and the Board, the Company adopted the shareholders
communication procedures on 28 February 2012. According to the
shareholders communication procedures, the Board is responsible for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with the Company’s shareholders
and in particular, use AGMs or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation. The chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the Independent Non-executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination and any other Committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, the chairman should invite another member
of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

The chairman of the independent board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing, whose contact details are as follows:

The Board of Directors

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Unit 3007, 30th Floor

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

The Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company will
consider the enquiries and concerns raised by the shareholders and
reply as appropriate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code but about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our shareholders are also welcome.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
highlights the Group’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
strategy, measures and achievements for the period from 1 January to
31 December 2019, which is consistent with our financial year. We strive
to apply the established principle of materiality, quantitative, balance
and consistency in the Report and are dedicated to further enhance
stakeholders’ interests by our commitment to sustainability.

The Report is prepared in accordance with all applicable provisions of
the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
An independent consulting firm was appointed to provide professional
advice for the preparation of the Report.

Unless otherwise stated, the policy documents, statements and data
described in the Report cover the ESG performance of the Group’s
business in Hong Kong, the PRC and the USA. As a result of the
acquisition of Wanda Hotel Management Group on 31 December
2018, the scope of this Report has been expanded to cover the
aforementioned business.

The Report has been approved by the Board before publication.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

As a socially responsible corporate, the Group actively manages its ESG
matters. In addition to pursuing prosperous business development,
the Group undertakes its social responsibility and pays attention to the
environment, employees, business partners, customers and the wider
community, making continuous contributions to building a harmonious
society.
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Sustainability Governance

Sound and stable ESG governance practices are critical for the
sustainable development of the Group. The Board takes full responsibility
for the development of our ESG-related strategies, assessing and
monitoring of ESG-related risks, and ensuring the effectiveness of the
Group’s ESG measures. Our regional operations are responsible for
managing day-to-day implementation of ESG measures, reporting to the
Board in due course, and ensuring compliance with all applicable ESG
laws and regulations. The Group regularly reviews and evaluates our
ESG performance, and discloses relevant progress and achievements to
stakeholders through our annual ESG report.

In order to maintain a fair and efficient working environment, the Group
reinforces our anti-corruption commitment by implementing a set of anti-
corruption policies and measures that prohibits the offer and acceptance
of advantages. Members and employees of the Group are bound by
such policies and measures, with clear expectations that no form of
corruption will be tolerated by the Group. In the reporting year, no legal
cases associated with corruption were brought against the Group and
its employees.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has identified a diverse group of stakeholders, including
employees, shareholders, investors, suppliers, customers, tenants
and community partners, and is keen to listen to and understand their
opinions. Over the years, the Group maintains close relationship with
different stakeholder groups through daily communications and general
meetings in all levels of the business, as well as periodic ESG-related
engagements.
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Materiality Analysis

The Group has taken an approach to conduct extensive engagement on
ESG issues every five years, unless there are fundamental changes in the
Group’s business, to ensure comments, advices and expectations from
stakeholders are communicated effectively to our senior management.
Feedback gathered from the engagement will help us better understand
and evaluate the Group’s ESG strategies and performance by
identifying ESG issues that are material to the Group’s operations and
our stakeholders. Based on the results of the most recent stakeholder
survey conducted in 2017, we have undertaken a review of key issues
faced by peer companies in 2019 to understand whether there are any
other issues that should be taken into consideration in our long-term
ESG strategies and for disclosure in the Report this year. Following the
review, a total of 14 ESG issues are identified as material to the Group
in 2019, of which eight material topics are adopted from the list of ESG
issues in 2018. The additions are “Energy”, “Employment relations
and retention”, “Training and education”, “Compliance”, “Supply chain
management”, and “Community investment”. The topic “No child/forced
labour” is removed from the material list, given its low occurrence in our
business in the past. The increase of material topics is mainly due to
the expanded reporting scope this year as a result of the acquisition of
Wanda Hotel Management Group at the end of 2018. The results, which
have been confirmed by senior management of the Group, are used as
a guide in the preparation of this report.
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Key Areas Material ESG Issues Identified
FESR 2B E K ESG &E
Environmental protection Energy
IRIBIRE EEYH
Waste management
BEEYE IR

Employment and labour practices
EBRERIETIER

Operating practices
=B B

Community

Al

Diversity and non-discrimination
% AL AR
Employment relations and retention

= e e S

Equal opportunity
e

Safe working environment
TR TIERE
Training and education
BN RBE

Anti-corruption

RES

Compliance

B

Customer data privacy

B AMREL

Customer satisfaction
BEWEE

Health and safety of products and services
EmMRBHERERT S
Supply chain management
g ER

Community investment

HEIE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group endeavours to promote sustainable development and
minimise negative environmental impact by incorporating green
elements into our daily operation and management. Recognising the
possible environmental footprint brought by our businesses, the Group
has implemented multiple energy and water saving measures, as well
as effective resources and waste management practices to reduce
unnecessary use of resources and waste generation. The Group strives
to ensure the compliance of all business units and operations with
relevant local environmental regulations, such as the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Solid Waste
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China.
During the reporting year, there were no violations, complaints, fines or
sanctions caused by breach of environmental regulations.

Using Resources Efficiently

The Group implements appropriate and effective measures in our daily
operations to enhance efficient resource use and potentially minimise
greenhouse gas emissions generated from our business operations.

Regarding energy efficiency enhancement and greenhouse gas
emissions reduction, our Hong Kong offices, hotel management units
and property management unit all adopted a large variety of measures. In
Hong Kong offices, we prioritise the use of energy saving appliances that
are certified with Grade 1 energy labels and set timer to automatically
turn off air-conditioners during non-office hours. Air-conditioners are also
regularly cleaned and inspected to maintain the highest energy efficiency
level. Whereas in most of our leased offices, we have introduced
smart building management system to monitor electricity consumption
within the properties, avoiding any unnecessary energy usage. In our
hotel management units, employees are required to turn off unused
appliances during lunch breaks and non-office hours. Beginning in this
reporting year, lighting system of a carpark in Hengli City has gradually
been replaced with LED lights to improve energy efficiency.
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The Group promotes paperless working environment in our offices in
order to conserve resources. We recommend our employees to archive
drawings, reports, contract and other documents onto the online
system whenever possible. Our hotel management units also advocate
green office practices among employees. For instances, employees are
encouraged to use waste paper and choose double-sided printing when
printing internal documents. Employees are also suggested to bring their
own water bottles when attending meetings instead of using disposable
paper cups.

Water-saving actions have been taken in the Group to reduce water use.
Water-saving equipment such as automatic sensor faucet and siphonic
toilets are installed at a number of our properties.
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Unit 2019'
B —E-NEF
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensity 22
BAEREASHREREE??
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes (carbon dioxide equivalent) 8,797
RERBESNE (BE2) AW (ZE(LIRE =
Total greenhouse gas emissions intensity Tonnes (carbon dioxide equivalent)/ 0.2

BRERBEEINEE

square meter

AW (ZEREE) FHXK

! As a result of the acquisition of Wanda Hotel Management Group, hotel
management units are newly included in the data. The comparative figures
of 2018 are therefore not provided here.

2 The figure includes only indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions as
the emission of direct (Scope 1) greenhouse gas is insignificant during the
reporting year.

s The data includes greenhouse gas emissions from eight offices in Hong
Kong and the PRC and Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza.
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Unit 2019'
B —EB—RE
Total Energy Consumption and Intensity*
RREEERRE?
Total energy consumption — electricity kWh 14,107,476
HEEREREE — 8 RS
Total energy consumption intensity kWh/square meter 312
RELREREE FRE,FHXK
Total Water Consumption and Intensity®
BEKEREES
Total water consumption Cubic meter 221,324
BFEKE SR
Total water consumption intensity Cubic meter/square meter 5.3
BFKERE SR FFK

Managing Waste Responsibly

The Group continues to regard waste management as one of the
material issues and has been determined to reduce waste generation
through the implementation of effective waste management measures.
To achieve sustainable solid waste management in all operation units,
a three-tiered approach has been adopted by the Group to prioritise
waste avoidance over waste reduction and recovery, and consider
waste disposals at last. The Group has also appointed qualified waste
management companies to handle the waste in a proper and legal
manner.

We also explore the opportunities to sort and recycle waste such as
paper so as to divert them from landfills whenever possible. During the
reporting year, approximately 1,825 tonnes of non-hazardous waste was
generated, while 2,111 kg of waste paper, 395 kg of plastics and 208
kg of wood were recycled respectively. In addition, the Group did not
produce significant amount of hazardous waste.

4 The data includes energy consumption from eight offices in Hong Kong
and the PRC and Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza.
5 The data includes water consumption from four offices in Hong Kong and

the PRC and Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza.
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Promoting Green Buildings

To reduce the use of energy, materials, water and waste generated in the
life cycle of the buildings, the Group proactively integrates green building
elements into the design and construction stage of the projects. The
Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza is one of the best practices of the Group,
reinforcing our commitment in promoting green buildings.

To minimise negative impact on the environment, the Guilin Gaoxin
Wanda Plaza adopts the “Huiyun Smart Management System”, an
intelligent building management system developed by our parent
company DWCM, and applies a number of green design features
within the premise. The “Huiyun Smart Management System” allows
the Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza to operate in a safe, green and smart
way by combining five independent management systems into one
single platform. Energy consumption, fire alarm, security, operation
and equipment are centrally monitored, controlled and managed with
this system, ultimately lowering operating costs while ensuring service
quality and enhancing energy efficiency through improved electrical and
mechanical systems. Such practice has earned the Guilin Gaoxin Wanda
Plaza “1-star” level criteria of the China Green Building Label.

Green building features of the Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza are as follows:

Green Building Features Functions
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Energy conservation device
— electric sunshade
figee s — BEESIR
BEIREAE o

Natural lighting design
— dome skylights
BARLRET — EIBEXRE

Water saving system
— rainwater catchment system
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Shields ceilings and windows from direct sun rays to lower indoor
temperature in daytime, reducing energy consumption from air-conditioners
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Provide natural daylight for indoor areas to minimise the use of lightings
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Collects and reuses rainwater for Iandscaping
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WALK ALONG WITH EMPLOYEES

Our employees contribute to the sustainable development of the Group.
They help maintain good business operations and play important roles
in providing quality services and products. The Group continues to
invest resources to increase staff benefits, thereby enhancing morale
and attracting and retaining talents. The Group provides our employees
with diversified trainings to equip them with essential skills to perform
their duties, and creates a friendly and safe working environment. We
introduced a series of fair, open and comprehensive employment policies
to support management and ensure compliance with employment-
related regulations and laws. We comply with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong, as well as the
Labour Law and Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China.
In the reporting year, the Group did not identify any major violations
related to the labour and dismissal rule and legislation.

Talents Acquisition and Retention

The Group promotes transparent and fair recruitment procedures,
provides fair career development opportunities, creates a workplace
free from discrimination, and cares for our employees. Our employment
policy complies with the Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter
57B of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour. Employment of child and forced labour is strictly
prohibited. We conduct background checks on all job applicants and
review the employment policy where necessary. If the existence of child
or forced labour is discovered, management will take reasonable actions
in the interest of the individual.

The Group offers competitive remuneration package to employees
based on their performance, experience and market salary level, and
distributes bonus depending on the Group’s financial performance and
employees’ job performance. The Group pays provident funds and social
insurance for employees, and provides them with education subsidy,
personal accident insurance, annual health check, and medical welfare.
Medical insurance and retirement plans are also provided to employees.
Eligible employees are also entitled to maternity or paternity leave in
accordance with local laws and regulations, while housing allowance are
granted to employees with inconsistent working places before and after
employment and to expatriates. Free working meals or meal allowances
are provided to employees in the PRC and Hong Kong respectively.
Meal subsidies and special arrangements are provided to ethnic minority
employees.
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To retain talents, the Group provides our employees with clear promotion
ladder, training opportunities and regularly recognizes contributions.
Employee performance appraisal is carried out every year accordingly,
with appeal channels available to ensure fairness of the review process.
The Group acknowledges the importance to cultivate a stable and
reliable talent pool to avoid talent gap, hence recommends internal
promotions from the talent pool in addition to external recruitment to fill
in job vacancies.

The Group is committed to providing a caring and diversified working
environment for employees that is free from any form of discrimination.
We encourage employees to organise team-building activities such
as birthday parties and gatherings to increase team unity. During the
reporting year, a number of initiatives were taken in different business
units to engage employees and improve communication, such as
providing free monthly movie tickets, organising festive events, sports
day and establishing various sports clubs.

As a result of the acquisition of Wanda Hotel Management Group, the
Group has increased its talent pool to 534 employees in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the USA as of the end of the reporting year.®

6 The data excludes Amazing Wise Limited and its subsidiaries, which were
disposed by the Group in December 2019.
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Employee Distribution
i
As of 31 December 20197
RZZE—nF+=—A=+—8"

Number of employees by gender Number of employees by age group
mHRE S HNESHE RERANESNESHE
Aged above 50
5088 A E

12

O
Aged 41-50 .//////— —5\\\\\\\
41-505% Aged 30 or below

100 P\ 308U TF
J 163

Aged 31-40

31-40%% /®
259
&
/
Number of employees by geographical location Number of employees by employees type
RitEE S NEEHE REEERESHESHA
ang Kong Z\lo%tract
Permanent
=
—
& 452
Training and Development FIR R
The Group fosters employees’ career development by providing them REBEFBRHE TSBEBIEIIIRBESE

with various on-the-job training and continuous learning programs that =T & AIBEMFIABEEE - RBREFE
focus on improving job-related skills and knowledge. The total training N B EES L1008 - BEEBEXT
hours in the reporting year has reached 8,510 hours, with an average of IR EUE 16 /N6 o

16 hours per employee.

Y

7 The data excludes Amazing Wise Limited and its subsidiaries, which 7 ZEETREAEER _Z—LFLERN
were disposed by the Group in December 2019. Amazing Wise Limited 5 E i @A 7]
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During the reporting year, the Group continues to arrange various training
for employees from different business units. Corporate management
courses are provided to employees at the headquarter to enhance
their awareness on good corporate governance. Employees working in
property management are encouraged to take part in various training
certificates including elevator safety administrator, fire facility operator,
fire control room supervisor and heating ventilating and air conditioning
(HVAC) engineer. Employees are also provided with training courses
focusing on soft skills development, such as sales negotiation and
planning courses to improve sales skills, and regular group branding and
marketing courses to deepen their understanding of brand management
and market promotion. In addition, the Group provides the “Talent
Scheme” and “Quality Talent Scheme” to prepare employees and
managers for promotion to higher positions.

To provide employees incentives to receive training, employees are
encouraged to reimburse expenses, such as course fees, transportation
expenses, accommodation expenses, and are offered salaries during
in-service training, to maintain professional qualifications.
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Average Training Hours Completed per Employee®

BEEETHZ I FIIRFE

Average training hours per employee
by employee category

Average training hours per employee

by gender

EEEEREINEREETIIZIIRE BRUERESNEREEFIZIEE
251 25
22
20 | 19 20 |
He He
Z; 15 11 12 Z; 15 | 12
3 10f 3 10t
T T
5F 5L
0N O O O 0N O ®
Top management  Middle management General staff Male Female
BREBAR FAREIRAE —RET S 7
N\
8 The data excludes Amazing Wise Limited and its subsidiaries, which were 8 ZHETREASER - —NLEFHED

disposed by the Group in December 2019.
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Unit 2019°
B —E— RO
Percentage of employees trained by employee category
REEEHEINZIETIESL
Top management % 100
RRERAE
Middle management % 100
HIRER AR
General staff % 99.3
—RET
Percentage of employees trained by gender
RERESHZIETHESL
Female % 99.5
g
Male % 99.7
St

Taking Care of Employees' Health and Safety

Employees are the most important assets of the Group. The Group
invests a lot of resources to create a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment. We comply with the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the legal
requirements on occupational health and safety outlined in the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China.

During induction, we arrange safety education and training for
employees to raise their awareness and knowledge in occupational
safety. To protect employees from high potential hazard activities
including entering construction sites and performing maintenance
work, we provide adequate personal protective equipment to avoid
occupational accidents. Our hotel management units have formulated
the “Safety Mandatory Provision” and required all employees to strictly
implement the safety initiatives at work. The said provision clearly outline
responsibilities of safety personnel, daily safety measures, and safety-
related policies.

o The data excludes Amazing Wise Limited and its subsidiaries, which were
disposed by the Group in December 2019.
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Besides, we provide employees various staff benefits related to health
and safety, including pre-employment body check and annual body
check to give them health guidance, regular health education and
training to improve employees’ physical quality, as well as insurance and
medical cover to protect our employees.

Our continuous effort in promoting a safe and healthy workplace is
reflected in our performance record. In particular, there was no lost day
due to work injuries and zero work related fatal incidents during the
reporting year.

RESPONSIBLE OPERATIONS

Operating responsibly and with integrity drives the long-term success
of the Group. We continuously communicate and collaborate with our
business partners, customers and the broader community to ensure
our expectations are aligned and met. The Group also maintains close
relationships with suppliers to establish an open, honest and responsible
supply chain.

We have zero tolerance on corrupt practices along the supply chain or
in any tendering projects. If anyone or entity is suspected to be engaged
in misconduct, malpractice or unethical behaviour, we encourage our
employees to report through our established whistle-blowing channels.
All reported cases are handled promptly by department managers
and will be escalated to the Group’s management where necessary.
We continue to arrange regular anti-corruption refresher training for
all employees. The Hong Kong Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC) provides courses to ensure that our employees’
behaviour comply with relevant laws and regulations, including the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Anti-money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of
China.

Apart from anti-corruption practices, we also adopt measures to protect
intellectual property in our daily operations. We regularly review relevant
internal policies and procedures and continuously monitor activities
related to intellectual property such as using genuine software to
avoid any infringement. Guided by the Group’s policies and initiatives,
we continue to act ethically and lawfully with the support from our
employees. During the reporting year, there is no breach of laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertisement and privacy
matters.
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Managing Our Supply Chain

The Group is committed to providing quality products and services, for
this the support from suppliers is the foundation of our success. In the
reporting year, we worked closely with over 1,200 suppliers to ensure
the stable operation of the supply chain. We also avoid over-reliance on
specific suppliers and keep our suppliers well diversified. Our business
spans multiple regions, and we prioritise local suppliers in the selection
process to promote the local economy and reduce carbon footprint from
transportation.

The Group adopts a standardised tendering procedure to
comprehensively manage the selection process of suppliers and
contractors. Suppliers are subject to primary selection, audit and
public tendering processes to be included in the Group’s suppliers
list. If a procurement value exceeds a predetermined amount, multiple
suppliers will be invited to participate in a tendering process to screen
out potential suppliers with unsatisfactory performance, high prices
or poor quality. The standardised process also avoids the possibility
of any corruption, bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering.
Further, employees are reminded to stay alert on potential conflicts of
interest during the tendering process. Multiple personnel from different
departments are involved in the selection processes to ensure fairness
and reasonableness of the results. A scoring mechanism is in place to
monitor and evaluate suppliers’ performance. Penalty will be imposed
when suppliers fail to meet our standard. Contracts will be terminated
when suppliers perform unsatisfactorily or provide false information.
Suppliers which create a huge negative impact on society are prohibited
from tendering for three years. In addition, suppliers with record of
corruption and bid-rigging will be blacklisted and will not be invited for
future tenders.

EERMIRHERE

ARBHAREHEENERMRY - MER
HERBH SRR ARRNER - RAREF
- SEEER120E‘ERERAE " B
HEREEBERBFRTEER - ARENEHE
hZEER - RYefEmERET - T
BRREBEAWHER - S NLEERL
BB B BAE P E A RO R o

AEEFRAEECNERERE  2EEEHE

B MAEANEURBE - HERFEBYIE
B R ARBRERE - TREMASENHE

BBE - WXBEEELSEESRE - ZEHE
AR EAFES BEERRE  WBKREATE
B EEESRERRENEEMHER - RE
BB RAEERRLEMES 178 BR -
BEFRORRIRITA © WO HAIFEIRERT
HHRERETSIBNEENZERRTE -
BEBRG SR EMPINET - ERERD
RNFEMAIRMN - D RIZF D BIAEEE
W R R RIR - i LB RAETT A T
R SRMPIEASIRK o HERERRRE
HERER - GEMPIR AL - HHEEK
EAREEFENHER  ZFATE2ER
1% o AN - BESFKEFEARNHEREIIA
REE  KTEHESERRET -

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region Unit 2019
R R E D HHEEEE B —E-NF
The PRC Number 746
a2 A
Overseas Number 510
N HE

90 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Improving Quality of Products and Services

“Customer First” is the key to achieving our business success. We
strive to enhance customer satisfaction through the promotion of
customer-based services. For example, a dedicated customer support
service team was established in the Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza to
meet customer needs. Customer feedback channels are in place to
handle enquires and complaints timely and properly. Formal customer
satisfaction surveys are conducted twice a year and a customer
complaint telephone is set up at the concierge of the mall. All complaints
received are directed to our Operations Department for review. Once
the complaint is accepted, it will be immediately forwarded to relevant
departments for follow up, which will further be discussed with the
Operations Department to ensure compliance with our internal policies.
All complaints are responded within 24 hours. During the reporting year,
we did not receive any major complaints regarding our products and
services from external parties or regulatory authorities.

Safeguarding customer safety is critical across our business operations.
For instance, our hotel management units have formulated a series
of hotel management safety instructions and policies to ensure our
customers enjoy services with the highest safety standard. During the
design phase of the hotels, an independent fire service consultant is
hired to conduct a safety audit by reviewing the construction drawings
and firefighting systems. All hotels must comply with the relevant national
fire protection codes and standards, as well as design guideline, and
safety and quality standards of our hotel management units. During
the operation phase, safety and quality review and audits are regularly
conducted for all managed hotels. Fire drills are carried out quarterly to
ensure a smooth and effective evacuation under emergency.

We respect customers’ data privacy, and thereby adhere to the privacy
and confidentiality requirements stated in our internal policies. All
personal data collected in business operations is handled and used in
accordance to relevant laws and regulations to safeguard confidentiality.
Our operation adheres to local regulations related to the collection,
holding and use, disclosure and transfer of personal data, in particular
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests of the
People’s Republic of China.
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CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

To give back to the community, the Group actively engages with
local communities in regions where it operates and delivers impactful
community investment activities targeted to the underprivileged groups.

In 2019, we have donated HK$160,000 to support activities in facilitating
environmental protection, volunteering and business activities. Besides,
we encourage our employees to volunteer in the local communities. In
2019, we contributed 340 volunteer hours to support the underprivileged
groups through a wide range of events.

“Charity at Campus” Volunteering Event

In May 2019, the head office of our hotel management units initiated a
“Corporate Responsibility Week” along with a large variety of voluntary
activities to create positive energy in the society.

“Charity at Campus” volunteer event was one of the highlight events
organised at Beijing GuangAi School, a non-profit charitable non-
governmental educational institution. Over 50 employees from our Beijing
and Shanghai offices volunteered more than 204 man-hours to serve
the underprivileged children by cleaning up the classrooms, dormitories
and canteen to ensure the children have a more pleasant learning and
living environment. Our designers further provided children with learning
opportunities such as interactive art, crafting and calligraphy lessons,
helping the students to enhance their art skills.
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Our volunteers organised art workshops for children at Beijing GuangAi School.

FIRZE THEI R E BRSRFEMEM TIEY -

92  Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Waste Collection and Separation Volunteering Event

To protect the environment and educate the participants to practise
waste reduction at source and clean recycling in the community, 30
employees from our hotel management units participated in a waste
collection and separation volunteering event in 2019 to clean up the

Nanchang Kowloon Lake in the PRC.

QOur volunteers collecting waste along the Nanchang Kowloon Lake in the PRC.

BANEIETEBEENERBREREREY -
Distributing Food to the Homeless

In January 2019, employees in Chicago, the USA participated in the food
packaging and distributing event organised by the Greater Chicago Food
Depository. The volunteers first visited the food depository to understand
its daily operation and then assisted in packing and distributing food to
the homeless who are struggling with hunger in Chicago, the USA.
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE
OF HONG KONG EXCHANGES AND CLEARING

LIMITED

General Disclosures and KPIs

—RFEERERERIEE

BERS REEFRBRATF
(RR - w8 REREEDR

REL

Disclosure

REAR

Reference
2E

A. Environmental

A RIE

Aspect A1: Emissions
BE AT : Bk
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A1.1
RS IRIR AL.1

KPIA1.2
RSB RIEIR A1.2

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas

emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.

BRAERIRERBEYN - MKkt

WHPS AERBEREVNES

F/

@ BE: &

b) BEBTHETAGEATENERA
ERLIROIEER -

The types of emissions and respective

emissions data.

B TR AR S ARRE B EE -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total
and, where appropriate, intensity.
BERBAERER (WER)RE -
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Environmental Protection
IRIFRE

Not applicable — The operations of
the Group do not cause any significant
air emissions, and no relevant data is
disclosed accordingly.

NER — AEENEETBEENR
BB - Bt W ARERERBEEUE -
Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently
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m y2e &
IRIE - Z‘ZIZ & /I:l #ﬁ =
General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Reference
—REEREREREZR BEAR 2Z
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, Not applicable — The Group did

RS A NIEIZ A1.3

KPIA1.4
FARERIEIRAL4

KPIA1.5
FAREIRIEIRA15

KPI A1.6
RASRAEIIEIZA1.6

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BHEA2: ERER
General Disclosure

—fRINER

KPI A2.1
BASAABUIEIRA2.1

KPI A2.2
FARERIEIRA2.2

where appropriate, intensity.
FESEEREEYEER (WER) X
Eo

Total non-hazardous waste produced
and, where appropriate, intensity.
PMELBZEEMEEN (WER) T
g o

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

IR RS R E RIS P SACR

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.

Rl BEEENBEERRZEYNIL
BIREE SR LATEKR -

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
BEREAER(BERR
) BBR -

Direct and/or indirect energy

C KB R

consumption by type in total and

intensity.
REAE DM EE R, KHEEEIRA
REREE -

Water consumption in total and
intensity.

RIEKENTE -

not produce significant amount of
hazardous waste during the reporting
year.

TER — AEERREFELEASE
EEEEEEY -

Environmental Protection — Managing
Waste Responsibly

RERE — AISENEEDER

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently, Promoting Green
Buildings

RERE —ERER  HERERE
Environmental Protection — Managing
Waste Responsibly

RERE — AIENEREYER

The Group did not produce significant
amount of hazardous waste during the
reporting year.
AEERBREFEUEAREEFLES
REZEY) o

Environmental Protection
RIBRE

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently
RIERE — EAER

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Efficiently
RERE —ERER

BEBERRERAA 95
ZE-NFEFR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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HERE
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General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Reference
—REEREREREZR BEAR 2Z
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Environmental Protection — Using

RREIEIRA2.3

KPIA2.4
FARIARUEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
FARAEIRIEIRA2.5

initiatives and results achieved.

Tt BE IR A R s &I S AR -

Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

ot SR EGE A KR E 0] B A
AR AR K et 8 PSR ©
Total packaging material used for
finished products and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.

B mATABEMHNES R (E
B)BEEELEE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 : BERRAER
General Disclosure

—RRIEE

KPI A3.1

FAsE4

96

XAITE! *T A3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
MIEEITALRERRABERERE
FENBUR °

Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

M EBEBHRERRRERNE
R BEREORNER AT ENTTE -
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Resources Efficiently, Promoting Green
Buildings

RERE —ERER  HEREEE
The Group did not encounter any
issue in sourcing water for daily
operations during the reporting year.
AEENBREENMEFEILE|B
ESREGER KRR ERE -

Not applicable — The Group’s
products do not require the use of
packaging material.

TER — SENERBRACABEM
o

Environmental Protection
RIBRE

Environmental Protection — Promoting
Green Buildings
RIGIRE — B EEE
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General Disclosures and KPIs

—REERBREVIER

Disclosure

REAR

Reference
8%

B. Social — Employment and Labour Practices

B.#&

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPIB1.1
R AR B

KPI B1.2
FARARUIEIREB1.2

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and

dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

BRAHINE AR - BEBRET - T

e R FERKE 2 R

IS AR A R L 455 38 S 4B Y

(@ BoK: &

(o) BFHBEITABERZENIEH
ERLIROIER

Total workforce by gender,

employment type, age group and

geographical region.

BRI - EBIEERE - FEER Kt

BEOMEBRES -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age

group and geographical region.

RMR - FlBR kiR B 5 HEE

MR -

Walk Along with Employees
BB TR

Walk Along with Employees — Talents
Acquisition and Retention
BB TRT — AT R NARE

Not reported — The Group is preparing
to disclose the related data in the future.
AERE — AEEEEEHER
RIXEEAERARIR -
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HERE

IS -

General Disclosures and KPIs

—REERBREVIER

/I:l #& =

Disclosure

REAR

Reference

2%

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BHEB2: REHZ2
General Disclosure

—fRINER

KPI B2.1
B BUIEIRB2.1

KPI B2.2
R RIEIR B2.2

KPI B2.3
PR ESIEIRB2.3

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

BRARM L2 TERIRLREE S #

REEEREER

(@ BX: X

(o) BTFTHETARBERTZERIER
ERLIROIEERS

Number and rate of work-related

fatalities.

ETERMEMIL TR AR R L2 -

Lost days due to work injury.

RIBERTIERSE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they
are implemented and monitored.

R TR A B BB R R R 2 2 45 7t
AR ABREIT M B R 0% o

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BmEB3 : #ERIEI
General Disclosure

—fRIFE

KPI B3.1
FAE A MRS B3

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRARTEER BT LRI ME N
FREERBUR - fREEINES) -

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and employee
category.

Rt REERMESHNXIEER
DL e
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Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRT —BREIREREYSY

Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRIT —ERETRRERZS
Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRT —BREIREELYS
Walk Along with Employees — Taking
Care of Employees’ Health and Safety
HETRT —BREEIREREYS

Walk Along with Employees — Training
and Development
HETRT — BN ER

Walk Along with Employees —
Training and Development
HETRTT — Bl NER
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General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Reference

—REERBRENIEE HEAR 8%

KPI B3.2 The average training hours Walk Along with Employees —

BASEAE IR B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EE B4 : & T#A|
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B4.1
RRSAE MRS B4

KPIB4.2
FARAERUEIR B4.2

Operating Practices

&EE

completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
mMRREBERED BREET
R TR -

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

labour.

BREPIEE T sa 8 TH) -

(a BeR: &

(o) BETFHBEITABERTZENIEH
EREIROINER

Description of measures to review

employment practices to avoid

child and forced labour.

s R E NI EAR R E T

NEgHIZET -

Description of steps taken to

eliminate such practices when

discovered.

M EERERBEAREREHABR

PRERER ) 2255

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[BHEBS5 : HEHEEE
General Disclosure

—RRINFR

KPI B5.1
RASR A BUIEIZB5.1

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHRENRE SRR
Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

wiEE S EEREE -

Training and Development
HETRIT — B RER

Walk Along with Employees — Talents
Acquisition and Retention

BB TRTT — AT R RRE

Walk Along with Employees —
Talents Acquisition and Retention
HETRIT — AT RARIRE

Walk Along with Employees —
Talents Acquisition and Retention
HETRIT — AT RARRE

Responsible Operations — Managing
Our Supply Chain
BERENSE — EBRMOHER
Responsible Operations — Managing
Our Supply Chain
BEMENEE — EBRRMOMERE
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General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Reference
—REEREREREZR BEAR 2Z
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Responsible Operations — Managing

RS A NIEIZB5.2

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEB6 : EREE
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B6.1
RSN 1E1R B6. 1

KPI B6.2
RARAERUIEIRB6.2

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BRI R EERNED - mEHR
TEREMNNEERHE  UKEH

BRI TITRERITE

Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of
redress.
FHEMREEERNRBHNRBEES
2 EE BELMESEEN RS
TIVER) -
@ BE: R
b) EBFHBETABERTENEA
ERRRDINER o
Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.
EERCDEXEMBHRPERR T ERE
BIEMmARKMN A D

Number of products and service
related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.

PR E m MRTEH R AF BB LA K
JEETTE »
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Our Supply Chain

BEMEMNEE — EERRMNHER

Responsible Operations
BEANZE

There were no recalls concerning
the provision and use of the Group’s
products and services that have a
significant impact on our operations.
AN B A0 2 fn M IR AS I 8 B
BfEEAEBARZENOREH -
Responsible Operations — Improving
Quality of Products and Services
BEANEE — BAER RS
Bx
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General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Reference

—REEREREREZR BEAR 2Z

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to  Responsible Operations

RS AE 1512 B6.3

KPI B6.4
BRI B6.4

KPI B6.5
RS NIE1EB6.5

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7 : RES
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B7.1
BASAARUIEIR BT 1

KPI B7.2
BB IEIR BT .2

observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.
B g ERRENBEEEENE

Bl -

Description of quality assurance
process and recall procedures.

R E B BiE MEMEIKIZF -
Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored.
i UE B ERHRIE RBALEGR - AR
MERAEIT MEERTTE -

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

BRAWILHE 9% MFRLRE

Hy :

(@ BEK: &

(o) ETFTHBETABEAZEHNIRHA
ERIIROIEERS

Number of concluded legal cases

regarding corrupt practices brought

against the issuer or its employees

during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

ME%%W%%ﬁA%Eﬁi%mi

BB FARRGOEE MFAR

%

Description of preventive measures

and whistle-blowing procedures, how

they are implemented and monitored.

Rt By 48 bt S B RAR 7 - A RAB R

HMITRERTE -

BEENEE

Recall procedures are not material to
the Group’s operation.

B FHAEBZ X TBERK °
Responsible Operations- Improving
Quality of Products and Services
BEAENEE — RAERERY
BEx

Sustainability Governance;
Responsible Operation

AREHRNER  ARENZ

Sustainability Governance
ARERRNER

Responsible Operations
BEENEE
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General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Reference
—REERBRENIEE HEAR 8%
Social — Community

HEg —HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
BEBS : #ERE
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B8.1
S AARUIEIR BS. 1
KPI B8.2

FRIRAABURIEBS.2

Policies on community engagement

to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates

and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’

interests.

BN RBERTREEMELR
HENEREEK LD SZEBLEN

EHYER ©

Focus areas of contribution.

BT E RIS o

Resources contributed to the focus

area.

EEIHREMBAER
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Caring for the Community
BOBiE R

Caring for the Community
HAOREHR
Caring for the Community

HORIEEE



Independent Auditor's Report

EY:

To the shareholders of
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanda Hotel
Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 110 to 265, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BB E

BEELERRERAAREKZ
BYZHMBRE
(REZRZEZMH LA BRAF])

=R

AZERT (AT TRMD EEAIHEHRE
1MOBEEF 5 EBENEEEGRAR(E
AEDREWBAR([EEE]) NiRA BT
wE - MEGEEMBREEER-T—NF+=
A=+—H E%?éwﬂﬁﬁ%% CEBEZELEF

fE’J,vT:.?E iR A EEWRAR - R RE
"""" HEHRMERE ium%i‘%%&i?éﬁﬁk#&i‘ém

A(ERERETHRME) -

BFIRR  REREVBRRERET LB
BAg ([HESHMAE ) BHNE BT SR
SREB([EBVBRELEL ] BEEM A TR
B EEER _T-AFTA=1T—HrE
EMBARR - REBEZEZALFENGEEMB
FARGEReNE  WERERBEAQFAF
DIV EE R E 2 RAmE -
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

RRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN FONAEEFARETSR

Fair value of investment properties

REYRZ A 1BE

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
investment properties, which were stated at fair value,
was approximately HK$1,509.2 million. Management
engages an external valuer to support its determination of
the fair value of the investment properties. The valuation
of the investment properties is highly dependent on
estimates and assumptions, such as prevailing monthly
market rents, prevailing market prices, the reversionary
yield, capitalisation rates, occupancy rates and market
knowledge. The use of different estimates and assumptions
could result in significantly different fair values.

The disclosures about investment properties are included
in note 2.4 “summary of significant accounting policies”,
note 3 “significant accounting judgements and estimates”
and note 17 “investment properties” to the consolidated

financial statements.

RIZE—NE+-F=1+—H8 BRAABEIEZREY
¥R E4A1,509,200,000/8 7T © &2 E L B2 — 42 9N ET
HEMENETHREDEZ NAEE KEMEZGET

ENIN ﬁﬁﬁﬁr&ﬁj“ WRTEAMBHEE - BITH
BER - ERWEE B R  HAREMHIZMHE -

FATANET RBERTSHAL BELREALR -

BRNENFENRBEIENRAMBHRERME24[ T EES
BURBLE ] » Mﬁafaféﬁgé‘#ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁaﬂ AR PEE17 [
=L ESK

the relevance and appropriateness of the valuation basis,

Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing
the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external
valuer; reviewing the valuation report and holding discussion
with management and the valuer to understand and assess

methodology used and underlying assumptions applied;
and obtaining and verifying the underlying data including
comparable market transactions used by the valuer. We
also involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used and
assessing the reasonableness of data used in the valuation
report, by comparing the prevailing monthly market rents,
prevailing market prices, reversionary yield, capitalisation
rates, occupancy rates with comparative cases in active
markets.

Moreover, we assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

BB EFRE(HTRE) IS HEm2ERE -
BENREFBM  ERMGEERS L EEIEE MMEER R -
L‘AT%@&EWEHTE%‘E TR Z I E R PR 2 FERE 1R

RZAEBMEREEN MBS YRERBEE(BREGE
BFTERAZABLEMIERS) - RFITZEABGESR
KB MIFHEARA 2 RR LT A WEBRKRTEAR
mEHEE - WMITHHER - EFRKaR BN EREE

RREERETIS 2 LR RPIETHE - FHEAERS R
REEz AR -

Besh -
f o

BAPEFHESEMBRRTERKEEHNZTR

BEBERRERLA 105
ZE-NFEFR



Independent Auditor's Report
AR R (CTES S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

108 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

. HESRAFELESTERNRE T
R A - WRBASHEER - R
ERAFHEREMABEREENEAT
FEEE  MAlstY BSRERELZEN
%ﬁ%&ikﬁ@o@%ﬁﬁw%ﬁﬁ
BEATHEER - BB L EEREBANRE
hiEEEAEMIGE M HRERT M
MREER  REABREENTR
ABMAL AIEERE B RAREAIR
& HfINEREERNEERBA RS
BEAIEPREIS BV RTIRAE » A - KRR
FHIERATE S EEE TS
B o

. FHESR S M RERNERYIHI N -
BLAR  BEEEERN L/(&Z-?\/.:.\E?I
BRERBAARBEBRZLER -

. 5 ESEES EX%@‘W%EJ}E’JEM‘“,%H
ERRD - BENREE Mﬁi
@ﬁﬂi&%?ﬁﬁiﬁ c BB EES

BRITEERE - RIMHE ‘|’ﬁﬁ7¥K
EREMEME-

HMREZZEQRESFHE  FHELT
PE - EXEBEREEFR  SERMANELS
3 38 i P9 BB 22 ) ) (T R ©

BATREZZESRBH - SPARMDF
BRBBELIENERERER  YERRFEA
PrEREMKRRSE T ERIFIBLIEMREER
HAb IR - PAK (88 ) R P 08



Independent Auditor's Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yee Chung Man.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

31 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE—F

—NE+_A=1+—HILLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k38 #EASN + A LIIR)

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\£F
Notes $°000 $°000
Bt Fr T
(Restated)
(#£E3))
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEK
Revenue Was 5 812,948 812,320
Cost of sales SHERA (274,210) (167,013)
Gross profit EF 538,738 645,307
Other revenue G 6 13,547 7,508
Other income/(loss), net Hi A (E18) F5 6 1,262 (39,556)
Net valuation loss on WAV GEREFE
investment properties 17 (787,975) (4283,327)
Selling expenses SHERX (33,763) (33,899
Administrative expenses THAX (175,587) (147,899)
Finance costs L&A 8 (152,933) (99,168)
Loss before tax BHEREER 2R AIEE
from continuing operations 7 (596,711) (91,034)
Income tax credit/(expense) FisEiEe, (FAxX) 11 78,643 (301)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM HEREXEB 2 RNFEBR
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (518,068) (91,335)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS RIPREERK
Profit for the year R E T 2 RFE A
from discontinued operations 12 129,444 923,677
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE (FE) mF (388,624) 832,342
Attributable to: AT BIERES -
Owners of the parent RNEEA A (150,387) 766,716
Non-controlling interests I (238,237) 65,626
(388,624) 832,342
(Loss)/earnings per share BAREBEREE ARG
attributable to ordinary SR (EE) BRI GBW)
equity holders of the parent 14
(HK cents)
Basic and diluted BERN#E
— For (loss)/profit for the year — REE (BB) #F) (3.2) 16.3
— For (loss)/profit from
continuing operations — BIECEER (BR) R (5.3) 0.3
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

28 .
,%/T (= % E LI& A

Year ended 31 December 2019 B E =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 2 A :EBE4N » HHLABITIIR)

2019 2018
—E-hF —T—)\F
Notes $’000 $’000
BisE Fr T
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BE) 5 F (388,624) 832,342
Other comprehensive Ht2m (BE) kA
(loss)/income
Other comprehensive loss item Hig SRS EH 5 HETA
to be reclassified to profit or loss in Bz EtEmEsE
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of & /EINERE 2 [E 5 =58
foreign operations (45,892) (241,902)
Reclassification adjustments for REEHEFINER 2
a foreign operation B ERAE
disposed of during the year 32 (117,909) 5,130
Other comprehensive loss ZRF EE At 2 A5 (MBRFIIE)
for the year, net of tax (163,801) (236,772)
Total comprehensive AEEZHE(EFE) WAEE
(loss)/income for the year (552,425) 595,570
Attributable to: BUN R IEFEG ¢
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZEWN (298,611) 612,187
Non-controlling interests JEfE I (253,814) (16,617)
(552,425) 595,570
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ZRe B ﬁ%ﬂﬁ R

—hWF+ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k38 #EASN + A LIIR)

At 31 December 2019 %

2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
Notes $’000 $'000
BT Tt T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment b E YN L] 15 99,692 640,214
Freehold land KA ZERETH 16 - 159,119
Investment properties "EYE 17 1,509,238 3,345,150
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18(b) 289,231 —
Prepaid land lease payments TE{ T b & FRIE 18(a) - 16,737
Goodwill EES - 3,079
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBEE = 19 16,157 16,459
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 1,914,318 4,180,758
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties under development FEREL)ES - 3,113,666
Completed properties held for sale FEERIME - 137,898
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W IE KRR R 20 220,124 319,721
Prepayments, other receivables TEfFRIE - A FEGR
and other assets HEE 21 26,848 1,775,316
Contract assets EHEE 22 14,500 =
Contract incremental costs B U ER AR - 54,067
Other current assets HiRE&E - 5,707
Restricted bank deposits Z R EIERITIE R 23 - 5,002
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 23 2,421,957 2,741,296
2,683,429 8,152,673
Assets classified as held for sale DEERBIEREZEE 12 4,995,232 —
Total current assets B EERE 7,678,661 8,152,673
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁ%’&lﬁ 24 729,708 4,575,797
Contract liabilities BHEE 25 35,463 118,218
Receipts in advance J@%Zm 20,940 63,974
Loans from financial institutions ® mM@é%Em 26 - 46,088
Loans from an intermediate —EPEER AR ER
holding company 27 4,187,582 1,445,489
Other borrowings HAB SR - 12,821
Lease liabilities HEAE 18(c) 8,281 —
Tax payable DR 28 25,022 185,135
5,006,996 6,447,522
Liabilities directly associated with BAEARHEHE 2
the assets classified as held for sale EEEZMEEZEE 12 1,459,703 =
Total current liabilities REaERE 6,466,699 6,447,522
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,211,962 1,705,151
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERS
LIABILITIES 3,126,280 5,885,909
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ra AR R ER
,%/T (= E\ /R
At 31 December 2019 R=F—NF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A 5EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —F—)\F
Notes $°000 $'000
B 5T F T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBERE
Loans from financial institutions S RIMIBEE R 26 - 1,146,769
Loans from an intermediate —EF TR AR ER
holding company 27 - 678,321
Other borrowings HAb gk - 372,771
Contract liabilities BHEE 25 26,667 —
Lease liabilities HERAE 18(c) 286,908 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 19 169,395 480,657
Total non-current liabilities ERBAGEEE 482,970 2,678,518
Net assets BEFE 2,643,310 3,207,391
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BRAREE AELER
of the parent
Share capital s 29 469,735 469,735
Retained earnings IREB & A 205,279 290,498
Other reserves H At 30 1,246,465 1,459,857
1,921,479 2,220,090
Non-controlling interests RS 721,831 987,301
Total equity RS 2,643,310 3,207,391
Ding Benxi Ning Qifeng
T &85 EHIE
Chairman Executive Director
By HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARBEDE

Year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE—F

—NE+_A=1+—HILLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 34 s RA) -

BABTTIIR)

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRFEE AR
(Accumulated
[osses)/ Non-
Share Share Specid  Exchange Statutory Merger refained controling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
(2:E8)/
BA ROEE  BARE  EXRE  OAERE  AHEE  REEN & FeREs ks
$000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $1000
S T T T T T T T T T
(note 29) (note 30) (note 30) (note 30) (note 30) (note 30)
(Mitoo)  (WiE80)  (Wakso)  (WEso)  (Mrso) (WX
As at 1 January 2018 R=E-NE-A-A 469,735 1,935,266 53,544 304,806 107,422 78,063 (474739) 2,474,087 975125 3449212
Proft for the year RERRR = - - - - - 766,716 766,716 65,606 832,342
Other comprehensive income. AFEE2EMRA :
forthe year:
Exchange differences BEBNE
on translation ZERER
of foreign operations - - - (157,606) - - - (157,606) (84296 (241902
Reclassification adjustments ~ AEE HEINER
for a foreign operation ZENHERE
disposed of during the year - - - 3,017 - - - 3,017 2,063 5130
Total comprehensive income AEE2ARALE
for the year - - - (164,529) - - 766,716 612,187 (16,617) 595,570
Consideration for the business  S£FZH T 5%
combination under common &gtz KB
control - - - - - (878,000) - (878,000) - (878,000
Capital contributions from ~ FEERRR 2 HE
non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - 10,078 10,078
Acquisition of non-controllng B EFERR RS
Interests - 11,816 - - - - - 11,816 (19517) (7,701)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAR - - - - - = - - 53,961 53961
Diviclends paid to RREEZCETE
non-controling
shareholders - - - - - - - - (15,729) (16,729)
Appropriation to statutory ~ EAZEERES
reserve fund - - - - 1,479 - (1,479) - - -
Asat31December 2018 ~ R=F-N%
+=A=t-H 469,735 1,947,082 53 544" 150277 108901 (7999471 200498 2220090 987,301 307,391
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

cERESBE
el Es
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 2 A :EBE4N » HHLABITIIR)
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRATEEARLE
Non-
Share Share Special  Exchange  Statutory Merger  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
e RGEE  BAEE  EABE  IERE  ABRE  REE @ FERES s
$000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000
n n T i n n T n n rn
(note29)  (note30)  (note30)  (note30)  (note30)  (note 30)
(Hit29)  (M&E30) (Wiks0)  (W&Es0)  (H&80)  (HW&s0)
As at 1 January 2019 R=B-15-A-A 469,735 1,047,082 53,544 150,277 108,901 (199.947) 200498 2,220,090 987,301 8,207,301
Loss for the year rEERR - - - - - - (150,387)  (150,387)  (238,237)  (388,624)
Other comprehensiveloss ~ AFEEM2E
for the year: B8
Exchange differences BEBIET
on translation ZEHER
of foreign operations - - - (30,315) - - - (30,315) (15,577) (45,892)
Reclassfication adjustments K& HE SN EH 2
for a foreign operation BHNRERE
disposed of during the year - - 165,265 (283,174) - - - (117,909) - (117,909)
Total comprehensive AEEREFRAR
loss for the year - - 165,265  (313,489) - - (150,387)  (298,611)  (253814)  (552,425)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAF - - - - (68,726) - 68,726 - (11,656) (11,656)
Appropriation fo statutory  BRATEEHES
reserve fund - - - - 3,558 - (3,558) - - -
Asat31December2019  R=ZF-A%
TZA=+- 469,785 1,047,082  218809*  (163,212* 43733 (199.947) 205219 1,921,479 721,831 2,643,310
* The consolidated other reserves of $1,246,465,000 (2018: $1,459,857,000) * REMBIRARMYREER S H A &

in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise these reserve

accounts.

1,246,465,000 7L (ZZF— N\ :
J0) A SR ERE AR -

1,459,857,000
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ/\IﬁzﬁUle%

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k38 #EASN + A LIIR)

2019 2018
—E-hE -2 )\F
Notes $°000 $°000
Bt Fr T
(Restated)
(g E75)
Cash flows from operating activities & FHELZHERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BEiA (E518) a Al
From continuing operations KRBT E X5 (596,711) (91,034)
From discontinued operations RE R IFEEFETE 166,181 937,480
Adjustments for: LTI FIEFE
Finance costs BERA 8,12 190,424 145,126
Interest income from financial assets BRAREEFAERE
at fair value through profit or loss 2B EZFEMA 6 (7,395) (4,141)
Bank interest income RITHBHA 6 (6,152) (3,367)
Depreciation e 15 15,437 13,575
Depreciation of right-of-use FRREENE
assets/amortisation of TEI Tt 70 & SRR 8
prepaid land lease payments 18 20,767 481
Impairment of trade receivables and 2 5 EWGRIA K
other receivables Hth FEUGRIRR (B 20,21 43,596 442
Impairment of contract assets BHEERE 22 54 —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB ARz Wz 12,32 (136,793) (915,696)
Loss on disposal on investment HEREYE 2 B8
properties - 3,820
Net valuation loss of investment REYFHEBEFE
properties 17 787,975 423,327
Loss on disposal of items of LEME - BEREHEE
property, plant and equipment it - 250
Impairment of goodwill SR 3,079 1,377
480,462 511,640
Increase in properties under e ELES il
development (843,004) (1,290,850)
Decrease in completed properties BIEREZERTYERLD
held for sale 116,532 105,090
Decrease/(increase) in trade B S RUGRIA R
receivables and bills receivables JRWE R L, (FE ) 96,999 (148,695)
Decrease in prepayments, other TERTFOE - B EUGRIE K&
receivables and other assets HE&EERD 714,605 516,629
Increase in contract incremental cost A HIE S RCAIE N - (11,506)
Decrease in receipts in advance TEEIER A (23,873) (2,429)
Decrease in trade payables and B o ENFIA R
other payables At B RIER (1,205,221) (185,261)
(Decrease)/increase in contract EHBEORD) 5N
liabilities (54,727) 123,654
Cash used in operations KETEFTAZRE (718,227) (381,728)
Interest portion of the lease payments ~ HEFZ FEEH 18 9,112) —
Taxes paid EHIE (90,711) (104,869)
Net cash flows used in RETERFAZ
operating activities RERETFHE (818,050) (486,597)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,.‘/T/\Iﬁﬁ/)lb%%%

—hWE+=-A=t+—HItFE
BB TTAIR)

Year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE—F
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3 & s£BASh

2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE—)\F
Notes $’000 $’000
Lz Fr FiT
(Restated)
(gE31)
Net cash flows used in ReEEEIFTA
operating activities ZREREFE (818,050) (486,597)
Cash flows from investing activities BREFEBEEZELSHRE
Purchase of items of property, plant BEWE  HEK
and equipment HEIEE (343,508) (347,235)
Expenditure on investment properties WEMES - (20,263)
Bank interest received EURERTTH B 6,152 3,367
Interest income from financial assets at XA A B ERT ABZEER
fair value through profit or loss ZEEEE 2 EUWA 7,395 4,141
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEME - F%&?&%Iﬁ B
property, plant and equipment Z A5 50R - 5
Increase in time deposits with original FARE A B 23 A 11
maturity of more than three months =& A <z BTF g n
when acquired - (223,260) —
(Increase)/decrease in restricted IR BRI TR
bank deposits (#m),md (5,458) 197,686
Decrease in other current assets B e ) EE/DZ b 2,488 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary under W iE — R HREERIT 2
common control )N - (5,000)
Overseas taxes paid on investing WEE @JZEH/E?\\%RIE
activities - (81,957)
Proceeds received on debt from HERB AR E EZ%@‘%
disposal of subsidiaries 2B HﬁZFﬁ’E FRIE 740,495 4,761,988
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBA 32 (8,104) 1,387,444
Net cash flows from investing activities 1% % & ffi 1§ Zﬁ%ﬁgggﬁ 176,200 5,950,176
Cash flows from financing activities BIEEFBEEZBESRE
Proceeds from new loans from S RIS B B KPS 5RIE
financial institutions 225,760 —
Repayment of loans from financial EESREEER
institutions (99,088) (609,992)
New loans from an intermediate —REFREER A R 2 ST AR
holding company 1,034,097 =
Repayment of loans to an intermediate A — AR B A FEBER
holding company (905,254) (4,460,251)
Increase in amount due to an FEAS — AR AR A B SRIEIE AN
intermediate holding company - 633,431
Proceeds from other borrowings E & RATS A 9,500 167,494
Repayment of other borrowings B E DS /T>)\ - (70,174)
Principal portion of lease payments MENFZ AR (14,286) —
Interest paid EAFLE (105,777) (623,000)
Capital injection from non-controlling SRR AR B
shareholder - 10,078
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMETEFE (A Z
financing activities REREBFE 144,952 (4.952,414)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBELEEY
and cash equivalents i GRd) BEE (496,898) 511,165
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzReMReEED
beginning of year 2,741,296 2,398,099
Cash and cash equivalents included in st AREHEEE
assets held for sale THERESZEY 12()(b) (28,489) —
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E R & &) 2 /& (17,212) (167,968)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year F4% 23R4 I8 2 EEY) 2,198,697 2,741,296
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ/\IﬁzﬁUle%

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k38 #EASN + A LIIR)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —/\&F
Notes $°000 $'000
BisE Fr T
Analysis of balances of cash and HReREASEENEHRI N
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHE & 23 2,198,697 2,742,303
Time deposits TEHATF K 23 223,260 3,995
Less: Restricted bank deposits B R BRI TIE K 23 - (5,002)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ~ FIBERAR A BIFSIAL R 2
the consolidated statement of Re KIBeEEY
financial position 2,421,957 2,741,296
Less: time deposits with original maturity & @ B AR R 2 H H
of more than three months 838 = & 5 2 7E BifF 5k
when acquired (223,260) —
Cash and cash equivalents as JIIRRGEHERERZ
stated in the consolidated ReRALEEY
statement of cash flows 2,198,697 2,741,296
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1.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (the “Company”) is a EBEOERRERARIART]) A
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered REREFMELIZBRAA - AR
office of the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 7] 2 FE 3% = BR iz 74 Victoria Place, 5th
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda. Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda -
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively FAR-ARARENB AR (AT EHE
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in property [AEE]) EERFEARLFE([F
development, property investment and property management, Bl ) MOBIMEEMEERE - MERER
hotel operation and management, hotel design and construction MEEE  BIEEEREE  BERS
management services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) RERERERT -
and overseas during the year.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), ARRAEZ([EF)RB  ARAlZH
the immediate holding company of the Company is Wanda MIER AR ABEREMEFINGRA
Commercial Properties Overseas Limited (“Wanda Overseas”), a AI((B&EEN])  —HAREBRLHE
company established in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate M ZAF  RARZ&EERARA
holding company of the Company is Dalian Hexing Investment NEGEIGEBRAT - —ERFREMK
Company Limited, a company established in the PRC. hvawd/NS I
Information about principal subsidiaries FEMBLATER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RAREZMBARZFFBLT ¢
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered RN T HEAE
and business share capital ERED Principal
Name AL ERTZER Direct Indirect activities
=18 BRREEME EERITVEN HiZ EE TEER
Wanda Commercial Hong Kong $1 — 51% Investment
Properties Investment holding
Limited (note i)
BT E B 17T TEZER

EBRA R (BiaEi)
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows

NAREEER @)

MEARER (#)

RRRAEEMBRRZFHBINT (&) :

(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT EAE
and business share capital RS Principal

Name MR ERITEER Direct Indirect activities

=L B RE R F AR AN Hix D FEEWR

Guilin Gaoxin Wanda PRC US$180,000,000 — 51% Property
Plaza Co., Ltd. (note i) development

EMENEERS R Y 180,000,000 % 7T, MEER
BRRAE (FEED)

Wanda Americas Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Wanda
Americas RE”) (note ii)

BERINME BB 17T TEER
KEBRAA
([BEEMHE ) (FIRE)

Parcel C LLC USA US$300,000,000 — 54% Property

development
ESE1 300,000,000 27T MEER

Wanda Australia Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Wanda
Australia RE”) (note ii)

SERNEEREFR AR BB 17T REFER
(TEEmMHbE 1) (BT

Wanda Hotel Management Hong Kong US$1 100% = Investment
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited holding
(note ii)

SEHEEE (H8)ARAA BB 17T AR
(B &Eii)

Wanda Hotel Management PRC US$10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (note i) management

BEREER(LB)BRAA H 10,000,000 7T BEER

(B=ED
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIR&EEER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows AR EBWBAR ZFBUOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered ¥ NN )
and business share capital ERAD Principal
Name MR ERITEER Direct Indirect activities
=L B RE I =R HiE DiEE3 FEEWR
Horgos Wanda Engineering PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Construction
Construction Management consulting
Consulting Company Limited*
ERRTEETREREE B A% 10,000,000 7T SRR
k] NG
Wanda Moment Shanghai PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* operation
PeERESEEAEERE H A 10,000,000 7T B E & E
BIRAA]
Wanda Moment Nanchang PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* operation
HEEEXEREEEARAR H Y AR 10,000,000 7T B E 58
Wanda Moment Ningbo PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* operation
ERENERSEAEERE A A 10,000,000 7T R S
BRAF]
Shanghai Wantao PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Sale of
Trading Co., Ltd.” goods
LEEREmEERAR H A% 10,000,000 7T EmigE
Xiamen Wandefu PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Sale of
Catering Management goods
Co., Ltd.*
EFEERERERGRAR] a3 A% 10,000,000 7T EmiHE

* For identification purpose only
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

These entities are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in
the PRC.

i Except for the statutory financial statements of Wanda Commercial
Properties Investment Limited, Wanda Americas RE, Wanda Australia
RE and Wanda Hotel Management (Hong Kong) Co. Limited for the
year ended 31 December 2019, the statutory financial statements of
the subsidiaries of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
were not audited by Ernst & Young or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists of the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties which have
been measured at fair value. Disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

2. REHERSTTHER @)

2.1

MR ELYE (12)

BRARBEABZREMEIN
MBHRERBELRAVERER -
HANHTFE2.4  — R - B
S HEARNNRFEEREERA
AEBERLERARE ZBREES
5l - ZFMBHRERABT( T2
5 Br= BRI - BEEDH
gz Ta(FrEl -

it

AN = -
S

===

BHE-ZE-—NF+-A=1+—HI
FE  HREVBREEEARAIK
HB AR 25k - B AR
BAARTEEREREFNEE
(RIEEBIEER) - EAKEH2
HAY S A X B P EE HE U B B 3R i A
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures BT BRREBE 2
The Group has adopted the following new and revised REEE R AFEMBIREKEIREK
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial M TONIE R B SIS RS 2ER
statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BAEHREEAZ 0% REBHEZ
Negative Compensation (B77%) Bl
HKFRS 16 Leases ERURASRNZ6Y A5
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment BACHERE19% FEGT GRakE
or Settlement (fBT)
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates AheiElE % REERARAELEZ
and Joint Ventures (fBT%) b3 73
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Bh AR hasRE FRHEE TRl
Tax Treatments Z58) —REENH
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3, BRURRERI-T-nER AAMBREEAES
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 TI-ERRIERINE  ARUBEREE
and HKAS 23 1% AREHED
E105REAEHEN
05263
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 19,
amendments to HKAS 28, and Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the nature
and the impact of the new and revised HKFRS is described
below:

(a) HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except
for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles as
in HKAS 17. HKFRS16 did not have any significant
impact on lease where the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application
of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard
has been applied retrospectively and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated and continues to
be reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(a)

(continued)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The
Group elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16
has been applied only to contracts entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019.
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BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating
leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
office, hotel buildings and warehouses. As a lessee,
the Group previously classified leases as either finance
leases or operating leases based on the assessment
of whether the lease transferred substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group.
Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single approach
to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases, except for two elective
exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected on
a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected
by class of underlying asset). Instead of recognising
rental expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing from
1 January 2019, the Group recognises depreciation
(and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and
interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as
finance costs).
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating
leases (continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at 1 January 2019 and presented separately in the
statement of financial position. The right-of-use assets
were measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before 1
January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January
2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease
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BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2,

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(a) (continued)

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at

1 January 2019 was as follows:

MEEERSTTEER @)

() #&)

R-F—NF—A—BE®A
FEMBREERF 165

EEZZENT
Increase/
(decrease)
#hn,
(R2)
$’000
Fr
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use 2 A& AL AN
assets 27,352
Decrease in prepaid land TE{F T b8 & FRIE R
lease payments (16,737)
Decrease in prepayments, TERTFRIE © Eofth fEUGRIE 2
other receivables HEmEERD
and other assets (98)
Increase in total assets 48 & EIE N 10,517
Liabilities =N
Increase in lease liabilities HEBEEMN 10,517
Increase in total liabilities 488 FI N 10,517
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 2.2 B BERREEZEE (&)
(Continued)
() (continued) @ &)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to RZZE-—NLF—H—HBHZHE
the operating lease commitments as at 31 December EBER-_ZT-N\F+A
2018 are as follows: =S t—HZEEREREZ
HERT -
$'000
T

Operating lease commitments R=—Z—N\F+=-A=+—HA2Z

as at 31 December 2018 REEERE 23,469
Less: Commitments relating A B E R IR
to short-term leases and RZE—NF+-A=+—H
those leases with ok, 2 Bil & m < T8 E AR RS 2 A HE

a remaining lease term
ending on or before

31 December 2019 (18,172)
Add: Payments for optional m:R=E-—NF+-_A=+—H
extension periods not I AR TR, AT 2 HE &= AR 515K
recognised as at
31 December 2018 5,745
11,042

Weighted average incremental RZZE-—NF—HA—Bz

borrowing rate as at MEFEEEETRE

1 January 2019 4.99%
Lease liabilities as at R-ZE-hE—-A—H2Z

1 January 2019 HEAE 10,517
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BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 BRI -

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS
12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity

considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of
tax treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation,
the Group considered whether it has any uncertain
tax positions arising from the transfer pricing on its
intergroup sales. Based on the Group’s tax compliance
and transfer pricing study, the Group determined
that it is probable that its transfer pricing policy will
be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly, the
interpretation did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. Since the amendments
apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 BRI -

BABTTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, completed
properties held for sale, properties under development,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal
group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which

the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting

policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(

) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(v the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity) ; and

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

140 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

2.

B EAER

DETBER )

24 FEETHRBEB)

b) fWExT R A AT EA R

HEE

() ZEBERAEEAR—
SEKE :

iy —EERBAS—[EEE
ZHENRINEE R
(HEZ—EEBNER
CINGEAS AR B
BAR])

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(i)

(viil

2 iR 0> B

o 3 m
- W R @

Sy N

i}
i
B

ERX@EMLZ A
TR

a)()IBFTit 2 ATHE
EERTE NS R
(HEERF) 2
EEEAE?

- fiE © :
Rt

51
?ﬁ’@

AIAEESAEE &
AERHEEEEAR
R BB SR
ZAEMKERE]



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2,

POLICIES (Continued)

RREERS

TR (&)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
residual values and useful lives for this purpose are as
follows:

24 FEESTHRBE B
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Useful lives Residual values

A {5 F 5 A G

Freehold land KA ZERE T Not depreciated Not depreciated

Wi E AT E

Buildings BT 30 years 5%
304

Leasehold improvements HEMHERE Over the shorter of the Nil

lease terms and 5 years i3
RS Fr8EE

Furniture, fixtures and equipment B - B RS 3-5 years 0-10%
3-5%

Motor vehicles RE 5 years 0-10%
54

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents renovation works in
progress and is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost mainly comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its
sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified as
held for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale

are not depreciated or amortised.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains
a lease component and non-lease component(s), the Group
adopts the practical expedient not to separate non-lease
component(s) and to account for the lease component
and the associated non-lease component(s) (e.g., property
management services for leases of properties) as a single
lease component.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Office 2 to 6 years
Hotel buildings 15 to 20 years
Warehouses 1to 2 years
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(Continued)

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately
from other liabilities in the statement of financial
position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of offices and
warehouses (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and plant
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially

all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset

are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains

lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates

the consideration in the contract to each component on

a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss

due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in

negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to

the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised

over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in

which they are earned.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of

ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for

as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets

leased by the Group under operating leases are included

in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the

operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or

loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where

the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating

leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEETHRBEB)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the assets.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REEERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive

income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject

24 FEESTHRBE B
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classified within the following stages for measurement of BT REsTERHEEEENE
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets which BT 4R - MEFE A T XGRS
apply the simplified approach as detailed below. b HENEB SRR BENRELHE
EBRIN
Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit —fBE — EERREUH
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that
do not contain a significant financing component or when
the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting
policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs
with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued) emasEE)
Subsequent measurement #ETE
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends CRIBENREFERTHEN TS
on their classification as follows: 3 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings) R AR 2 A E (B3

KiE)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings IIaTER% - stEERRERER
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the PAE R R RE IR SR AT = - I
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting WAL 2 FZEBWAERX - RIRA AR
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. 25 o B EKRIERER - BlERF
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or FREREN LB RERNBR K
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through FRRERR o
the effective interest rate amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any ST E S SH R A B RT R R 2 (AR
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that EsoRE @ B BEEKERRE
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective BRI ORI E AR o BERFZE

interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the BT AB SRR AN ERA ©
statement of profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period. The net realisable value of
properties under development is determined by establishing
the market values of the properties on an “as-if” completed
basis with appropriate deduction on construction costs,
professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable profit
margin.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total land and building costs
attributable to unsold properties. The net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sales proceeds of properties
sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management’s estimates
based on the prevailing market conditions, on an individual
property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible

temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are

recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit

will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and

unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until
it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

@

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at
the point in time when risks and rewards of ownership
of the property is transferred to the purchasers,
generally on the customer obtains the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property
and the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

Hotel management services, hotel design and
construction management services

Revenue is recognized in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Groups .

Hotel operation income

Revenue from room sales and other ancillary guest
services are recognised on a daily basis, and revenue
from sales of goods is recognised at the point in time
when risks and rewards of the ownership of the goods
are transferred to customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REEERS

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

TR (&)

2.4 FESTHREE (&)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(d)  Loyalty program management service fee

Revenue from the loyalty program management service
fee is generated from the services provided in relation
to the loyalty program. The program reward members
with points for each stay at the hotels or certain other
consumption at the hotels, which are then redeemable
for free hotel nights and other goods and services. The
Group defers cash amount received from participating
hotels as the future redemption obligation, and such
points that will eventually be redeemed as revenue
when they are used or on the expiry date.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.
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BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Contract assets BREE

BREERMEHREERFPZEm
S ARTS M AERAL B Z 48 © AR SR
BN &P X NRERRIAZIHIAT
BBREPEBREMmAIRBEL -
BRBEEERA GRITHREURE -
BREERETRERE - FHEH
REREEREBE SR

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

i

\

i

MES

Contract liabilities

\

+

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received SEREFPEBERE MRS

or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer AT & KB EE R UEUT ST
before the Group transfers the related goods or services. EIEAR (AR EE RE) R - A
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the SEETEHNN - SRNAERRS
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of Wz (BN82% 48 M & mn 2 AR 7% 2 4%
the related goods or services to the customer). HIEERRP) o

Contract costs BRI

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@ The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)

performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. HmEEBEREFTBER @)
POLICIES (Continued)
24 TESTHTHREBE®)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Contract costs (Continued)

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which the asset
related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
pension schemes operated by the respective governments.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the pension
schemes is to pay the required ongoing contributions.
Contributions under the schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the pension schemes.
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BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are

currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas companies which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all the
fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

3.

172

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Judgements (Continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of

contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

Classification between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are described below:

Fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar

properties, the Group considers information from a variety of

sources, including:

(@)

current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidences such as current market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition, and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2019 was $1,509,238,000 (2018: $3,345,150,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement,

are stated in note 17 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. BERSTTHEREET

AND ESTIMATES

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and

contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
20 and note 22 to the financial statements, respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (‘IBR”)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to CIT in Mainland China. As a result of the
fact that certain matters relating to CIT have not been confirmed
by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgement based
on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related
policies are required in determining the CIT provision to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will have an impact
on the CIT expense and CIT provisions in the period in which the
differences are realised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

From June 2019 onward, management of the Company
(“Management”) has been in active discussions with the potential
buyers for the disposal of its interest in Parcel C LLC (“Parcel
C”), a subsidiary of the Company who hold a property under
construction in Chicago, the United States of America (“USA”).
As at 31 December 2019, the negotiations for the sale were in
progress and Parcel C was classified as a disposal company held
for sale and as a discontinued operation.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has
decided to cease the business segment of development and sale
of properties in the PRC. Therefore, the business segment of
development and sale of properties was classified as discontinued
operation.

For management purpose, the Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to the nature of
their operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that offers products and services which are subject to risks
and returns different from those of the other operating segments.
The Group has three reportable operating segments and the
corresponding items of segment information for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been restated. Particulars of the Group’s
reportable operating segments are summarised as follows:

(@ leasing and management of commercial properties held by
the Group for long-term investment;

(b)  hotel operations and management services; and

(c) hotel design and construction management services.

4.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is measured by adjusted profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations except that non-
lease-related finance costs, other income/(loss), net, bank interest
income, other interest income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as well as corporate and other unallocated
expense are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, deferred tax assets, restricted
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, assets classified as
held for sale and corporate and other unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, loans from
financial institutions, loans from an intermediate holding company,
other borrowings, tax payable, liabilities directly associate with
the assets classified as held for sale and corporate and other
unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
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A N A e
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BETHER =
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_E-NF+=-H=+t—H
IR
Hotel
Investment Hotel design and
properties  operation and construction
leasing and management management
management services services Total
BT
RENE BEEEER RER
HERER BERE BERB EH
$'000 $000 $'000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Tr
Segment revenue: (note 5) WS  (HHEES5)
Sales to external customers HETIPEP 149,118 471,229 192,601 812,948
Intersegment sales DEEEE - - 556 556
149,118 471,229 193,157 813,504
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment sales HEDBEHE (556)
Revenue from continuing operations SRR 812,948
Segment profit/(loss) AEER/ () (666,196) 176,162 57,037 (432,997)
Reconciliation: e
Other income, net Hip A58 1,262
Finance costs (other than interest on lease liabilities) BERA(RERE
MBS (143,821)
Bank interest income BRITHBMA 6,152
Other interest income from financial assets BAREBEA
at fair value through profit or loss Eniks oREE
ZE A SHA 7,395
Corporate and other unallocated expense REREMADRAZ (34,702)
Loss before tax from continuing operations HECEER
ZBRHRiEE (596,711)
Segment assets PHEE 1,516,057 493,613 158,791 2,168,461
Reconciliation: % -
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale PEARENLE
ZIHERRIEE 4,995,232
Corporate and other unallocated assets AEIREMAATARE 2,429,286
Total assets BEE 9,592,979
Segment liabilities PHEE 144,653 676,385 87,710 908,748
Reconciliation: ik -
Liabilties of a disposal group classified PEARENE
as held for sale ZHERRIBE 1,459,703
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties ARREMAIEEE 4,581,218
Total liabiltties Baf 6,049,669
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., BEDEER @)
(Continued)
Other segment information Hith 7y FER
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE—-NEF+=-A=+—H
tFE
Hotel
Investment Hotel design and
properties  operation and construction
leasingand  management  management
management services services Total
BER
REME BEEER RER
HERER EBRE EERE @it
$'000 $000 $000 $000
Fr i Fr r
Impairment loss recognised in the statement BERERRER
of profit or loss, net: (note 6) ZREEE -
%8 (fitie)
— Segment assets —DHEE - 1,298 26,941 28,239
— Unallocated assets — RAOREE 8,758
36,997
Depreciation and amortisation (note 7) FrEREH (T
— Segment assets —nHEE 383 17,807 614 18,804
— Unallocated assets — RO EE 2,751
21,555
Capital expenditure™ BARZ
— Segment assets —DHEE 13 91,370 266 91,649
— Unallocated assets — RKPEEE 66
91,715

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and

equipment, investment properties, construction in progress and

leasehold improvements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDHER @)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018 (Restated) 2 E—-NFE+=-HB=+—H
IEFE (KE5)
Hotel
Investment Hotel design and
properties operation and construction
leasing and management management
management services services Total
i
REME BEEER REZ
HERER EERS EEMRS a5t
$000 $000 $'000 $000
T T T T
Segment revenue: (note 5) Il (FHES)
Sales to external customers HETINER 168,736 429,181 214,403 812,320
Segment profit/(loss) AR/ (F8) (293,873) 236,810 116,680 59,617
Reconciliation: e
Other loss, net HiBREE (39,556)
Finance costs BERA (99,168)
Bank interest income SRITAIBMA 3,367
Other interest income from financial assets BAREBERFA
at fair value through profit or loss BaE/epEE
ZE A SHA 4,141
Corporate and other unallocated expense AR REMARD R (19,435)
Loss before tax from continuing operations RECEER
ZBRHRIER (91,084)
Segment assets PREE 3,363,487 829,078 267,522 4,460,087
Reconciliation; i
Assets of the segment of sales of properties which were M HEN TEE
classified as a discontinued operation (EAESER
RILREET) 3,361,148
Corporate and other unallocated assets ARAREMRDREE 4,512,196
Total assets BEE 12,333,431
Segment liabilities PHEE 66,044 264,819 82,470 413,333
Reconciliation: e
Liabilties of the segment of sales of properties which were ~ #1EHE D HEE
classified as a discontinued operation (HBESEA
RIHEE%T) 1,238,634
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties ARREMRDEARE 7,474,073
Total liabilties BafE 9,126,040
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDHER @)
(Continued)
Other segment information Hith 7y FER
Year ended 31 December 2018 (Restated) BE-_Z—N\E+=ZA=+—H
IEFE (ES)
Hotel
Investment Hotel design and
properties operation and construction
leasing and management management
management services services Total
il
REME BEEER RER
HERER EBR% EERB% @5t
$000 $000 $000 $000
T Tr Tr T
Impairment loss recognised in the statement EREERERLZ
of profit or loss, net: (note 6) REBE
%8 (fitie)
— Segment assets —HHEE 16 162 31 209
— Unallocated assets —ROKEE =
209
Depreciation and amortisation (note 7) FrEREH (T
— Segment assets —NHEE 969 1,055 1,183 3,207
— Unallocated assets — APEREE 586
3,793
Capital expenditure® BRI
— Segment assets — DHEE 20,279 491 919 21,689
— Unallocated assets —AAERBE 12
21,701

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and

equipment, investment properties and leasehold improvements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. KED

(Continued)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
locations of (i) the Group’s revenue of continuing operations from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s non-current assets of
continuing operations (excluding deferred tax assets) (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of revenue
from external customers is based on the locations at which the
services were provided or the properties were sold or leased. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based
on the physical locations of the assets, in the case of fixed assets,
and the locations of the operations to which they are allocated, in

the case of goodwill.

tEER

MiE °

Reportable segment
revenue from
external customers

HER @)

TREJNEBOARERBINDELZ
FEREEBREL () A EBEFELE
EBZERDEE(TNERELEHAE
) ([#85E
ke REIMNBER et 2 IR B T
RIEMRHRG XML EXHENEZ
PREMTIE © $REFFMBNE E 2 MR {L
ENREEZERUE (REEEEM
5 RES

FRBEE]) ZHBLEE

feee@E s (GEmEms)

Specified
non-current assets

REIMBEEZ
DIk EBEFRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NAEFE —T-N\F ZE-hF ZT-N\F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Tt Fr F7T
(Restated)
(re&E5)
The PRC 8
(including Hong Kong) (BEED) 809,663 809,801 1,898,161 3,382,696
Overseas SZdN 3,285 2,519 - 781,603
812,948 812,320 1,898,161 4,164,299
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDHER @)
(Continued)
Information about major customers BREFEREFZEHR
During the year, the Group made sales to certain groups of major FA - AEBRETEESEFAR (B
customers, which are known to be under common control, the SEEPES]) EITHE  REZERPH
revenue from which individually contributed to more than 10% of WS ERIE AL E AR B10% ° DT
the Group’s total revenue. The analysis is as follows: AR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
$°000 $000
Ft Tt
(Restated)
(geE=75)
Customer A ZEA 305,160 317,528
Customer B EFB 150,064 192,079
Customer C EFC 94,182 89,949
Others Hfth 263,542 212,764
812,948 812,320
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5. REVENUE 5. W&
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD HTAT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$°000 $'000
Fx Tz
(Restated)
(&&=751)
Revenue from contracts with  FREEFE# 2z
customers
Hotel management services S TEE B AR 460,344 429,181
Hotel design and construction B JE R RIERR B AR
management services 192,601 214,403
Hotel operation income B TE L E A 10,885 =
663,830 643,584
Revenue from other sources B KR 2 W
Gross rental income from KREZEME B WALREE
investment properties:
Variable rent FENEE 4,719 4,902
Base rent HEAME® 144,399 163,834
149,118 168,736
812,948 812,320
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5. REVENUE (continueq) 5. Wz
(i) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from () REEFEHzWZE WG
contracts with customers DIFER
2019 2018
—E-NE —N\F
$000 $000
Fr FIT
(Restated)
C=vl))
Recognised at a point TR 1B B ) B R AR
in time
Hotel operation income B EEERA 4,919 =
Recognised over time J?“—EQE ki
Hotel operation income ZEWA 5,966 -
Hotel management services /@JE B 12 AR 1% 460,344 429,181
Hotel design and construction B JE %5t R 2R B 12 AR TS
management services 192,601 214,403
Revenue from contracts REFZFEHZWE
with customers 663,830 643,584
(i) Performance obligations (i) BHEME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Hotel management services, hotel design and construction
management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 90 days
from the date of billing.

Hotel operation income
The performance obligation is satisfied as services are

rendered or goods are delivered and payment is generally
received in advance.
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5. REVENUE (Continued)
(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)
Loyalty programme managements services

The performance obligation is satisfied as members’ points
are used or expired, and the payment from hotels who
participated in the loyalty program is received in advance.

Except for the performance obligation in relation with hotel
design and construction management services, all of the
performance obligations are expected to be recognised
within one year.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
of hotel design and construction management services as at
31 December are as follows:

5. W&

(i)

BRNEE#E)

BB EE IR

BREETED Z%@Eﬁﬁ%tﬁﬁﬁaﬂﬁl
ER2 B (B ET

B2 BE 2 B

B BB R R MR E R R B BE
ZBEHWBES  FRERHEEEY
R—FAHER

RTZA=+—RH  SEEBER
SAREREERBZHB TEOEE
(REERSED REZEK) 2R P
ERSRENT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$°000 $000
Fr T
Amounts expected to TERRR R AW 2 &7

be recognised as revenue:
Within one year —FA 154,225 145,200
After one year HBR—F 137,061 339,407
291,286 484,607
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6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME/ 6. HitlmREAUA
(LOSS), NET (B518) 88
An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and other income/(loss), REERARFEL S EB Btk
net from continuing operations is as follows: Hig A/ (E18) FEAaT
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
$°000 $'000
Fr T
(Restated)
€ <==27l)
Other revenue H iz
Bank interest income HRITHAEUA 6,152 3,367
Other interest income from EAnBEFABRER
financial assets at fair value LR REE 2 EMF S WA
through profit or loss 7,395 4,141
13,547 7,508
Other incomel/(loss), net BEMRA -~ (F#E)FE
Exchange gain/(loss) P& Uss (B518) 3,805 (44,791)
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment &g NM &K EE
of financial and contract CRfE) RERE - 558
assets, net
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EBGRIRRE (27,292) (231)
(Impairment)/reversal of H b pE I RIE
impairment of other receivables CRfE) RERRE (9,651) 22
Impairment of contract assets EHEERE (54) =
Other income from a lessee due ~ REABARELOMESE
to breach of a contract Z E A A 33,190 =
Others Hith 1,264 5,444
1,262 (39,556)
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7. LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 7. HEREEE ZBRIAIE
OPERATIONS B

AEBEFERERTE < BRHATE IR
MR, (GEA) THIRB 1RER :

The Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived
at after charging/(crediting):

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
Notes $’000 $'000
=3 Fr Tt
(Restated)
(F&E5)
Cost of goods sold BEERmEA 9,819 =
Cost of services provided PRt AR 7% 2 A AR 244,950 148,173
Direct operating expenses G 2 IREYEESE
(including repairs and L EEEERY
maintenance) arising on (BREFEERIRE)
rental-earning investment
properties 19,441 18,840
274,210 167,013

Depreciation of property, Y% - RENEREITE
plant and equipment 4,083 3,312
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (R EEITE

(2018: Amortisation of —T—)\F:

land lease payments) T E ) 17,472 481
Minimum lease payments under S FERT 2 £ &

operating leases for land BFLEHERe

and buildings - 6,076
Lease payments not included FrEHEAERIERTA

in the measurement ZRERK
of lease liabilities 18(d) 7,094 —
Decrease in fair value WEWEARBERD
of investment properties 17 787,975 423,327
Loss on disposal of items HEYE  BEMREEE
of property, plant and equipment 2 fE518 - 250
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN
— Annual audit services — FEZERT 1,061 1,110
— Non-audit services — IR 900 3,220
Employee benefit expense EERAIMEZ
(excluding directors’ (TBEREEFHM)
remuneration)
— Salaries, wages and — & TEREAMER
other benefits 105,645 97,746
— Contributions to defined — MEREHFCRINGTE
contribution retirement plans 1B 2 3R 3,993 3,845
109,638 101,591
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BB
An analysis of the Group’s finance costs from continuing REBFELEEB 2 BERAD TR
operations is as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
$°000 $'000
F Tt
(Restated)
(#e&E5)
Interest on loans from SRIEEE A B
financial institutions 10,779 20,276
Interest on loans from an — R R A R BB
intermediate holding company 133,042 78,892
Interest on leases liabilities HEBER L (FiFE18)
(note 18) 9,112 —
152,933 99,168
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Chapter 622G of the Laws of
Hong Kong), is as follows:

9. EEHN

FRRE_ETRAREARQBRE (BF
AP 622% ) 55383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ ©) &
MNIERARI (EBRESFZER) B (F
BAGIE2GE) FoBEELESH
B

2019 2018

—E-hEF —F—N\F

$°000 $'000

Fr Tz

Fees e 741 526

Other emoluments: Hf

Salaries, allowances and e EEREYREF

benefits in kind 9,499 9,818

Pension scheme contributions BINEFTEIEFR 173 202

Discretionary bonuses BETEAL 3,635 3,764

14,048 14,330
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

9. EEHM

Directors’ remuneration is as follows: BFEHMT :
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration
e 11913 Bife
ok ENER MERA RS st
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
2019 “E-NF
Chairman and FRFEFNTES
non-executive director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TABESE - - - - -
Executive director: HiITEE:
Mr. Ning Qifeng BEIELE - 9,499 3,635 173 13,307
Independent non-executive BV FEHITEE -
directors:
Mr. Liu Jipeng ElF Gl e
(resigned on (MN=B—-N%F
21 March 2019) =AZ+—HEH) 56 - - - 56
Dr. Xue Yunkui BESET
(resigned on (R=Z—h%E
21 March 2019) =R=+—HEE) 56 - - - 56
Mr. He Zhiping MEELEE 245 - - - 245
Dr. Chen Yan FrEE T
(appointed on (R=Z—NEF 192 - - - 192
21 March 2019) =A-t+—BEZ{T)
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng xR BB E 192 - - - 192
(appointed on (RZF—NE
21 March 2019) =A-t+—BEZfT)
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Zhang Lin SRR - - - - -
Mr. Han Xu BREAE
(appointed on (RZE—NE
14 March 2019) “ATMBEZRFT) - - - - -
741 9,499 3,635 173 14,048
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-+ -+
9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EZFHM )
Directors’ remuneration is as follows (continued): BEEFBT (&) -
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e R Rike
e EWEF Wi TR st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Fr T T Fr
2018 —E-)N\F
Chairman and FRFIENTES
non-executive director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TARGRE - - - - -
Executive director: HIES:
Mr. Ning Qifeng BEHIESE - 9,818 3,764 222 13,804

Independent non-executive  BMIFHITEE :

directors:
Mr. Liu Jipeng EL)) e 139 - - - 139
Dr. Xue Yunkui EREEL 139 - - - 139
Mr. He Zhiping S FxE
(appointed On (RZE-N\E
28 March 2018) ZAZTN\BEZEE) 248 - - - 248
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Zhang Lin RARILE - - - - -
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris TREAE
(resigned on (R=Z—NEF
13 February 2019) —At=B&f) - - - - -
526 9,818 3,764 222 14,330
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FA - BEESHENRBREEATH
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018: Nil). g (ZF—N\F : &) -
No remuneration were paid by the Group to the Directors as an RE B R EF I HMERRS N
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation AR E BN AR & B R ) S8 E) S AE &
for loss of office. BEERAE(E -
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Among five individuals with the highest emoluments, one of them
is a director (2018: one director), whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four non-director highest paid employees (2018: four
highest paid non-director employees) are as follows:

10.

hEB=#HES

hEREHER  Hh—2RE% (%
—N\F: —REF)  HFHMFBEIR L
X9 - £ MR ERSHIFES
BE(CZ2-)\F: ORRSFFERE
8) ZHBFRBT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F—N\F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tz

Salaries, allowances and benefits ~ ¥% - B4 R EWEH
in kind 15,173 20,547
Performance related bonus RIFEMRTEAT 5,702 5,904
Pension scheme contributions BIREBFIEIHR 664 754
21,539 27,205

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FHEZFREZFMNTUATE

ol 0
o}

Number of employees

BEEAH
2019 2018
—E-NF —T)N\F
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £ 4,500,000 7T 1 =
$4,500,001 to $5,000,000 4,500,001 7t £ 5,000,000 7T 1 =
$5,000,001 to $5,500,000 5,000,001 7t £ 5,500,000 7T 1 2
$6,500,001 to $7,000,000 6,500,001 7L £ 7,000,000 7T 1 1
$10,000,001 to $10,500,000 10,000,001 7t £ 10,500,000 7T - 1
4 4
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/E N
11. INCOME TAX 1. FTSH
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$°000 $'000
Fr T
(Restated)
(&ES)
Current tax BREA%H 18
Corporate income tax (note (iii)) 1 EERTIS R (B (i)
— Charge for the year — NEERY 84,464 93,111
— Underprovision/(overprovision) — B FEEE R, (BEEAE)
in prior years 269 (565)
84,733 92,546
Deferred tax ELERE
Origination and reversal of ERMER 2 EERER
temporary differences:
— Revaluation of properties — ESH (153,639) (92,616)
— Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 — IRANE B IEHREEAFE 165K 228 (989) -
— Others — Efth (8,748) 371
(163,376) (92,245)
Total tax (credit)/expense SFBIC R ST 2 AN FERTE
for the year from (k) FxEE
continuing operations (78,643) 301
Total tax expense for the year from 4% |F 4K & 555 7 NEFFE R TH
discontinued operations FisZ 4858 36,737 13,803
Total income tax (credit)/expense ~ ANFEFTERT
for the year (%) MAX 4 (41,906) 14,104
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

U

BABTTIIR)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British

Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income tax in

Bermuda and the BVI.

(i)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax or overseas corporate income

tax has been made in the consolidated financial statements as the
Group did not have assessable profits in Hong Kong or overseas for
the year (2018: Nil, except for the withholding tax in relation to the
capital gains on the disposal of the entire equity interest in Wanda
Australia Commercial Properties Pty. Ltd. (‘Wanda Australia CP”)).

(i)

Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The provision for the PRC CIT has been made at the applicable
income tax rate of 25% on the assessable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China (2018: 25%), except for the subsidiary
of the Company established in Horgos, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
region, which enjoys PRC corporate income tax exemptions in
accordance with the relevant tax rules. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rate of tax prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

(iv)  PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT
liabilities, the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by

the tax authorities.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before

tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company

and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense

at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable

rates (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rates, is as

follows:

196
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1. P58 &)

G

)

(i)

(i

(iv)

BARRREEEZWERRFEMKLZ

REBRERKBRELES ([HBE
LERBEDRUKER  AEERBER
ENRBRAEESBABNEFMG
5 °

RS BRAF E AN EES B
SNEERRB AT AT ERNGE
B RRRBEEBFNEHIBIMEZE
FEH (ZZ—\F: & HEELE
Wanda Australia Commercial Properties
Pty Ltd. ([ SZB RN |) 2 2BAHEFT
1SE AR R 2 FRINFIBRIM)

RS ([REMREH])

REDEAMER 2 BEDREAEER
R B b 2 (B A B 2 FERR B Al i
BB & 25% (=% — )\4F : 25%)
1B - HERFBR TR AR ER R
BRI Z AR AT B A TIRRSN - HARIEAR
R ERAZE PR EMERAE o
H bR 2 FERROR I TR A B L
EBAERR 2 R RTHE -

o B IR ([ LB ER )

+ B E R AR - b 38 (E (B S AT
BRIBR AT RS (B 3F TR
BRRAREMYEERSZ L)) AR
EREI0% E60% U - REBEER
BARRE R BB AR AR T E 2 48 E
¥ HIRET AT « SHER T
ARIE - ERIRSAE T HILERAE
Al TS ET B EEER SRR
KRR R

BEE 2R TE W R BB AR BRI AR
R,/ (BR) 2 BB B B EIR B R a
BHBERZHRMERBRE (BUAE
B BERB R ZEIRMT
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1. P58 &)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$°000 $000
Ft Tt
(Restated)
(g &%)

Loss before tax from SEICE R TE 2 BRIATE B

continuing operations (596,711) (91,034)
Profit before tax from IR TS 2 R AT

discontinued operations 166,181 937,480

(430,530) 846,446

National tax calculated at rates RERANBERBEER 2

applicable to profit in the tax ARG E 2

jurisdictions concerned s 9,520 11,988
Adjustments in respect of B BRI RN EATNIE 2 F

current tax of previous periods 269 (565)
Income not subject to tax BAZR WA (158,771) (167,778)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 X2 73,977 151,253
Tax losses not recognised RERZ BIRBE 12,481 16,470
Deductible temporary differences — AFER 2 A HIB E b5 14 = &

not recognised 16,179 12,776
Effect of withholding tax at 30% ¥ & & & p SR A W

on the gains of disposal 12 30% U TE N A 5 2

of Wanda Australia CP - 31,957
Effect of tax at 10% on the HALE  —EEBHE AR

interest income from BRHNE KAV A EWA

offshore loans of a Hong Kong E10% HHi 2

subsidiary of the Group - 6,577
Tax losses utilised from BRI B RAIAEREE

previous periods (11,670) (6,257)
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) F A iB A FfE AR

differences not recognised AR SR =R

in prior years - (6,558)
LAT T IR EDE 21,478 (47,678)
CIT effect of LAT TR ER B EMSHTE (5,369) 11,919
Tax (credit)/expense at the Group’s 1EAE B BRI RAE 2 18

effective rate (k) FX (41,906) 14,104
Tax (credit)/expense from REBRR R E 2 B EER

continuing operations at ZRIBEER) FHX

the effective rate (78,643) 301
Tax expense from discontinued RERBERGTE 2 RIEREER

operations at the effective rate ZRIERY 36,737 13,803
Tax (credit)/expense at the Group's &7 E BRI K+E

effective rate ZHIBERR) FX (41,906) 14,104
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12.

198

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019

— the Management has been in active discussions with
potential buyers for the disposal of the Company’s interest
in Parcel C, a subsidiary of the Company which holds a
property under construction in Chicago, USA. The Group
will have no geographical business segment in USA once
the disposal is completed. As at 31 December 2019, the
negotiations for the sale were in progress and Parcel C was
classified as a disposal company held for sale and as a
discontinued operation.

— the Company has decided to cease the business of
development and sale of properties in the PRC. Therefore,
the segment of the development and sale of properties was
classified as a discontinued operation.

During the year ended December 2018

On 16 January 2018, the Company, as vendor, and R&F Properties
(HK) Company Limited (“R&F”), as the purchaser, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement in respect of the disposal of 60% of
the entire issued share capital of Wanda International Real Estate
Investment Co. Ltd. (“Wanda International”), at a consideration
of GBP35,609,277.96. The disposal of Wanda International was
completed on 6 July 2018.

On 18 January 2018, Wanda Australia RE, AWH Investment Group
Pty Ltd (“AWH”) and Wanda Australia CP entered into a master
agreement in respect of the proposed disposal of the entire equity
interest in Wanda Australia CP subject to the terms contained
therein, at the consideration of AUD315,044,422 and repayment
of the debt in the amount of AUD815,107,691 in instalments. The
disposal of Wanda Australia CP was completed on 18 May 2018.
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2. iR IEIRE TS

BE-ZE-NF+=-A=+—H
I

— EBEEEMIEEARARMNParcel C

(RARElZMBRR - EEEZM
FRE—HEEPYE) 2
BEEREGRE - —BTXBH
e AEERTHBEERES T
AMBEEBIH - R —NF
+-—A=+—8 ERLEZES
IEfE#7TH » M Parcel CE DA
FEHEZHE QR KRR EEEZE
7% o

— ARFDREEFTERUILMEER

KIHEER - B - MIERBRRHE
EN BRI ERT

BE-Z-/\F+=ZA=1t—H
I

RZZT—N\F—A+,-8  ~x2a({ER
BH)EENME(BE)ERAR(E
N DIERE 7 s AKIE 35,609,277.96
CHEBEZERBEHEREERAR (8
EERR]) 2B BEITIRAZ60% L E
B LEBERBRER=ZZ—/\F
+tANBREK °
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BFERAEZIGER) R BERED
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

During the year ended December 2018 (Continued)

Wanda International and its subsidiaries (“Wanda International
Group”) and Wanda Australia CP and its subsidiaries (“Wanda
Australia CP Group”) were classified as discontinued operations for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

(i) Parcel C:

(@  The results for the year are presented below:

2. R )

Z2E-E-\F+=ZRA=1t—H
L ()

BHE-_ZT-N\F+_A=+—HL#F
- %iﬂ@&ﬁﬂﬁ%“ﬂ((%il%
SEDAREERFRMREKER
(TBEmzxrMsE)) E’“*E%,%%Jt,%%
e

(i) Parcel C:

(@) AEFEEXHEZ2IIMT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Other revenue E b Ues 103 477
Other income, net HA A FEE 5.952 2,381
Selling expenses HERX (27,688) (81,417)
Administrative expenses TR X (133) (214)
Finance costs BB R (140) —
Loss before tax from RIS TS 2
the discontinued PR RIEE
operation (21,906) (28,773)
Income tax expense FriS i & - —
Loss for the year from ISR 2
the discontinued AEEFEE
operation (21,906) (28,773)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

(i) Parcel C: (Continued)

(b)  The major classes of assets and liabilities of Parcel C

classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2019 are

II\\

(i)

z«( aA

ne =

—E390°)

Parcel C : (#&)

(b)

-

—AETZA=t—

HParcel CREAFIEHE

as follows: ZEEEERBEHRERN
I
2019
—E-NF
$’000
Fr
Property, plant and equipment  ¥13 ~ &= K&a&#E (52 15)

(note 15) 2,985
Construction in progress T2 (FisE15)

(note 15) 864,108
Freehold land (note 16) XA RS (FizE16) 158,203
Right-of-use assets (note 18(b)) 1 A& E E (K7 18(b)) 1,369
Properties under development fEZ#3E 3,878,764
Contract incremental costs B U S KA 57,880
Restricted bank deposits Z R B ERITIF K 3,434
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EY 28,489
Assets classified as held for sale DA AFIEHE 2 EE 4,995,232
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ER FRIR (484,822)
Lease liabilities (note 18(c)) HEAE (MizE18(c)) (1,406)
Loan from a financial institution ~ —I84& BB B (973,475)
Liabilities directly associated B2 4B AFIEHE 2

with the assets EEEEZRE@ECEE

classified as held for sale (1,459,703)
Net assets directly associated £ Parcel C H#HR ~

with Parcel C BESE 3,535,529
Exchange reserve on HEGINSETS 2 e H

translation of foreign

operations (4,202)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continuea)
(i) Parcel C: (Continued)

(c)  The net cash flows incurred by Parcel C are as follows:

n\\ %gé JJ\%%% (%)
(i) ParcelC: (&)

) Parcel CEEZH & MEF

FHAAT

2019 2018

—E-NF —ZT—)\F

$’000 $'000

Fr T

Operating activities TEEE) (807,388) (665,502)

Investing activities EEH (260,368) (79,923)

Financing activities BEED) 1,026,062 (154,861)
Effect of foreign exchange ~ JMNEE R EF) » 2

rate changes (241) 1,839

Net cash flow e REFE (41,935) (898,447)

(d)  Certain assets of Parcel C were pledged to secure the
loan from a financial institution and bank facilities as

(d) Parcel CiKIH{EA—HE &
BEERRBITHE ZER

follows: ZETEEWNT :
2019
—E-hEF
$’000
Ft
Construction in progress EEITRE 864,108
Freehold land KA SERE T 158,203
Properties under development 7Ei2#)3E 3,878,764
4,901,075

The loan from a financial institution as at 31 December
2019 were guaranteed by an intermediate holding
company, Dalian Wanda Commercial Management
Group Co., Ltd.

NE-AE+=A=+—
B —ESBSEELI
—ME R ARAREE
BREREEROERAR
G
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T L e _
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12. RIEEEK =)
(i) Ceased business of development and sale of (i) ERIEMEBRREREEE
properties: 7
(@  The results for the year are presented below: @ AFEXEZIIWT :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Revenue Weas 178,332 207,471
Cost of sales SHERA (130,670) (135,015)
Other revenue Hb e 19,928 19,283
Other income, net H b Wg A FE8 48,737 9,649
Selling expenses HEMX (11,235) (14,323)
Administrative expenses TR (16,447) (20,549)
Finance cost BhE KA (37,351) (31,100)
Gain on disposal of SN B AR 2 W
subsidiaries (note 32) (FF5E32) 136,793 =
Profit before tax from BRI R E T < BRI AR T
the discontinued operation 188,087 35,416
Income tax (expense)/credit  F{S#: (B2 ) % (36,737) 18,154
Profit for the year from BIEEEEB 2 N R
the discontinued operation 151,350 53,570
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

(ii) Ceased business of development and sale of

properties: (Continued)

I“\ %gé*J\§¥gi§§(ém)

(i) BRILYERRERIHESE
% B

(b)  The net cash flows incurred by the ceased business of (b) BERIEMEEERIEEEL
development and sale of properties are as follows: EXEZIREREFHBNT
2019 2018
—E-NF —\F
$°000 $000
Fr T
Operating activities KRR E) (190,899) 250,661
Investing activities "EEH 7,268 5,535
Financing activities REEH) 124,503 (101,292)
Effect of foreign exchange ~~ HMNEEREH) v £
rate changes 597 (9,102)
Net cash flow REemEFR (58,531) 145,802

(iii) Wanda International Group

(@  The results for the period up to the date of disposal are

presented below:

(i) BEERER

@ BHEHERBMzHREFEEZR
(NN

2018

—N\F

$°000

T

Other loss, net HAbE1EF5E (4,256)

Selling expenses SHERX (2,425)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & i@ A 7~ Wz 442,419

Administrative expenses TR (14,314)

Finance costs BRE A (8,532)
Profit before tax from IR E TS 2 BRI R & A

the discontinued operation 412,892

Income tax expense Friefif = =
Profit for the year from IR B ETS 2 R F R m A

the discontinued operation 412,892
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

(iii) Wanda International Group (Continued)

(b)  The net cash flows incurred by Wanda International

BABTTIIR)

MIFREHERE )
(i) BEREMREE(#®)

b BEREREEEEHERH

Group up to the date of disposal are as follows: EEZREREFEANT
2018
—F-)\F
$'000
T
Operating activities KRS (348,704)
Investing activities HEEH (68,409)
Financing activities &R 127,761
Effect of foreign exchange SNEDE R E a2 B
rate changes 34,302
Net cash flow WemEF5E (255,050)

(iv) Wanda Australia CP Group

(@  The results for the period up to the date of disposal are

presented below:

(iv) BEEFREMNEE

@ RAHREEHERRZE
B2

2018
—E-N\&
$'000
Tt
Other revenue H At as 59,435
Selling expenses HERE (5,335)
Administrative expenses THAX (3,106)
Finance costs BER A (6,326)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & i &2 7l Z Wk 473,277
Profit before tax from IR R TS PR B AT A
the discontinued operation 517,945
Income tax expense FriSHiF > (31,957)
Profit for the year from IR B TS 2 R F R m A
the discontinued operation 485,988
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ke sl N
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12, # I EHEK @)
(iv) Wanda Australia CP Group (Continued) (iv) BERREMNEE @)
(b) The net cash flows incurred by Wanda Australia CP b)) BERXRMNEEEELE
Group up to the date of disposal are as follows: BHELEZReRE/FHUN
T

2018

—ZT—)\F

$'000

FIT
Operating activities KR ED (434,740)
Investing activities WEEE (9,252)

Financing activities BE RS 401,702

Effect of foreign exchange HNDE DE SR ) 2 52
rate changes 1,656
Net cash flow REmeF5 (40,634)
(v) Earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) v) SRER,(EE)GBIL)

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

Basic and diluted, EARRESE - REKLIEEEETE
from discontinued operations 2.1 16.0
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12. %

(v) Earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from
discontinued operations are based on:

(%)

$E'<TJ§T§‘J%IE5+$ :

REETE )
v) BRER(FE)GBl)

IREXRE cBREAREERN T

13. DIVIDEND

2019 2018
—E-hEF =— N\
$°000 $'000
T 7T
Profit attributable to ordinary BRI ERE 2B RRIERK
equity holders of the parent from BB AR (WE 14)
the discontinued operation
(note 14) 97,705 750,898
2019 2018
—E-hEF — N\
’000 ‘000
TR FH%
Weighted average number of RNEEANARFETRERR
ordinary shares in issue ERF 2 EEITERR
during the year used in the basic &2 (FIEE29)
and diluted earnings per
share calculation (note 29) 4,697,347 4,697,347
13. R E
RRARESTEBREEZE_T—NEF

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14. R AR EBERIEE AEL

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE (EB8) &F
PARENT
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share () BREAX(HE) BF
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based GIREAR (1) B JgE N
on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity NEEERIEE ARG (B8) %
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of F R EANBZBITE BT Z IIREFH
ordinary shares of 4,697,347,000 (2018: 4,697,347,000) in 87 4,697,347,000% (=& — )\ £ :
issue during the year. 4,697,347,000 %) 51 &
The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per FREEA L EE (B518) /&F iR
share are based on: BTSSR E
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT—)\F
$°000 $000
Fr T
(Restated)
(F&E75))
(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary &7 &) E@AKH AR
equity holders of the parent, (B518) aF - AREHE
used in the basic and diluted BREANEE (B18) /&F
(loss)/earnings per share
calculation:
From continuing operations RESFELCEETS (248,092) 15,818
From discontinued operations BRI 2R (FTEE12)
(note 12) 97,705 750,898
(150,387) 766,716
Number of shares
RHOEE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT—)\F
’000 ‘000
T 1R TH%
Weighted average number of RNEERNARTETRERR
ordinary shares in issue e (F1e) &R
during the year used in the basic < B 317 & @A INAE T
and diluted (loss)/earnings per (FF5E29)
share calculations (note 29) 4,697,347 4,697,347
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) SREEEE
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue BE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—H1
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). FE  AEEWEETES D%

AEER(Z2—N\F &) .

BERERRERARA 207
Z“E-NFERH



Notes to Financial Statements

BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BENEKE

Furniture,
fixtures, and Motor Leasehold  Construction
equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
Buildings fi - RE BE
BF ET AE E HRIE st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
17 17 17 17 17 17
31 December 2019 Z2-AF+ZA=t-H
At 1 January 2019: RZZ-NE-A-F:
Cost A 7,839 24,029 3,879 32,983 608,095 676,825
Accumulated depreciation ZiERAE
and impairment (2,376) (12,779) (3,324) (18,132) - (36,611)
Net carrying amount BHFE 5,463 11,250 555 14,851 608,095 640,214
At 1 January 2019, net of RZZ-n4-A-H
acoumulated depreciation (MRZFTERAE)
and impairment 5,463 11,250 555 14,851 608,095 640,214
Additions hE - 11,792 - 73,443 267,366 353,101
Disposals e - (226) k] - - (229)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 32)  (HEMBAR (K 32) (4,761) (%) (79) - - 4,932)
Tiansfertoassetsheld forsdle ~ BER{EHEZEE
(note 12) (Bizk12) - - - (2,985) (864,108) (867,099)
Depreciation provided durng MRz TE
the year (381) (2,59 (460) (12,003) - (15,437)
Exchange realignment EH AR (321) (400) (17) (854) (4,340) (5,932)
At31 December 2019, netof ~ WZE-NEFZA=1-H
accumulated depreciation (MRZFTERAE)
and impairment - 19,727 - 72,452 7513 99,692
At 31 December 2019: R=B-NE+-A=1+-R:
Cost A - 29,087 2716 81,280 7513 120,596
Accumulated depreciation ZiERAE
and impairment - (9,360) (2,716) (8,828) - (20,904)
Net carrying amount FHFE - 19,727 - 72,452 7513 99,602
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continves) ~ 15. ¥]12 ~ R E N 3% @)

Furniture,
fixtures, and Motor Leasehold Construction
equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
Buldings il %8 fig
i & & YEES IR &t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
S T T Tr Tr S
31 December 2018 Z2-N\F+ZB=1-H
At1 January 2018; RZE-)\&-H-H:
Cost B 8,287 23,986 3935 45,465 336,183 417,806
Accumulated depreciation ZiERAE:
and impairment: (2,084) (10,586) (2,708) (25,001) - (40,379
Net carrying amount KEE 6,153 13400 1,207 20,464 336,183 3774071
At 1 January 2018, net of RZF-\§-A-H
accumulated depreciation (MB2HERAE)
and impairment 6,153 13,400 1,221 20,464 336,183 317,421
Additions hE - 1,380 - 3939 211,224 276,543
Disposals e - (56) - - - (56)
Depreciation provided during ~~~ EWEHEZHTE
the year (395) 2929 (665) (9,586) - (13,579)
Exchange realignment ERRE (295) (545) ) 34 688 (125)
At31 December 2018, netof ~ RZE-NETZA=1-H
accumulated depreciation (B Z5ERAE)
and impairment 5463 11,250 555 14,851 608,095 640,214
At 31 December 2018; RZE-\ET-A=1-8:
Cost S 7839 24,029 3879 32,983 608,095 676,825
Accumulated depreciation ZiEREE
and impairment (2,376) (12,779 (3,324) (18,132 = (36,611)
Net carmying amount FEFE 5463 11,250 555 14,851 608,09 640214

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Group’s buildings and
construction in progress (2018: $5,463,000 and $608,095,000,
respectively) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
borrowings granted to the Group.

R_ZE—h&E+_A=+—H ' £&£H
BECAEFRERIR(ZT—N\F:
5 7l /5,463,000 7t & 608,095,000 7T )
BRI (FEARSAEEER 25T
RITERZ IR o
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16. FREEHOLD LAND

Freehold land represents the land acquisition cost, stamp duty,

legal fee and other acquisition costs in relation to the Group’s

16. JK A SERE T 1t

KAKEREL IR A KB IEREIA
Bz THWEARA - BIFER - AR ER

acquired project which is situated in the USA. R E AR AN ©

2019 2018

—E-hE —F—N\F

$’000 $'000

Fx Tt

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RBZRAE 159,119 158,794
Transfer to assets classified as held EESEARIENEEE

for sale (note 12) (ff3E12) (158,203) —

Exchange realignment b 5 S8 B (916) 325

Carrying amount at 31 December

MRt ZA=+t—RBZKEE

- 159,119
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REYI=

$’000
7
At 1 January 2018 Rn=—ZF—N\F—H—H 3,934,631
Addition NE 20,263
Net loss from a fair value adjustment N BERAREEFRE (423,327)
Reversal of over-accrued development costs ~ FBEBfERTEE R AL A 2 ] (189)
Disposal of investment properties HEREYZE (50,586)
Exchange realignment b 5, S B (135,642)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 ~ R=F—/\F+=ZA=+—H
Fr—E-NF—H—H 3,345,150
Net loss from a fair value adjustment (note 7) A7 BEFZE R F5E (H:E7) (787,975)
Reversal of over-accrued development costs  FBEEfERTEE R AL A 2 #E ] 615)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 32) HEHEBAR (FiFE32) (980,936)
Exchange realignment & H A (66,386)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+_HA=+—8H 1,509,238

BERERRARLA 211
Z“E-NFERH



Notes to Financial Statements

BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REWIZE )

All the completed investment properties, including both land and
building elements held by the Group, were revalued at the end
of the year based on valuations performed by an independent
qualified valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Shenzhen Valuation
Co., Ltd. (“Cushman & Wakefield”, previously known as DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited). Cushman & Wakefield is an
industry specialist in investment property valuation, which has the
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation for
completed investment properties was arrived at by considering the
capitalised income to be derived from the existing tenancies and
the reversionary potential of the properties, where appropriate, by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for the similar
properties in the same locations and conditions. There were no
changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Certain items of the completed investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 18 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Group’s investment
properties (2018: $850,451,000) were pledged to secure interest-
bearing bank borrowings and undrawn bank facilities granted to
the Group.
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FERRIREYME  BEAEER
BN L RBFHERFREBEE L
& & 1% f& (A B Cushman & Wakefield
Shenzhen Valuation Co., Ltd.([ Cushman
& Wakefield| - BT & B RITHR Q
a)) EITE L E#E1T E {4 ° Cushman &
Wakefield 2% & ¥ EAEITERNER
W HEHEENEE ML &FRERA
B R R R - BRTK
BYMEZGETNKERBMERBHRAE
EENERNMEPMARBERAE S (20E
) - 2Z R KA R E R
MIHK R BETF o FRMEER I EE
A& 8 o

ETERTIREMEEBIREEEH
EHETE=T  HE—FTEURFHITH
REATE MK MITE18

R-ZE—NEFE+_A=+—8 ' K"EEL
EmILEYWHE(ZZF— )\ : 850,451,000
TL) ZIRE W 2 TIHE EEER - A
MEAREBER 25 BRITERRER
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq) 17. REYZE )
Fair value hierarchy NAREEEBR
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TREVAEFIREWME 2 A0 BER
of the Group’s investment properties: BER -

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 using
R=E-AE+=A=+—H
ZARBEFERR

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBTE  EATHEE EATTER
ZiRE BWAZH BWASHY

(E—8) (B=8) (B=%) #sr
$000 $000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr
Recurring fair value measurement for: &E1EA 5 BEE
Commercial properties ik IES - - 1,509,238 1,509,238

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2018 using
RZE-N\F+-A=+—H
ZARBEERHA

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WEEME  BAUER EATIEER
ZH(E BAZY BAZH

(B—%) (B=R) (B=&) w5t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Tt T T T
Recurring fair value measurement for. & EHEN L BEFE ¢
Commercial properties [ElEEES - = 3,345,150 3,345,150
During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level FRN - BREAFT_H BT mER -
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil). The Group’s policy TERAF=-AEANEL(ZE—/\F:
is to recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy ) e AEB v ER AN EEEL 7 RE
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur. BRIER A BEERE 28R -
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17.

214

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
The Group’s management has discussion with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is

performed at each reporting date.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

7. REVIZE »)

REHmE BMETHER - AK§ I%ﬁ%
Ee R b EmmTmbERR R AES

AT REEMEBEMERAZGESR

inputs to the valuation of investment properties: REZHALE 2B
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
ERFABE
fEEFN BAZH gE
2019 2018
ZE-NF — N\
Shopping mall Investment approach Prevailing monthly
market rent RMB70 RMB74
per square metre —RMB299 —RMB283
5% &% BRABFHK AR¥TORZE ARB74TE
BimsiHe ARM299 T AR#283 7T
Reversionary yield Mall: 7.0% Mall: 7.0%
Store: 6.0% Store: 6.0%
EEKEE &% 7.0% % 7.0%
JETH © 6.0% JEH : 6.0%
Car parks Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB395 RMB389
market rent
per lot
FE5 REE g HEEE ARH¥395 T ARH3897T
RiTmsHEE
Reversionary yield 5.0% 5.0%
EEKEX

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on the independent
valuer’s view of recent letting transactions within the subject
properties and other comparable properties. The higher the rent,
the higher the fair value is. The reversionary yield is estimated by
the independent valuer based on the risk profile of the properties
being valued. The higher the yield, the lower the fair value is.
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18. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office, hotel
buildings, warehouses and leased land used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the owners with lease periods of more than 40 years,
and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of the
land lease. Leases of office generally have lease terms between
2 and 6 years, and leases of hotel buildings generally have lease
terms between 15 and 20 years, while warehouses generally have
lease terms between 1 and 2 years.

(a) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January

18. HE

REBE/FRA

AEBRERANEEBEEZHAE
B EEF E&%ﬂ E T HES
# o BIRATEL — R MR RARZEEIR
BRELH %ﬁﬂ%%t;&oi © AR
ZTHBEE 2GR B TEBES T
AIFIE - WAEZHEBER2EGF -
BIEEF2HBBE R/R15E20F - M
BEZHBEEA1E2F -

() B EHBENR(=

2019) —NF—HA—H#A)

$'000

T

Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 RZ=Z—\F—H—HZKHEE 18,036

Recognised in profit or loss during ~ FRRIEZEHER (FIFE7)

the year (note 7) (481)

Exchange realignment bE A (818)
Carrying amount at 31 December R Z=ZE—N\F+=A=+—HZKHEE

2018 16,737
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18. LEASES (continued) 18. HE @)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and REEGEAEEEZREELFA
the movements during the year are as follows: 2T -
Prepaid
Hotel land lease
Office buildings Warehouses payments Total
Bt
YN BIEET BE HEXE wE
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
Fr Tr Tr T Tr
Asat1January 2019  RZZE—hF—A—H 10,240 - 375 16,737 27,352
Additions NE 40,290 259,301 - — 299,591
Depreciation charge  #TEH Y (12,237) (7,852) (215) (463) (20,767)
Disposal of subsidiaries KB A7
(note 32) (Fi7E32) - - - (15,888) (15,888)
Transfer to assets BENEAFELE
classified as held ZBE (fizE12)
for sale (note 12) (1,369) — — — (1,369)
Exchange realignment [ % 1% 639 87 (28) (386) 312
Asat31 December ~ RZZE—NF
2019 +-B=+—-H 37,563 251,636 132 — 289,231

216 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

=,
18. LEASES (continued) 18. HE @)
(c) Lease liabilities () HEAE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEABZEEERFANEB I
during the year are as follows: Ik
2019
—E-hF
$°000
Fr
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 W=Z—NF—H—HZKHEE 10,517
New leases eI HE 299,591
Accretion of interest recognised FAER RIEFE (FIFES)
during the year (note 8) 9,112
Payments (NE-N (23,398)
Transfer to liabilities directly HEHESEARELECEEEREHEAE
associated with the assets (fFzE12)
classified as held for sale (note 12) (1,406)
Exchange realignment bE H R R 773
Carrying amount at RZE-—NF+A=1T—BZKHAE
31 December 2019 295,189
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BNER 8,281
Non-current portion JEBNHA 286,908
295,189
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HESEIHADTEEMR
40 to financial statement. KMIFE 404 FE -
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18. LEASES (continueq)

(d)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

18. HE &

(d) MIBmERZESRESRNT

2019
—E-NEF
$°000
Fr
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8)  FAE A EF S (H=E8) 9,112
Depreciation charge of CREEENTERX
right-of-use assets 20,767
Expense relating to short-term leases 257 370 & & F#2 FA 5
and other leases with RZE-NF+=A=+—H
remaining lease terms ended sk BlfEm A ERE A
on or before 31 December 2019 (F=ET7)
(note 7) 6,984
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEEMERBE R
low-value assets (note 7) (PE7) 110
Total amount recognised in B 2 42 R
profit or loss 36,973

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33(c) to the
financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) consisting of
two commercial properties in Guilin and Fuzhou under operating
lease arrangements, while the commercial properties in Fuzhou
was disposed of on 27 December 2019 upon the completion
of the disposal of Amazing Wise Limited (“Amazing Wise”) and
its subsidiaries. Further details of the disposal are disclosed in
note 32. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was $149,118,000 (2018:
$168,736,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.
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33(c) # & -

REBEJSHEAA

AEERELCEHERHFLHAERERE
Wz (KM 17) (BREMIBEARENRKRE
Mz EEE)  MURBMNZEED
% B £ & Ak tH & Amazing Wise Limited
([Amazing Wise|) R B AR B =
T-NF+-A-+tHEL - E@EH
BEIH 2 E—PFBRIEI2HEE - Z
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= .
18. LEASES (continued) 18. HE @)
The Group as a lessor (Continued) AEEFEREHEA )
At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments RZBE-—NF+-A=+—H &~&H
receivables by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable RIFBEBPFT Y 2 A HGEEEHER
operating leases with its tenants are as follows: RIREARE 2 FEUBCR AR E R AT -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$°000 $000
Tt Tt
Within one year —FR 85,945 153,341
After one year but within two years —FREMRFA 57,138 115,559
After two years but within three years MERB=FRA 37,016 88,202
After three years but within four years = FBENFR 32,371 79,886
After four years but within five years WEZERFA 26,428 76,312
After five years hFE 133,549 254,179
372,447 767,479
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19. BIEHHIBEERERE

REBRERE MBI RMER 2 B
HEE/ (AR REREEHMT

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and

the movements during the year are as follows:

Revaluation Lease
of properties LAT liability Others Total
MEER  LEER HEaE Ht @it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Tr Fr Fr T
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—-\&—A—H (594,018 35,289 = 7,437 (551,292)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ~ &EEE A/ (1K)
to the statement of profit Bak JRLERE :
or loss during the year:
— included in continuing —AABELEER
operations 92,616 - - 371) 92,245
— included in discontinued — AR EEEER
operations 8,412 (26,510) = 1,846 (16,252)
Exchange differences EHZESR 12,333 (998) - (234) 11,101
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2019 k=F-NF—-F—H (480,657) 7,781 - 8,678 (464,198)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ~ AEEEF A/ (IR E)
to the statement of profit Bk JELEHE:
or loss during the year:
— included in continuing —FARBELERER
operations 153,639 - 989 8,748 163,376
— included in discontinued — AT AR LS T
operations - (7,781) - (1,972) (9,753)
Disposed of subsidlaries (note 32)  HEHBAA] (i 32) 141,704 = - - 141,704
Exchange differences BEHZESR 15,919 - (11) 275) 15,633
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+=A=1—H (169,395) - 978 15,179 (153,238)
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3 X TH 3 = .
19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19. BERIEBEEERAEG @
(Continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: RE SRR 2 $ER
2019 2018
—E-AF ZE-)N\F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE B 16,157 16,459
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIBEE (169,395) (480,657)
(153,238) (464,198)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the RATNARBEATIEB BRELEHIEE
following items: E
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Unused tax credits REATHIAE R 70,345 36,321
Deductible temporary differences AIMBEREER 33,693 17,514
104,038 53,835
The above tax losses mainly arose in the USA. Deferred tax assets FHHIBEBEEERERESL - HRR
have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is not R AABE A FERR B M ] B A sl Im
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against B - R LiIE B ERIEER
which the above items can be utilised. HEE °
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19. BIEHIBEENREE @)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. As
at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion of the Directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
earnings associated with investments in subsidiaries in the PRC
was approximately $1,513,837,000 at 31 December 2019 (2018:
$1,665,445,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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E-NF+ZA=+—0 AEELXK
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T Y R B 1 28 A i 5 8 o FE S TE 40 B /O
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

0. B 5 BWGIE K BEWNEE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT—)\4F
$°000 $°000
Fx FIT
Trade receivables =) e e 231,696 321,316
Impairment TR (28,493) (1,595)
203,203 319,721
Bills receivables eI 16,921 =
220,124 319,721

Receivables form leasing properties are normally settled on an
advance receipt basis, where the lessees are required to pay in
advance for several months’ rental payment and pay a security
deposit as well. However, in the case of long-standing customers
with good repayment history, the Group may offer these customers
credit terms.

For the business of hotel operations, receivables are normally
settled in advance. However, the Group may offer credit terms to
certain corporate clients.

For the business of hotel management services, hotel design and
construction management services, the Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit. The Group has set out
policies to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group also reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable balance to ensure that adequate
provision for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over such trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

KB MEY) A EYRIA— R ATEKR TS
AEE  ABRARREINBEARSY
SARESR © A - BLA RIFERCE
ZEHEFPME  AREXRERAZEFE
PRREEEHER -

SUBESEXBTE - BRKIR— KN
SRAGEE - AW AREHFAETA
AEPREEERRK -

SR E B IR MRS - BE R RERE R
RBME @ AEREREERPSZEHER
T2UEERET - AEBEESIER
RABRRERBETH RO BRER -
ER B 1 E B2 B & IR B Bl & 5 e MR
BB ATIREISHE - AR AT
EEBERTRZBEBERRME A&
B EAZEE S ERBKRBERTEE
AR ELEMEERE L - &
S ERMGRIA T HE. -
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EZ EWARIE R EREE
(%)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of BERFEZAE - RS HRNRE B
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss Bz B S RIFIA 2 REEDHTIAT :

allowance, is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E—N\F

$°000 $000

F Tt

Within 3 months =@AR 73,183 92,614
Over 3 months but within 6 months wR=AEREARN 31,669 48,168
Over 6 months but within 12 months BRAEAE+TZEHAR 47,351 105,954
Over 12 months Bid+—E A 51,000 72,985
203,203 319,721

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade BSRWFIB 2 REBEREBES N
receivables are as follows: T

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZT—)\&F

$’000 $'000

Fx Tt

At beginning of year REH] 1,595 1,467

Impairment during the year, net FAREFE

— continuing operations (note 6) — FEREE (M5E6) 27,292 231
— discontinued operations — KRR TS (6) —

Exchange differences e =R (388) (103)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—~ 28,493 1,595
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The increase in the loss allowance was due to certain outstanding
contractual amounts which were considered in default and the
Group is unlikely to receive such outstanding contractual amounts
in full.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

20.

B 5 BWGE R EWEE

(%)

BEBRENTERETREARSRE
AR EE 49 B A 6% B 2K B AR B R R AE A
RAEERTHE -

REHE B HERREREETRED
At EEMEEER - BEXTIRE
AnAEARUBEEAZZEEF DA
EToEMBR L AEGE - ZFtER
BREARIMESR  EEFERRRS
BHABScE@BESE - BARTER
RREBIRTTRR 2 A R A SEERY -

AEBEERBRERMETEE SRR
HmEEZ EERREREMT

R=-Z-hF+=-A=+—~H

Past due
B
Less than 3t06 61012 Over

Current 3 months months months 12 months* Total

WE SR=EA ZEAER AETZHR BBT-fER* @t

Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEE 0.292% 0.846% 1.032% 2.125% 9.361% 1.373%
Gross carrying amount ($'000) &8REE (L) 86,200 32,615 21,803 55,806 35,182 231,696
Expected credit losses ($'000) BHEEEE(TT) 251 276 225 1,186 26,555 28,493

Within the gross carrying amount over 12 months, $9,518,000 of
which was applied on the expected credit loss rate of 9.361%, and
such rate was established based on historical credit loss experience
of over 12 months, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the economic environment, and accordingly $891,000 of expected
credit losses was provided, and $25,664,000 was considered to
be unlikely for the Group to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts and was fully impaired.

* REBI12EA 2 @KREER  Hh
9,518,000t E fE A A B B 5 18 &
9.361% - Mzt X ERIBEBE121EH
ZELEEEHELERET  YERFTE
BBEIR 2 AR R REL AR - At
E 891,000 T 2 TAEA(E B B 1R 1F H 5
1 + i 25,664,000 7T Bl % AN & E 18 &
TR EARESRTBLE2FRIE
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=3 =+,

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. ES EWFIE R EWEE

(%)
As at 31 December 2018 R_FE—NF+-_A=+—H
Past due
Less than 3t06 Bto 12 Over

Current 3 months months months 12 months Total

g PR=@EA ZZ~EA AET-fEA BBeT=fA @it

Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRE 0.018% 0.075% 0.088% 0.267% 10.458% 0.496%

Gross carrying amount ($'000) #2BRE(E (Fir) 92,631 48,204 54,586 114,535 11,360 321,316

Expected credit losses ($'000) BHEEEE (T 17 36 48 306 1,188 1,595

21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. FEFRIE - HAbEWFRIE

OTHER ASSETS REMEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes $°000 $°000
BiteE Fr Tt
Prepayments TaftRIA 5,810 5,763
Deposits and other receivables Y a N E b fE W FIE b 25,859 1,767,851
Amounts due from related parties U EEE A 7018 1,004 10
Amounts due from an intermediate & 4% — & AR R A A B Z0IE
holding company 10,712 2,045
43,385 1,775,669
Impairment allowance BB a (16,537) (353)
26,848 1,775,316
The amounts due from related parties and amount due from an JFE Uiz [ 3B A - IR K U — R AP R AR
intermediate holding company are unsecured, interest-free and RNAFIATEHIR - AR RIREKERE -

repayable on demand.

226 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. RFIE ~ HAEUTRIE
OTHER ASSETS (Continued) REMEE @)
(@ The movements in provision for impairment of other @ FRN - HMEKRIE RERES
receivables during the year are as follows: AT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$°000 $000
Fr T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 353 139
Impairment during the year FRR B IER, (B E)
recognised/(reversed) ZREFEE
in profit or loss, net
— continuing operations (note 6)  — RS L %75 (MiEE6) 9,651 22)
— discontinued operations — IR PR ETE 6,659 233
Exchange differences fEH =5 (126) 3
At 31 December Rt-—HA=+—H 16,537 353

The above provision for impairment of other receivables is a
provision for individually impaired other receivables.

The decrease in deposits and other receivables was due to:

()  the proceeds receivables in relation with the loan
repayment by R&F to the Company, amounting
to GBP84,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$831,774,000) in 2018, of which GBP60,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$590,382,000) was
received during the year. The remaining balance
of GBP24,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$241,392,000) has been assigned to Wanda
Commercial Properties (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd (“Wanda
HK”), an intermediate holding company to the
Company, on 17 December 2019.

B A KRR IR 2 R (B R T
{ER 2 IRME 2 E o U IR M A
R -

b) EEREMEKFBERSEERH

A
N

—
=

ElE IRREEZEERRM
KARMEEE R 2 EWA
BRER-_ZE—N\FAK
84,000,000 2 & ( 15 & 1 4J
831,774,000 7t ) - H &
60,000,000 % £ ( 15 & 1 4Y
590,382,000 7T ) B R F 1A
W Bl o il #4 # £ 24,000,000
8 (FEE R %9241,392,000
BT ER=_Z—hF+=A
THtRETEEmEE (B
B)VERAR(BEZERS]D
(RRBZHEIERAR])
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21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

228

(b)

(Continued)

(i)

(i)

the proceeds receivables in relation with the loan
repayment by AWH to the Group, amounting to
AUD130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$715,871,000) in 2018, of which AUD25,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$159,098,000) was
received during the year. The remaining balance
of AUD105,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$556,773,000) has been assigned to Wanda HK on
17 December 2019.

the deposit made to Australian Taxation Office in
relation to the disposal of interest in Wanda Australia
RE, amounting to $187,183,000 in 2018, of which the
balance was refunded during the year.

Other than the aforementioned impaired other receivables,

the financial assets included in the above balances relate

to the receivables for which there was no recent history of

default and past due amounts.

22. CONTRACT ASSETS

21. T FIE « EfuEUIRFEE
MEMERE @)

(b)

(#&)
(i)

)

AWHRIAEBEEERZ
FEWFTERIER = —/\
#F & #(130,000,0002 JT
(18 & W #715,871,0007%5
7T )+ E #125,000,000% 7T
(18 & R #7159,098,000 %
7) ERFERUE - FlshiEss
105,000,000 7t (48 & R 4V
556,773,000 7C) ER=F
—NF+ZA++tHEET
BERE o

L ERBERMNEZ
TE 25 T =) 8O & 7S B 1R
ZEER T —NFHH
187,183,0007% 7t + H 4 &
BERFERERE -

B bt BRE 2 E b U IRS)
SPA LS SR & REE AT A
EE KRS RUGRAR -

22. BHEE

2019 2018
—g-hE T )\F
$°000 $000
F5 F7

Contract assets arising from: IANTIBEEEEACERNEE :
Hotel design services B R AT AR 14,554 =
Impairment VEAED (54) —
14,500 —

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from

hotel design services and the provision of related design services

as the receipt of consideration is on condition that certain

milestones were reached and the design results were confirmed

by the customers. Upon completion of certain milestones of the
design and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised
as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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22. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, $54,000 was
recognised as an allowance for excepted credit losses on contract
assets. The Group’s trading terms and credit policy with customers
are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
as at 31 December 2019 is within one year.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

22. BHEE &)

RZZE-—NF+A=+—HILFE "
BRI 54,000 TIEREHNEEZEIE
EEERE AREREFZESER
FASEBRR P HRKRME 20 PHE -

R-E-NAF+-RA=+—RKM@s#
BRRNEEZREREA—FNA -

BREEZREBRBHBEESHNT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T-N\F

$°000 $000

Frx T

At beginning of year F] - =
Impairment losses (note 6) BEEE (FizE6) 54 =
At end of year FR 54 —

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses on the
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as
the contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based
on days past due of trade receivables for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

REHE B MERRBREETRED
FAGHERMEREER - ARANEE
K;EZRYGIRTFRBHEREFE - B
Ut EaMEERMEEBRZBHEER
TRIEE 5 M IR < B E R BB
B - ANEBEEZBRBERIRERE
BRUBERAS D 22 EEF DR Z
BHREKABH 2 AGETE - %t 8
RERSFAR AR - ERERENIN R
SRS ZEMBESE - ZRIER
RARFEEERIER 2 AR A SEERY
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22. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 22. EHNEE®
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on AEEFAREBERFEAGNEEZE
the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix: ERRERETIT ¢
Current
BN EA
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEEL X 0.371%
Gross carrying amount ($’000) #@EREE (FT) 14,554
Expected credit losses ($’000) TEHEEEE (Fx) 54
7 /= A= Eh s
23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 23. ZRFRITERARRE
VaZad
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RIREZEY
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Cash and bank balances B NIRRT 2,198,697 2,742,303
Time deposits EHTE R 223,260 3,995
2,421,957 2,746,298
Less: Pledged for long-term bank loans & : 2 /AKHIRITE ZIEH - (4,938)
An escrow account pledged for B RER TIEERA
construction work ZFEERP - (64)
Cash and cash equivalents Re kReHFEY 2,421,957 2,741,296
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances R EER - NEBUARKEFEZR
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to $2,104,820,000 & RIR1T4E 84 22,104,820,000 L (=&
(2018: $2,341,569,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into — \% : 2,841,569,0007T) ° AREET
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign AERABRAEMER - R REF
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, At 2 FINE B IR () I 45 B BB
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is NEBBRTE  ANEEBLEFSBRE
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks FRINEXH < RITHARBLBSE
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. e -
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RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The time deposit is made for a period of three
years, but which could be withdrawn at any time during the period
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group. The
bank balances and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Group’s cash and bank
balances and time deposits (2018: cash and bank balances
amounting to $943,000 and time deposits amounting to
$3,995,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
borrowings granted to the Group.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

An analysis of trade payables and other payables as at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

23.

24,

SREBITEARURE S
RIRESHEEY »

RITFRIREBEE BRITHFRNERIUT
BFE - ERFRRH=F - EGEFA
£ B 7 BB 3R & 5 SR i AT O H Ao {A B
FRE - RITEHRRZRHRSFAL
HAIP 38 A9 R0 8k 2 AR EERTT o

R=_ZF—h&+=-_A=+—8 ~%£H
BER S RBTEBURERER(=ZE
— \4F : ©%/45943,0007T 2 R & KR
774588 % 3,995,000 7T 2 FE BifF %) B 1E
B ERRGEASEEER 25T BRTT
BRRZIER ©

B 5 K HEMENFKIA

R E R 2 8B 5 RN FRIA R AR
RBZ DT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
Notes $°000 $'000
BiteE T T
Trade payables B 5 RNKIA a 84,874 630,190
Other payables H At e FRIE 215,365 193,111
Accruals FEstE A - 1,072
Interest payable on HAb B ERFE
other borrowings - 126,667
Interest payable to an intermediate & — R AR IR A B A&
holding company b 129,523 11,442
Interest payable to JER & RIS A2
financial institutions - 1,795
Amounts due to intermediate FEfT AR AR A B EIA
holding companies 94,852 2,954,320
Amounts due to related parties FEfTRE A T 50E © 205,094 657,200
729,708 4,575,797
BEEERRARAT 231
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

4. B REMENTIE )

Notes: Bif3E
a.  None of the Group’s trade payables are expected to be settled after a. WEAEEEZENFBEERERER
more than one year (2018: Nil). —FREE(ZT—)\F  |E) -
The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the BIREHRAE  RIREBRZE S ER
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HIBZBRECDHTIAT
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
$°000 $:000
Frx T
Within 3 months =EAR 3,404 481,347
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBE={EREEAR 2,265 41
Over 6 months but within 12 months ~ HB3@7SEAE+ @A R 143 12
Over 12 months ich iy it i 79,062 148,790
84,874 630,190
b.  The amount of $129,523,000 in interest payable to an intermediate b. A —RHAEERRQARE
holding company is repayable within one year (2018: $11,442,000). 129,523,000 LA —FAEE(ZT
The interest payables are unsecured and not subject to compound — )\ : 11,442,000 7T) ° % & B 7
interests. BAEERRRBAELZNER -
c.  The amounts due to intermediate holding companies and related c. ENPEERARREEALZRIES

parties are repayable on demand or within one year and all these
balances are unsecured and interest-free.
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=
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. BN EE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: BEFBET

31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
—2-nE —=— )\ —N\E
+=A=+—-H +Z=ZA=+—H —A—H
$’°000 $000 $’000
T T Tt
Sale of properties HEWZE - 92,974 16,093
Property management services #1312 iR 7% - 24,518 8,643
Other services H b AR 7% 62,130 726 780
Total contract liabilities AHBERTE 62,130 118,218 25,516
Current portion BERER 35,463 118,218 25,516
Non-current portion JERNHERER 15 26,667 = —
62,130 118,218 25,516

Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver properties, EHEBRRRRIME MEEER

property management services and other services. The decrease

in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to the net effect of the

decrease in the contract liabilities from the sale of properties and

the increase in the contract liabilities from other services. Contract

liabilities for other services represented advances received from

hotels who participated in the loyalty programme and the advances

received in relation to hotel management services at the end of the

year.

sz 5 0
/?* =

H R MUKER Z B - R-F

= ilE

BHRBERL I EHREENEZED

BEROERRERAA

Z“E-NFERH

E1 R REMREZENEBERNZ
BT KRB ZANEE
FRGENS BB B 2B E 2 BFKIA
RIS ER A BB S E IR ARTE Z B3R
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=) A3 =+,
26. LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 26. TRIKBE R
Loans from financial institutions were repayable as follows: SRMEE R BRI
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F
$°000 $000
Fx Tt
Current; BDHA -
Bank loans — secured IRITER — HEMH - 46,088
Non-current: JERNER
Bank loans — secured IRITER — FEMH - 1,146,769
- 1,192,857
Repayable: B
Within 1 year or on demand —FANIFZENR - 46,088
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFA - 95,392
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRERFA - 1,051,377
- 1,192,857
The Group’s bank borrowings bear interest at floating rates. The REB 2 RITEFIRZBFETE - &
range of the effective interest rates is as follows: NZEBEFEEEDT
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T—N\&F
Effective interest rates ERFI=E —  3.38%~6.50%
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27. —EREEZER X RER

COMPANY
Loans from an intermediate holding company were repayable as —EHEERARERZERBOT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE -2 )\F
Note $’000 $°000
BisE Fr T
Current: BIAR
Loans from an intermediate —RHREER AR ER
holding company a 4,187,582 1,445,489
Non-current: JERNAS :
Loans from an intermediate —MEFREER AR ER
holding company a - 678,321
4,187,582 2,123,810
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27. LOANS FROM AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING 27. —BRREIER AT B #)

COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: BT
a. The carrying amounts of all the Group’s loans from an intermediate a. FER - ANEE B EER AT Z 2 E
holding company during the year were denominated in the ERzEREHNAET(ET])) BB
United States Dollar (“US$”) and Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$"). The T(ETDEHE  RERZ Bt E
denominated amounts at the year end are as follows: SEEQT ¢
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT—)\F
Notes $’000 $'000
Bt s Fr T
GBP loans and borrowings BEERRMER 0] - 507,150
EUR loans and borrowings BUTER R AR (i) - 65,339
US$ loans and borrowings ETERKRMER (i) 674,416 678,321
US$ loans and borrowings ETLERMERK (ii) 2,640,166 =
HK$ loans and borrowings IR R R AR (iv) 873,000 873,000
4,187,582 2,123,810
Notes: PizE
0] This loan bears interest at a rate of 5% per annum. 0] ZEETIRTFS% L FIRT A o
(i)  These loans are interest-free. iy ZFERBRE -
(i) ~ These loans bears interest at a rate of the 3-months USD (i) ZEERIER={EAMmBERITREZE
Libor+19%. FEMI%EHE o
(v)  This loan bears interest at a rate of 4% per annum. vy ZEERIREFI%IFIERGTE -
b.  Interest incurred during the year ended 31 December 2019 and b. #HE—ZE—NF+-—A=+—HLF

EEAZMBER=_F—NLF+=A
=t+—HEM—FEFEZERARZFE
D RIEPKIEES & 24 ©

interest payable to an intermediate holding company as at 31
December 2019 are set out in notes 8 and 24, respectively.
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28. TAX PAYABLE 28. FEITHiIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-)\F
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Current tax payable: FEATBNEATR IR
PRC corporate income tax PRI ERTSH 25,022 58,021
PRC land appreciation tax o B A I E R - 127,114
25,022 185,135
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. IR
2019 2018
—g-nE T NF
$’000 $'000
F5 FiE
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :
4,697,346,488 (2018: 4,697,346,488) 4,697,346,488 (= Z— )\ 4 :
ordinary shares 4,697,346,488) I E i@ A% 469,735 469,735
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30. f#1E

(a) REAFERBAFE  AEBEZH

30. RESERVES

(a) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 114
to 115 of the financial statements.

BREZEHSHERMHERRE 114
EREZEAREEHRANZ
5l

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves EETEERARE
Share premium R aRE

The application of the share premium is governed by the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in the PRC is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital.

Exchange reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and foreign operations
whose functional currencies are different from the Group’s
presentation currency.
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference
between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of
the Company’s subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in connection with
the Group’s reorganisation; and (i) adjustments made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
the change in the relative interests as a result of changes in
the Group’s interests in Amazing Wise that do not result in a
loss of control.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
fair value of the consideration paid to Wanda HK for the
acquisition of the entire interest in Wanda Hotel Management
Group which are under common control of Wanda HK,
and the carrying amounts of the net assets of Wanda Hotel
Management Group acquired.

Distributable reserves

The Company'’s share premium, special reserve and retained
earning as at 31 December 2019 may be distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by Section
54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
was $1,101,521,000 (2018: $2,054,658,000).

30. f#f&E @)

(b)

REBHERARE)
B

RER BRI e 1S () AR 2 RIFTUUES
MB ARz RAEEREEANR]
HEBMBAEMBITZRNEELZ
B RmERRIFEERERS
BIEH 2 A% - URBEAREER
Amazing Wise 2 #z= & B (I {5
BURKIEHIAE) FTE £ 2 IRE s

B

AR ERNESERESRES
s (RBEFBHFAZES) MR
BEREXNREZARBELEMN
WEESEREEREEEEFEL
AREERZESE

A ik

RZZE—NFF+ZA=+—H " ' =&
NEZ B RE - FRIFEERIRSR
BARBRE—NN\—FRARESE
SMEFTHEZE TERTAHS
TR o

N-B-AF+=-A=+—H8 7
HOIRT AR BERTFA AL H#E
4% 51,101,521,000 T (—F—N\
& : 2,054,658,0007T) °

BEROERRERAA
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%

31. R EAFFERERAIED
DHEEWB LT

TREHAEEREAEAFERERDN
MERAREMN  TXARMBERME

31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

B

The following tables list out the information relating to subsidiaries
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

AR EER RTINS HE

Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
BEEEERE BEZINHGERE
BRAREER BRAREE
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
2019 —E—fE
Percentage of equity interest IR RS
held by NCI HEm B DL 49% 40%
Profit/(loss) for the year A BE T IR R A
allocated to NCI RNEERF, (EE) 47,676 (47,722)
Dividends declared to NCI R T AR I 2 A AR - -
Accumulated balances/(deficit) of RIS B B IEERR
NCI at the reporting date e RETAEE (B54l) 537,600 (117,612
2018 —T-N\F
Percentage of equity interest IR RS A
held by NCI R¥EE B DL 49% 40%
Profit/(loss) for the year A BE T IR R Y
allocated to NCI REZ RN, () 69,703 (13,138)
Dividends declared to NCI BRI A 2R O AR R — —
Accumulated balances/(deficit) of KRS B B IEERR
NCI at the reporting date T 25T eREE (B4 513,857 (63,814)
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31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 31. EEERFEERERHED
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS PHEBHRB AR @
(Continued)

Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
EZBERE BEIMNHERSE
BRATRER BRAREE
$’000 $’000
e T
2019 —E-hF
Revenue from continuing operations B EFET 2 W 98,719 -
Total expense and FELEHETS 2
other net loss RFST K HAth
from continuing operations E518F 58 (25,926) (97,399)
Profit/(loss) for the year FBICE T 2
from continuing operations REEHRA, (E18) 72,793 (97,399)
Profit/(loss) for the year BRIEREEB AN FE
from discontinued operations smF, (E518) 24,504 (21,906)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERA, (E18) 97,297 (119,305)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AEE2EBA S (BIB) B
for the year 48,455 (134,494)
Current assets mEEE 1,286,107 5,022,395
Non-current assets IERBNE E 1,511,988 22
Current liabilities mENE R (1,531,558) (5,097,262)
Non-current liabilities EmEBBIE (169,395) -
NCI eIt - (219,185)
Net cash flows from/(used in) EE/ (A 2Be e T3
— operating activities — R TRED (451,222) (807,784)
— investing activities — REEE 1,398 (260,365)
— financing activities — BEED - 1,026,062
Effect of foreign exchange R E) o E
rate changes 9,029 239
Net decrease in e KR e EEYR A F5E
cash and cash equivalents (440,795) (41,848)
EEZHERERRLAT 241
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31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 31. EEERFERERAED
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS DBEEMEB AT @
(Continued)

Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
BEB¥NE BEIMOERE
BRARER ARARER
$000 $000
T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(ge&:75) (ge=E=75)
2018 —E)N\F
Revenue from continuing operations FESEES 2 Wk 95,890 =
Total expense and FELEETS 2
other net loss R R H A ER TR
from continuing operations (87,269) (4,070)
Profit/(loss) for the year FECERETS
from continuing operations REEHEF, (EE) 58,621 (4,070)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRIEREEK 2
discontinued operations RERF, (EE) 83,629 (28,774)
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEHEF, () 142,250 (32,844)
Total comprehensive income REFEEWABEE
for the year 21,969 4,520
Current assets MEEE 1,843,513 3,259,430
Non-current assets ERBNE B 1,548,659 781,620
Current liabilities mENE A (772,747) (2,998,821)
Non-current liabilities ERBNALGE (1,670,738) (979,113)
NCI FEIE — (222,652)
Net cash flows from/(used in) EE/ (A 2BeReE T8
— operating activities — ETRED 717,372 (652,145)
— investing activities — REEE (20,263) (79,919
— financing activities — REEED — (154,861)
Effect of foreign exchange [EREE) 2 &
rate changes (84,280) 1,846
Net increase/(decrease) in HeMReEEY
cash and cash equivalents #hn, Ceid) $58 662,829 (885,079)
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

32.

On 27 December 2019, the Group completed the disposal of its

remaining 53% equity interest in Amazing Wise, which indirectly
holds 100% interest in Hengli City, to Zhizun Holdings Limited
for a cash consideration of HK$2 million (the “Disposal”). Further

details of the Disposal have been set out in the Company’s

announcements dated 13 December 2019, 27 December 2019

and 25 March 2020.

The net assets of Amazing Wise and its subsidiaries at the date of

HENB LT

R-ZZE—-hAhE+=-_A=-++H8 &&E
52 A [A] Zhizun Holdings Limited i} &
E A Amazing Wise (B #Z # G 18 13k
100% Ew ) 28R T53% - IRER
& 52,000,000 HEEFHE] - &
AL EEEZE—PHERL2HEAQT
BEA-Z—NF+=ZA+=H =%
—NFT+ZAZTERRZZ_TF=
BA-—+HBZRAE -

Amazing Wise & K [ff B A FE 5t AR

disposal were as follows: ERHZEESFERT ¢
2019
—E-NF
$’000
Frx
Net assets disposed of: BEHEZEEFE
Property, plant and equipment (note 15)  #13% - &= K &4 (FisE15) 4,932
Investment properties (note 17) HEME (MizE17) 980,936
Right-of-use assets (note 18(b)) E A E (FisE18(0)) 15,888
Completed properties held for sale BRI ZH1ELEYE 18,345
Trade receivables =) G 7,679
Prepayments and other receivables TEAS SRIE I B Ath fE U GR IR 184,679
Other current assets HEREhEE 3,344
Restricted bank deposits PR HIERTTIER 4,165
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 10,104
Receipts in advance TEURSRIE (18,926)
Other borrowings HAER (394,793)
Trade and other payables 5 REMEFIE (210,647)
Tax payable e i I8 (159,277)
Loans from financial institutions DRI E R (333,852)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 19) RIEFIRE & (FiFE19) (141,704)
Non-controlling interests IR RS 11,656
(17,471)
Exchange fluctuation reserve PE R BN A (117,909)
(135,380)
Transaction expenses RPHL 587
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 12) HEHIBR 72Uzt (5E12) 136,793
2,000
Satisfied by: HE RS
Cash B 2,000
EEZHEREEBMRAT 243
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. HEMB AT @
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in L ENBAR RS RREEEY
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MEFREZ DT
2019
—E-NEF
$°000
Fr
Cash consideration RERE 2,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHE 2SRRI TR (10,104)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BREHEHBAR 2R MIRESE
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ~ E¥7i 558 (8,104)

244 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. IRERERERMEE
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) EXFBERSH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FR - REBEFLH R A299,591,000
of-use assets and lease liabilities of $299,591,000 and 70} 299,591,000 Z A =E KA
$299,591,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements EEFZHELTHREFFERESR
for office and hotel buildings (2018: Nil). ERHEERCIHRESRE(ZE
—N\F : £E) -
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEIZBRELENEGEH
activities
2019 —E-NF
Loans and
amount Interest
Loans from due to payables for
Lease financial  an intermediate Other  bank loans and
liabilities institutions  holding company horrowings other loans Total
-BhEER
DAERR ROER
- RAfER
BEBE  SAMEER  ERNRE Hfpfest ZEAHIE &3t
§' 000 §' 000 $000 $000 $000 $' 000
in T T T in in
At 31 December 2018 NZE-\E+ZA=1-H - 1,192,857 5,078,130 365,592 139,904 6,796,483
Ffect of adoptionof HKFRS 16 FRAE7SEI S 28
£16¥278 10517 - - - - 10517
At1 Janvary 2019 estated) ~ RZE-E-A-R
) 10517 1,192,857 5,078,130 385,592 130,004 6,807,000
Changes from financing BERENERS
cash flows (14,266) 126,672 128,843 9,500 (105,777) 144,952
New leases note 18[5) HEIRE (R 180) 209,591 - - - - 209,591
Interest expenses R 9,112 - - - 236,936 246,048
Inteest peid cassfied as operating AEATER £ ZEMTHE
cash flows (note 18(c) (H£18() (9,112 - - - - (9,112
Tansfertoliabiities diecty ~ EZENBARELEZEE
associated vith the assets ERERER
classfied as held for sale (1,406) (973,475) - - - (974,881)
Disposal of subsidiaries ote 32)  HEMBAA (f3£32) - (333,852) - (304,793) (136,49) (865,141)
Assignments of rechables  EETEGI
(note 37(2) (W) - - (798,165) - - (798,165)
Derecognifon offoandueto~ AEERRER R EERAE
an intermediate LER
holding company - - (65,339) - - (65,339)
Forsign exchange movement~ JMEE®) 713 (12,200) (61,085 (299) (5,044) (17.807)
At 31 Decarmoer 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-A 295,189 - 4,282,434 - 120,523 4,107,146
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33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

BABTTIIR)

33. FEREREBRMT @

(b) (Continued) (b) #&)
2018 —E)N\F
Loans and
amount Interest
Loans from dueto payables for
financial  an intermediate Other  bank loans and
institutions ~ holding company borrowings other loans Total
—fEpREEk
AAIERR RITER
@H*ﬁ¢ﬁ REMEHR
SRRBEY  ARAF Hfhfeif ZFEfTHIR it
$/000 $ 000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2018 1,814,936 9,065,580 287,083 560,239 11,727,838
Changes from financing
cash flows (609,992) (3,826,820) 97,320 (623,000) (4,962,492)
Interest expenses - - - 184,773 184,773
Foreign exchange movement  SNEZE) (12,087) (160,630) 1,189 17,892 (153,636)
At 31 December 2018 2 \E+ZA=1-H 1,192,857 5,078,130 385,592 139,904 6,796,483

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
cash flows is as follows:

(c) HERSARABAE

E‘l’/\fﬁi //\LE%Z%E?EEE/_;E/E Hj 1@
BT :

2019
—E-hEF
$°000

Fr

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

16,206
14,286
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33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d) Total taxes paid

33. HEREREXRMT @

(d) EfNHERZE

The total taxes paid during the year were: FANENTRIALREE -

2019 2018
—g-nE  —TN\F
$°000 $000
Fr T

Operating activities: EETRE
PRC profits tax paid B ERTET 76,678 82,438
PRC LAT paid BB i ER 14,033 22,431
90,711 104,869

Investing activities: TEED
Overseas taxes paid B8 INHIE - 31,957

34. COMMITMENTS 34. e

(@ The Group had the following capital commitments at the end

(@) MIMEMR - NEEFEE 2 EAK

of the reporting period: BT
2019 2018
—2-NF —E)\F
$°000 $°000
T Tz
Contracted, but not provided for: 5] #{BREE 2,735,773 3,855,120

The above commitments mainly include construction-related
costs to be incurred in respect of the Group’s property
development project of Parcel C.

b itEdE E Z B A5 A & E Parcel CY)
EUREBEAMEE 2 ERIEEER -
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34. COMMITMENTS (continued) 34, EIE 2
() Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 ) RZE-—N\F+_A=+—HZK
IS RIE
The Group leased certain office premises under operating AEERBELCEHELHHEES T
lease arrangements, negotiated for terms ranging from three MAEYE - HEEANF =2
to six years. Fo
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum R_E—N\F+=—A=+—H ' ' &
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases SERBEDAIBEESEHER T3
falling due as follows: RNz ARRZPENZHEE
BT
2018
= N\F
$000
T
Within one year —FR 22,115
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FIEZRE (BIFEREE) 1,354
23,469
35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. EERH
Details of the Group’s loans from financial institutions, which are AEBEBEEEMENNSBEEER
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 12()(d) to KL BRI TS T 5E 12()() °

the financial statements.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

36. HAEE

2019 2018
—ZT-hF —T—)N\F
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Guarantees given to banks for: B TAIFEIRMA TIRIT 2R
Mortgage facilities granted to BTAREEMEER
purchasers of the Group’s properties ZIRERIE 25,849 413,711

The Group has provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee periods commence from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and end after the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of
the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less the
cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is
measured by estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on
the expected payments to reimburse the holders for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the purchasers. The amount initially recognised representing
the fair value at initial recognition of the financial guarantees was
not significant. The Group did not incur any material losses during
the financial period in respect of the guarantees provided for
mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties.
The directors consider that in case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued
interest and penalty, and therefore, no ECL allowance has been
made in connection with the guarantees.

AEECRETRIETAKENEE
RZIRIBREMBRER - REERZ
BEZ 65K T ERBRIZIBER
AEBERBEEEER ZBIBEF AR
FERT R B B B R RIRITZENHK -
MASEEREERBNEZAEE
o AR EREBRHERZRBE
RE AR 2 @ 5 B K& E IR o 5 &
HITIRAE

BB RERENTDREREEERRENR
VAR TR R RFTRAZER (A
Re&ERE)FE - RHEEERRET
BRGABRSERTE  REEHEIR
BEERAAMELEEEENELN
R AR BRI B B W Z (A 50R
A B/ - KXW BERNRI L R
ZRARBEZNSERSBEIL TERK -
AEERAETASENEER 2%
BIREMIR IR B BRI R EE
EREREE - EERBMARBRE
R BEMEZ A EIRFEERE KR
BI& 2 BB R A AT HILS A B &
o B - WERBRERELERE
EEREE -
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 37. ERBEALRS
TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the (a) BMBRREMIDFIFLLIRZ S
financial statements, the Group had the following significant o REERFAEBEALTENT
transactions with related parties during the year: UTEARS
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)\F
Notes $°000 $'000
BiteE Fr Tz
Companies controlled by the 4R AGERIEH| 2 AR
ultimate controlling
shareholder:
Sale of goods SHE o (i) 812 —
Financial shared service =R
expense (i) 229 9
Property management MEEEAREHZ
service expense (i) 1,604 1,628
Hotel service received BEESBE RS (i) 273 —
Hotel design service income B /& z& 5T ARTEULA () 22,075 14,828
Hotel construction B TE 2% TR AR S U
management service
income (i) 532 5,323
Hotel management B E B IR RIS A
service income (i) 67,465 69,944
Rental income HEWA () 7,631 6,203
Rental expense HeMx () 14,060 12,340
Advertising expense BHmY () 240 —
Training expense Bk (i) 209 —
Assignments of receivables 3% fE U 8 (ii) 798,165 —

250 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

The above transactions were made according to the
published prices and conditions offered to the major
customers of the Group.

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into a
deed of assignment of receivables with Wanda HK in
the aggregate amount of GBP24,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately $241,392,000), and Wanda Australia
RE, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a deed
of assignment of receivables with Wanda HK in the
aggregate amount of AUD105,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately $556,773,000), such receivables have
been assigned to Wanda HK on 17 December 2019.

(b) Transactions with key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors,

37. ERBEEALIRS @

(@ &)

() LEHlRZHREAEEEE
HPERBZEAMERR
1T T -

i) M=ZF—hEFT+H+NAB"
RNARIEEERBI LAE
24,000,000 2 85 (18 &
#9241,392,000 7T ) 2 B :E &
WERIEZ2 - AR |l 2 Kt
BAREEBRMNERSE
EBE] M #E%E /105,000,000
SR IT (M8 & F #9556,773,000
TC) R E BGRIE 2R - 3
ERBFEER=ZZ—NF
TZATEREETEESR
7 o

(b) BEXIEEBAEZRE

AEBZIEEBRABHM(BE
ENARRREEZHE) AT

is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$°000 $'000
Ft Tt
Short-term employee benefits HHE S =A 19,588 18,730

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s

emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial

statements.

EEREBTRAEME 2E—F
FREENP BRI

BEBERRARLA 251
Z“E-NFERH



Notes to Financial Statements

BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Loans from an intermediate holding company

Please refer to note 27 for the loans from an intermediate
holding company to the Company. Interest incurred during
the year and interest payable to an intermediate holding
company as at 31 December 2019 are set out in notes 8
and 24, respectively.

Guarantees provided by an intermediate holding
company

The Company’s intermediate holding company has
guaranteed a bank loan made to the Group of up to
$973,475,000 (2018: $979,113,000) as at the end of the
reporting period, as further detailed in note 12 and note 26
to the financial statements.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of rental income,
rental expense, property management services expense,
hotel construction management services income, hotel
design service income, hotel management services income
and assignments of receivables disclosed above constitute
continuing connected transactions or connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of loans from
an intermediate holding company, other related party
transactions and guarantees provided by an intermediate
holding company disclosed above constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, they are
exempt from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

— B EER AT ER

—EHREZERARRETFAREZ
BEXE2ENE27 - RERELZ
FMERRZZE—NF+A=1—
H e — A R A 7R E 5 5
BIES 224 o

—REPEERARREZE
=

RIEER - ARF 2z —BHE
ERAFERBETAEE 2 &
%973,475,000 T ( —Z & — J\ & :
979,113,0007T ) 2 —HHIRITE X
RAEER - HE— D EERIHG
RERMFE12 %26 °

BEXZRERz EHRA

FRBEEFAESWA - HEH
X MEREERBHS  BEER
EIRRIBUA - B R IR TS W
A BEEE RS A KB ER
RBLZAEATRZEX EMRA
FTOAEMER ZFHEMER S

B L E R REERARE
R HMEEALRZ R —REF
AR ARRE ZERZBEEALT
R ETRRIE+MASFE
BLBERZGAFEWERS - A
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FETHAEREIWERE -
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38. RERIE D2 BT A

R|ERR - EEpE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

MTAZIKREE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: Iy -
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
REBERRY Rz SREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF = — \4F
$°000 $000
Fx Tz
Trade and bill receivables H 5 EWGKRIE K W R 1B 220,124 319,721
Financial assets included in FTAE S K E b U SR IE
deposits and other receivables ZEMEE 9,322 1,767,498
Amounts due from related parties FEU R A 5B 1,004 10
Amount due from an intermediate U — Rl R R R A B R IE
holding company 10,712 2,045
Contract assets EHEE 14,500 =
Pledged deposits BEEFFR - 5,002
Cash and cash equivalents R MReFEY 2,421,957 2,741,296
2,677,619 4,835,572
Financial liabilities = =N
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RBERTYECCREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —\&F
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
Financial liabilities included in trade FTAE S R EAES TR
and other payables ZemaE 729,708 4,574,725
Loans from financial institutions T RIEIEE R - 1,192,857
Other borrowings HMER - 385,592
Loans from an intermediate —fEPEER AR ER
holding company 4,187,582 2,123,810
4,917,290 8,276,984
BEBAERRARLA 253
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39.

40.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities disclosed in note 38 are approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, loans from an intermediate holding company
and an interest-bearing bank loan. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and bills receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:
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40.
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RHTHEEHETT 2 —BR S (WIERH
/%Zu”jE)WT% 2 BRTIAR o
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=t+—B  ARELHETEALBE
HEZOMAERSMALRE -

LREMREERERBER

AEEETECHMTAQERSRRES
EY - —HFPHEZERARER LR
ﬂEM°&%§ﬂIEEREmEE$
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (through the impact on

40. TR AR ERE B ERBR

(%)

FEEB
AEEEBE T ENEES 2 BAREE
BREE UL E ARG B 2 BEIE B ©

TRETEMBEHEME SR TE 2B
ﬁT REEE 2 B ATE 1R (FF B 85K
FEIBNEAE A RE S GURIE

floating rate borrowings). f‘% °
Increase Decrease
in basis in loss
points before tax
RRBLATE 18
HEEH >
$’000
Fr
31 December 2019 —h&E+=—HA=+—8H 100 (26,402)
31 December 2018 —NE+=H=+—8 100 (2,137)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the year
and had applied the exposure to interest rate risk to those bank
and other borrowings in existence at that date. The estimated
percentage increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the year until the end of the next reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business are principally conducted in RMB and
US$. The functional currencies of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC and the USA are RMB and USS$, respectively, and
these subsidiaries do not have significant monetary assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than their respective
functional currencies. The functional currency of the Group’s other
subsidiaries is the Hong Kong dollar. The Group also has monetary
assets or liabilities denominated in AUD.

B BREEDTIERRFREHNFR

EARE - WA X RERAERBRZ
HEFEZZFRITREMER - 5T
KEANSIR D B D L iR E IR B SR RN
NEEZTEREHRZAEAGEES 2
At ©

SN B

AEBTEAARERETLEE -
K%EZ¢E&%EW%AEZ%%E
EoRBARERET  ZEWMBQ

VEBREEEERBBEANGRES E
2B Iz Bt EHTIE - NEE
HHERRZIEE¥ AETT - AE
B IR NRTTEHEZ EREERALE -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. ®RiEMREIEBERBE

AND POLICIES (continueq) (#%&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) HNEE LR (42)
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through cash REBFEFBUET BITRARKE
and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade and other HEZRe MEeEEY BHEIK
payables and loans from an intermediate holding company that are HREWEE  B5 RHEMENKIER
denominated in US$, AUD and RMB. —fREZERA R EFAEEERR
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRIIRAEB ZBRBATIEERALEE
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange 2 RN RS BAR ¥ E 2 2 A IR Al pe
rates on the Group’s loss before tax and the Group’s equity. )2 BURE ©
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
exchange in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
fE =R FRBE AT E 1R s
EFH(FRE) i, ) i, i) *
% $°000 $’000
Fr Fr
2019 —E2-hE
If the Hong Kong dollar fin 75 7T H, 22 T B2 B
weakens against US$ 1 (32,953) (32,953)
If the Hong Kong dollar i 7T 3 R T (A
strengthens against US$ (1) 32,953 32,953
If the Hong Kong dollar w785 7T SR TT B2 (B
weakens against AUD 1 2,707 2,702
If the Hong Kong dollar fim ST R IEE
strengthens against AUD (1) (2,707) (2,702)
If the Hong Kong dollar i P& T H AR R B
weakens against RMB 1 16,253 16,253
If the Hong Kong dollar fin P85 7T H A R IEE
strengthens against RMB (1) (16,253) (16,253)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. ®RiEMREIEBERBE

AND POLICIES (continueq) (#%&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) HNEE LR (42)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
exchange in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity”
e & PR AR e
EF(TRE) 2,/ Ci ) #Zhn, Crd)
% $°000 $°000
T 7T
2018 —E-N\F
If the Hong Kong dollar in] 7 7T H BT B2 (E
weakens against EUR 1 (653) (653)
If the Hong Kong dollar finl 78 7T H BT IR B
strengthens against EUR (1) 653 653
If the Hong Kong dollar fie 78 7T R EER (B
weakens against GBP 1 5,430 5,430
If the Hong Kong dollar fis BT R EE R A
strengthens against GBP (1) (5,430) (5,430)
If the Hong Kong dollar fim S 7T 3 R Tz E
weakens against US$ 1 (41,893) (41,893)
If the Hong Kong dollar fin 78 T 7, T B
strengthens against US$ (1) 41,893 41,893
If the Hong Kong dollar fin 75 7T H R TTEZ (B
weakens against AUD 1 5,895 5,895
If the Hong Kong dollar fir 7T Rt IE(E
strengthens against AUD (1) (5,895) (5,895)
If the Hong Kong dollar BT ARBRE
weakens against RMB 1 15,235 15,235
If the Hong Kong dollar fim 75 T H A RIS E
strengthens against RMB (1) (15,235) (15,235)
* Excluding retained earnings * NERERE R
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. ®RiEMREIEBERBE

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk. The extent of the
Group’s credit exposure is represented by the aggregate balance
of cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, contract
assets, deposits and other receivables and amounts due from
related parties and amount due from an intermediate holding
company.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to
credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2019

(%)
EERR

AEEYEEMEFEERR - KAEH
ZEERBRSIRERRAEEEY B
FRWFBAREERE  GHEE &
B I HAth R YURIR Ko FE UK BB S A £ RTR
Ko W — Pl P PR AL R RISRIR 2 (S R AR
B o

B =0 BB I F 45 P R

TRIEJIRBEAEEEERRLETERE
REBEIE R (BRIFEE M E R A A HA N
TREBRASBNZERTAER) - Rk
RtZA=t—BNFERERIEFH
ZEEEREEREERR - I25IZ
RRREBEERKREENRMFER
BREERR -

RZE—NF+=-A=+—8H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188
BHEE
BB RERDEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RE FEoMRR FIWER LA st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Tr Tr Tr T
Trade and bill receivables* B S M R i - - - 248,617 248,617
Financial assets included in st A4S R
deposits and other HiElE0a
receivables — Normal™ JERBE —EF™ 25,859 - - - 25,859
Amounts due from related EMEIEA LR
parties 1,004 - - - 1,004
Amount due from an [ —FE R R A A
intermediate holding IR
company 10,712 - - - 10,712
Contract assets* BREE" - - - 14,554 14,554
Cash and cash equivalents R KRESEY
— Not yet past due — WK 2,421,957 - - - 2,421,957
2,459,532 - - 263,171 2,722,703

Annual Report 2019

258 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

40. TRIE P EE B R RBUER

(%)
EERE &)
ReEENFERER#)

R-B-—N\F+-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8A
BHEE
BB FEEHEEHE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
R L EIEER L NA FCE
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $:000
T T T W T
Trade and bill receivables” B ZEMFERENRTE" - - - 321,316 321,316
Financial assets included in st AIZE R
deposits and other H i fedA
receivables — Normal™ JERBE—ER™ 1,767,851 = = — 1,767,851
Amounts due from related EMEEALFUR
parties 10 — - — 10
Amount due from an [ — R EER A A
intermediate holding I
company 2,045 — — — 2,045
Pledged deposits BEERER
— Not yet past due — HAREE 5,002 - - - 5,002
Cash and cash equivalents & RIEEEEY)
— Not yet past due — HABE 2,741,296 - - - 2,741,296
4,516,204 - - 321,316 4,837,520
* For trade receivables and bills receivable and contract assets to & MAEEEBSLRERTAZE S EW

which the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20
and note 22 to the financial statements.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to
be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables and bills receivable,
deposits and other receivables and contract assets are disclosed
in notes 20, 21 and 22 to the financial statements, respectively.

FBREWREERAHNEENS  ZER
BB 2 &R R B 75 3R R M 7 20 K&
B 22 %58 -

* o fETARESREMEERIAEZ e BmEE
TARBHEABEENBE TS EREE
ZIEERR B InTHERIARRE LN -
AREEEZHBRIER ] BRI
EERMEECEEERERAIALR] -

FAAREEAR S ERHIERERSE
B Re REAMBYRGIERE L EES
Bz EERR CFHESEES BIRE
TERARMIFE20 ~ 21 22455

BEROERRERAA
Z“E-NFERH
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring

liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its

financial instruments and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans, trade
payables and other payables, loans from an intermediate holding

company and lease liabilities.

40. TRIE P EE B R RBUER

(%)
MENE Rk

AEBEAKEERDE B TAE
REEGHERZAR - ZTAEFRA
SEZzERTAZIHANREREE
REBRTIRE

AEBZBRRERERRITER &
SN AR EAME IR - —ERE
ERAREREEEERFES IR
TR R B E M 2 82 T e

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end REIEIR - REBEERETHORITIR
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted MRz ermaE s 2EBERNT
payments, is as follows:
2019
ZB-NE
Less than
1 year or 1t02 2to5 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FRH
REXR —EWE MZERF BBRF st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Tr T Fr T
Lease liabilities HERE 12,500 34,183 98,637 337,277 482,597
Loans from an intermediate — & FE 1A% A 7]
holding company BR 4,300,298 - - - 4,300,298
Trade payables and B IRENFIER
other payables Hofth JE 1T B 729,708 - - - 729,708
5,042,506 34,183 98,637 337,277 5,512,603
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. ®RiEMREIEBERBE

AND POLICIES (continueq) (#%&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RENE & R ()
2018
—E-N\5F
Less than
1 year or 1t02 2to b
on demand years years Total
—FER
RER —EMF MENF et
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fir T T
Loans from financial SRBBER
institutions 106,268 152,750 1,125,680 1,384,698
Other borrowings HAfEFR 12,821 447 325 — 460,146
Loans from an intermediate — 4 FIIERE A 7]
holding company = 1,508,487 678,321 — 2,186,808
Trade payables and ZIENRER
other payables HAnpER 508 4,574,725 - — 4,574,725

6,202,301 1,278,396 1,125,680 8,606,377

Capital management EREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEEEREBZFERRAREARE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and BB R ELE CE N RERFBR 2
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business BARLE  UEFHEBRFERSR
and maximise shareholders’ value. RZIREEE -

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments REBEEBHERRE  WREHEBER
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk SHRAEEE 2 EARFBIELRAE -
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the REFSAREARRE  AEEHEH
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to BRKRRIKE - MARRREE A k3
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. TR - REEWEFERNEER B
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for 12 BURSIEFEL & E) -

managing capital during the year.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio and a debt-to-

asset ratio. The gearing ratio is defined as net debt divided by

total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprise loans from financial

institutions, other borrowings and loans from an intermediate

holding company, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged

deposits. The debt-to-asset ratio is total liabilities net of advances

40. TRIE P EE B R RBUER

(%)

BEREE (&)

AEBEEREARBELEIREBHEE
HRETER - ERNBBELERERER/IA
BEFERAEERNBEFE - BE

FEEREREEENR

HA &R~ —

BREERARERRRE RREEE
MREERER - EHHEELXR/IA

from customers divided by total assets. The gearing ratios as at BREEREFPRAFTGRINEEE - NS
the end of the reporting period were as follows: IR ERNBELEQRT :
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—B-NF —EFN\F
+=A=+—-8B +ZA=+—H
$°000 $'000
FT Tt
Loans from financial institutions TR E K - 1,192,857
Loan from a financial institution DERFHEHEZ
classified as held for sale — IS RIEIEE TR 973,475 =
Other borrowings HAMER - 385,592
Loans from an intermediate —HREERA T ER
holding company 4,187,582 2,123,810
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W Be RRSEEY (2,421,957) (2,741,296)
Pledged deposits [mEEETVER /N - (5,002)
Cash and cash equivalents DEAFELEZ
classified as held for sale Be kR HEY (28,489) —
Pledged deposits classified SRAREHEZ
as held for sale BB ER (3,434) —
Net debt BERE 2,707,177 955,961
Total equity ks 2,643,310 3,207,391
Total equity plus net debt BREmINBEFHE 5,350,487 4,163,352
Gearing ratio BREFHE 50.6% 23%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The debt-to-asset ratio as at the end of the reporting period was
as follows:

40.

TRIEREE R EREER

(#)
BEREE (&)

RIBEMRZEBHEELRMT ¢

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
$°000 $000
Frx Tt
Total liabilities Y=Ly 6,949,669 9,126,040
Less: Advances from customers B PR (20,940) (63,974)
6,928,729 9,062,066
Total assets BEE 9,592,979 12,333,431
Debt-to-asset ratio BISEEE = 72.2% 73.5%
=& 7
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 4. HEEREIER
The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) (the “Pandemic”) TEAREE (COVID-19) ([ #EIE ) 2B EE
is having significant impact on the business operations of the HAEBE XBEEENHEERE &
Group, in particular on the leasing of commercial properties as R EEEMEREARBIEEREEHE
well as the hotel management operations. The exact extent of the % MEYXEERESRTRERLKL
impact depends on the situation and the duration of the Pandemic HEFR IR R DA S BRSSO BT E ©
and the impact on the macroeconomy.
Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the impact on ERZEREREEE  BERNEE
the financial position and operating results of the Group could not BEMEFTEHAEE BN REE A
be reasonably estimated at this stage and will be reflected in the 2B WHERMEAEE s, —E-F
Group’s 2020 interim and annual financial statements. FhERFEYPIERERF ©
7“ =
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 42. LB &R

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been re-presented
as if the operation discontinued during the current year had been
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.

BRERAPZUBRFEEHRZ7 - M
RARER LR S 2 EBN LB R
IR AR IR -

BERERRERAA 263
Z“E-NFERH



Notes to Financial Statements

BN RS ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERRSN + LB TIIR)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  43. KA BB AR R R
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the RERE I - ANA T B IR R & K
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T
2019 2018
—B-NE —\E
$°000 $'000
FT +T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 47 468
Right-of-use assets EREEE 4,384 —
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZRE 878,000 1,781,782
Loans to subsidiaries BTHBRRZER - 719,476
Total non-current assets IEmEEELE 882,431 2,501,726
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Other receivables Hip YRR 3,463 843,322
Loans to subsidiaries %%%WJ%”AETZ%?%X 2,830,502 438,655
Interest receivable from a subsidiary JE U — BT /B 2 J A S 62,202 —
Amount due from an intermediate FEU — A AR AR A Bl 5RIE
holding company 1,871 1,871
Amount due from a subsidiary e — IR /B A Bl 5 IE 34 —
Cash and cash equivalents HekBe TE% 105,344 312,158
Total current assets BB ERE 3,003,416 1,596,006
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Other payables H A e FRIE 6,022 4,576
Amount due to subsidiaries ENLRIEPNGIE e 19,758 11
Amount due to an intermediate FE— R R R A B 58
holding company 93,065 179,860
Loans from an intermediate —fEPEER AR ER
holding company 2,103,054 1,380,150
Interest payable to an intermediate FEA— R R AR A B F 2
holding company 88,055 8,742
Lease liabilities HERE 1,770 =
Total current liabilities nBBERE 2,311,724 1,573,339
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 691,692 22,667
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABEE
LIABILITIES 1,574,123 2,524,393
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,867 —
Total non-current liabilities EnEBERE 2,867 =
Net assets BEFE 1,571,256 2,524,393
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners BARHEE AEEER
of the parent
Share capital A 469,735 469,735
Reserves (note) feis (B ) 1,101,521 2,054,658
Total equity A 1,571,256 2,524,393
Ding Benxi Ning Qifeng
TG EFHE
Chairman Executive Director
E HITEE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITYIR)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  43. A BB FEAR R R ()

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: st -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARBFERELT :
Share Special Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B A7 E ¥ RIf#E RiTEE st
$°000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Fx Fx Fr Fx
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE—N\F—H—H 1,935,266 127,961 (125,133) 1,938,094
Profit for the year and total REZ RN R
comprehensive income for AEE2ENEREE
the year — — 116,564 116,564
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+=ZA=+—H
and 1 January 2019 R=—E—N&—A—8 1,035,266 127,961 (8,569) 2,054,658
Loss for the year and total AEEEBER
comprehensive loss AEEEHEBRTE
for the year — — (953,137) (953,137)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—hF+=-A=+—H 1,935,266 127,961 (961,706) 1,101,521
RYAY =+
44, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  44. fit/ EBI 5 3#3x
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue PBEBRERRZZE_TF=A=1T—HK
by the board of directors on 31 March 2020. SEoHEREETE -
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Financial Summary

BITEREE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—T—hF T—HRF T—+tF —ZT-)\& ZZB-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FAT FAT THET FHAT TER
(Restated)
(=7)

RESULTS £ |
Continuing operations BESEEK
Revenue Yrzs 2,078,406 428,512 656,380 812,320 812,948
Profit/(loss) before tax from — FHEL L E 2

continuing operations BREATER (B518) 1,409,045 182,980 (88,244) (91,034) (596,711)
Income tax credit/(expenses) IFEEEEN 2

from continuing operations  Fr{S&ii& %, (Fisz) (608,659) (134,957) (186,326) (301) 78,643
Profit/(loss) for the year from  FHEKLEL 2

continuing operations AEFRF/ (EE) 800,386 48,023 (274,570) (91,335) (518,068)
Discontinued operations & IFE& 58
Profit/(loss) for the year from 48 IFAR & 752

discontinued operations AFEERF/ (FE) (821,218) 59,087 (379,669) 923,677 129,444
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEHERF/ (E18) (20,832) 107,110 (654,239) 832,342 (388,624)
Profit/(loss) attributable to & ARI#HB A

owners of the parent FE(REF/ (E5E) (262,693) (29,622) (285,438) 766,716 (150,387)
Non-controlling interests FEE R 241,861 136,732 (368,801) 65,626 (238,237)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF, (BE) (20,832) 107,110 (654,239) 832,342 (388,624)
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Financial Summary

LRSS

At 31 December

R+=B=t+—-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-RHF —E—EF —ZT—+tF —E-N\FE ZE-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T FHEIT FAT FET FET
ASSETS and LIABILITIES ¥ERAE

Total assets BEE 15,408,014 16,871,801 19,725,222 12,333,431 9,592,979
Total liabilities mafE 12,508,887 13,928,608 16,369,499 9,126,040 6,949,669
Net assets BESFE 2,899,127 2,943,193 3,355,723 3,207,391 2,643,310

Equity attributable to owners & ARI#HB A
of the parent FEfEHE R 2,188,931 2,009,382 2,420,504 2,220,090 1,921,479
Non-controlling interests IR R 710,196 933,811 935,219 987,301 721,831
Total equity B 2,899,127 2,943,193 3,355,723 3,207,391 2,643,310
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Property Portfolio
MBS

1. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

1. TEARFHEZRE
YES

Expected
Stage of date of Gross Group’s
Location Intended use completion completion Site area floor area interest
T REE
vE RERZ %I REER %“IAH #HBEE EEEE MR
(sa.m.) (sa.m.) (%)
(%) (FIK)
400 East Waterside Drive, Residential Under 2020 4,838 176,000 54%
Chicago, llinois, 60601 and commercial  development —ZE =T
USA FEREE R
2. PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT 2. FEREY=
Gross Group’s Term of
Location Existing use floor area interest lease
rEH
vE B AR EEMmE K g HE
(sq.m.) (%)
(FHK)
The Shopping Mall of Commercial 152,440 51% Medium
Site P05, north to [GES ]

Huan Cheng Nan Road

No. 1, Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the PRC
H Bl E LR BRE
MR — B

LAt PO5 3358 75 35
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